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CITY OF BLOOMINGTON

109 EAST OLIVE

P.0. BOX 3157
BLOOMINGTON IL 61702-3157
FINANCE DEPARTMENT
309/434-2233 FAX 309/434-2802

FOR HEARING IMPAIRF i
TTY 309/829-5115

September 22, 1997

To the Citizens of the
City of Bloomington

The Comprehensive Annuai Financial Report of the City of Bloomington, Hlinois, for the
fiscal year ending April 30, 1997, is hereby submitted. This report presents a
comprehensive and detailed picture of our financial transactions during the 1986-97
fiscal year and the financial condition of the various funds as of Aprii 30, 1997. This
report was prepared by the City’s Finance Department. Responsibility for both the
accuracy of the presented data and the fairness of the presentation, including all
disclosures, rests with the City. We believe the data as presented is accurate in all
material aspects; that it is presented in a manner designed to fairly set forth the City's-
financial position and results of cperations as measured by the financial activity of its
various funds; and that all disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain
maximum understanding of the City’s financial condition have been included. The
organization and content of this report folliows the standards for annual financial
reporting promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board.

The Comprehensive Annual Report is divided into three main sections:

Introduction

Provides an overview of the City's operations. This section also discusses-fiscal
trends and gives some basic financial information.

Financial

The financial statements of the City and each of its funds as of and for the year
ended April 30, 1997.

Statistical
Ten year trend information and other vital facts about the City.

AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER
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ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK

The City of Bloomington is located in the heart of Central llinois, approximately 125
miles southwest of Chicago, 155 miles northeast of St. Louis and 64 miles northeast of
Springfield, the State Capital. Bloomington is the County Seat of McLean County, the
largest county in llincis (approximately 762,240 acres). Bloomington (1994 pop.
57,707) is a twin city with the Town of Normal (1996 pop. 42,219). Interstates 74, 55
and 39 intersect in Bloomington-Normat as well as U.S. Routes 51 and 150 and State
Route 9. The twin cities are also serviced by three major railroad lines and AMTRAK
as well as air transportation at the Bloomington-Normal airport, which services
commercial, commuter, corporate, and private aircraft. Bicomington is located in one
of the most productive agriculture areas in the nation, but the economy is diverse and
well-balanced. In addition to the major manufacturers and industries, there are two
universities, a community college, three hospitals, and fourteen banks and savings and
loan associations located in Bloomington-Normal. The City of Bloomington is one of
the fastest growing urban areas in llinois with an estimated 48.4% increase in
population between 1970 and 1994. New construction continues to enhance
residential, industrial and commercial growth.

Retail sales in the Bloomington-Normal metropolitan area have been strong over the
past several years. There are approximately 14 major shopping areas located in the
Bloomington-Normal area serving a large retail trading area covering a radius of 50
miles or more. The household effective buying income ($43,765) for Bioomington-
Normal is 7.8% above the United States EBI of $40,598 and is projected to have the’
highest percentage increase by 1999.

Bloomington is the headquarters for State Farm Insurance Company. State Farm
Insurance Company is the City's largest employer. There are seven major employers
in Bloomington-Normal who employ between 940 to 9,386 employees each. Another
twenty-three employers provide jobs for between 205 to 750 employees of which the
City of Bloomington with 459 employees is included.

Commercial and residential growth have been strong and steady. The newly opened
outlet mall on the west side will create nearly forty (40) new retail shops under Phase |,
with additional stores to follow. A new exposition center has been built near the outlet
mall, which is able to host events year-round. Two new restaurants and a dance hall
have been built in this area and hotel franchises are expressing interest. Major
employers have remained stable and plans for occupying expanded space are
underway. New projects and renovations abound in the downtown area and
expanded lodging and restaurant facilities are under construction. Veterans Parkway
is being widened, which will also aid growth.

Overall, the financial picture of the City is in excellent condition. Moody’s Investor
Services confirmed its Aa1 rating of the City in June, 1997, and the analyst stated that
Bloomington is in the top 5% of credits in this range. The five year budget of the City
is a balanced budget. The financial expectations for revenues is that revenues wil
continue to increase at a rate that will allow us to provide the services that the Citizens
of Bloomington have come to expect. With guidance of our Citizens and Council,
Bloomington will remain a sound responsible financial City.
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MAJOR INITIATIVES

Community Development

The City of Bloomington has established a number of on-going programs for
rehabilitation of single-family residential dwellings as a part of its Community
Development Programs. Eligible households may have their homes rehabilitated
through a variety of grant/ioan programs, including city direct loans, reviewable
loans, deferred loans, or grants. Eligible househoids receiving assistance
through Community Development must meet one of HUD’s national objectives.
These objectives are a benefit to low/moderate income households or the
eiimination of slum/blight.

Enterprise Zone

The City of Bloomington, Town of Normal and Mclean County formed the
Enterprise Zone on July 1, 1985, in an effort to aftract Mitsubishi Motors
Manufacturing (formally known as Diamond-Star Motors Company). In 1986,
Mitsubishi Motors chose to locate in the Enterprise Zone due in part due to the
development incentives associated with this Zone. The plant is now complete,
and automobile production began in September, 1988. At full capacity, the plant
employs about 3,900 persons and produces about 240,000 cars per year.

The Enterprise Zone contains 2,880 acres. The Mitsubishi Motors plant
consumed about 25% of the Zone's land area. Thus, large tracts are still
available to accommodate suppliers and service industries to Mitsubishi Motors,
as well as other economic development projects. To date, several suppliers have
located in the Bloomington-Normal area. Some have chosen to locate in the
Enterprise Zone and use its incentives, others have not.

The Enterprise Zone is a joint governmental venture. Within this structure,
Bloomingtcn and Normal have agreed to equally share in the reverues and
expenses generated by a portion of the zone known as the Metro Zone.
Services such as fire, police, water and sewer are governed by a series of
intergovernmental agreements. It is only through such cooperation that projects

of the magnitude of Mitsubishi Motors can be accommodated by communities of
our size.

Tax increment Financing

In 1986, the City of Bloomington augmented its economic development programs
by creating three Tax Increment Financing ("TIF*) districts; Market Square,
Veterans Parkway and Downtown Bloomington. The purpose of the TIF’s is to
stimulate economic development in areas of the City that have not kept pace with
the rest of the City in terms of jobs, public facilities, shopping choice and quality
of life. To date, over $60,000,000 of private investment have been attracted to
the districts. Specifically, a 250,000 square foot shopping center, major hotel-
conference center and three auto dealerships have developed in the Veterans
Parkway District. In Market Square, a full service truck stop and a 60,000 square
foot shopping center have opened their doors. The City has been able to attract
and support historic rehabilitation of over 100,000 square feet of space for
various uses in downtown Bloomington through TIF.
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MAJOR INITIATIVES - CONTINUED
Tax Increment Financing - Continued

Tax Increment Financing has been a successful economic development tool
because it provides up front revenues to aftract projects and to support them
through construction of public facilities. The TIF program allows the City to issue
bonds to generate the up front revenues. The bonds are then retired by the
incremental property and sales taxes generated by the various redevelopment
projects. The City issued over $12,500,000 in TIF bonds in 1987 to finance
projects in the Veterans Parkway and Market Square Districts. In 1988, an
additional $2,500,000 in bonds were issued for additional work in Market Square
and to assist the downtown project. The City will continue to use TIF as an
economic development tool. It has proven to be of critical impartance in support
of downtown Bloomington redevelopment efforts, where fourteen (14)
rehabilitation projects have been initiated in the past years. TIF has helped
generate over $16,000,000 of private investment in downtown Bloomington.

The success of the Veterans Parkway TIF allowed it to retire $7,200,000 of debt
before scheduied maturities and close the District.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Accounting Systems and Reports

The accounting records of the City of Bioomington are maintained on a modified
accrual basis, with the revenues being recorded when available and measurable
and expenditures being recorded when the services or goods are received and
the liabilities are incurred. The City’s proprietary and pension trust funds are
maintained on the accrual basis of accounting.

The City maintains its accounts on a fund basis as required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board and by the State of llinois. A fund is defined as "an
independent fiscal and accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts
recording cash and other resources, together with all related liabilities, and
residual equities of balances and charges therein which are segregated for the
purpose of carrying on specific activities or attaining certain objectives in
accordance with special regulations, restrictions, or limitations”.

Budgetary control is maintained by an alloiment system and the encumbrance of
allotment” balances with purchase orders prior to their release 10 vendor.
Purchase orders which exceed allotment balances are not released until
additional appropriations are provided for. Open encumbrances are reported as
reservations of fund balance.

Internal control encompasses Bloomington's plan of organization and all of the
adopted coordinate methods and measures within the City to reasconably
safeguard its assets, check the accuracy and reliability of its accounting data,
promote operational efficiency, and encourage adherence o prescribed
managerial policies. The concept of reasonable assurance recognized that the
cost of control should not exceed the benefits desired and that the evaluation of
costs and benefits require management to make estimates and judgments.
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION - CONTINUED

Accounting Systems and Reports - Continued

All internal control evaluations occur within the above framework. We believe that
the City’s internal accounting controls adequately safeguard assets and provide
reasonable assurance of proper recarding of all financial transactions.

The report, financial statements, supporting schedules and statistical tabies are
prepared using the audited data provided by the auditors and the most current
information available to the staff at the time of preparation. The intent is to fairly
refiect the financial, economic and general well being of the City of Bloomington.

Budgetary System

The City of Bloomington operates under a five-year Budget Program. The
budget is also our Appropriation Ordinance. The budget process starts in
October and includes Staff hearings, City Manager’s review, and Council Public
Hearings. Each line item is justified by backup material. Items that are fixed
would be the same actual expense as budgeted. This also applies to the Capital
Improvements. The Budget and Appropriation Ordinance are passed prior to the
beginning of the Fiscal Year. Our budgeting process has been successful to the
point we generally end the year within 3% of the budget.

Cash Management

Cash temporarily idie during the year was invested in time deposits ranging from
90 days to 365 days in maturity, in U.S. Treasury Bills ranging from 30 days 10
180 days in maturity, and in the Ilinois Public Treasurer’s Investment Pool. At
April 30, 1997, the City's cash resources were divided between time deposits and
investments as follows: 9% in bank time deposits, 19% in U.S. Treasury Bills and
Notes and 72% in IPTIP. The average yield on maturing investments during the
year was approximately 5.5%, and the amount of interest earned on ail
investments was $1,424,554.

The City follows a policy of requiring all investments to be insured, collateralized
or backed by the full faith and credit of the issuing government, if applicable.

Debt Administration

The ratio of net bonded debt to assessed valuation and the amount of bonded
debt per capita are useful indicators of the City’s debt position to municipal
management, citizens, and investors. This data for the City of Bloomington at
the end of the 1997 fiscal year was as foilows:
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION - CONTINUED

Debt Administration - Continued

Ratio of
Debt to
-~ Assessed Ratio of
Value Debt to
(33% of Present
Present Market Debt Per
Value) Value Capita
Net Direct Bond Debt $ 32,299,876 3.84 1.28 559.72
Overlapping Debt 11,532,548 1.37 0.46 189.85
$_43.832,424 5.21 1.74 759.57

Outstanding general obligation bonds at April 30, 1997, totalled $43,832,424.
Enterprise Fund debt and Tax Increment Financing District debt totalling
$4,937,548 and $6,595,000, respectively, are considered to be self- supporting.
The remaining $32,299,876 is considered to be net direct tax-supported debt.

During the past year, $3,370,000 of current bonds were retired. All currently
outstanding bond issues will be retired by 2014. The foliowing tabulation
compares our last ten general obligation bond issues.

Life in Effective
Date of Issue Amount Years Interest Rate
4/01/87 $ 7,200,000 10 7.28903%
4/01/87 5,440,000 20 7.86271%
9/01/88 4,385,000 15 7.45232%
1/01/89 2,000,000 20 5.00000%
5/01/89 2,800,000 10 7.17500%
12/01/91 4,782,872 17 6.02500%
5/01/92 10,000,000 g 5.37500%
6/01/93 3,500,000 13 4.67340%
3/01/94 4,965,000 20 5.42345%
2/01/95 11,650,000 15 5.48400%
6/01/96 6,680,000 15 5.48187%

The City’s bonds are periodically reviewed and are presently rated at Aal. The
ratings are as follows:

Moody’s Investors

Service
General Obligation Bonds Aa1
Revenue Bonds Aa1
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THE REPORTING ENTITY AND ITS SERVICES

The financial reporting entity (the government) includes all the funds and account
groups of the primary government (ie., the City of Bloomington as legally defined), as
well as all of its component units. Component units are legally separate entities for
which the primary government is financially accountable.

Blended component units, although legally separate, are, in substance, part of the

primary government’s operations and are included as part of the primary government.
Accordingly, the Central Ilinois Risk Pooling Authority is reported as an internai service
fund of the primary government. There are no other potential component units

included in this financial report.

The City of Bloomington operates under the Council/Manager form of government,
consisting of a Mayor and eight Aiderman, each elected to represent one ward of the
City for four year terms. Each Aiderman has one vote in the Council decisions, except
where the Mayor is by law permitted to vote.

The City Manager serves at the pleasure of the Mayor and City Council. The City
Manager is the chief administrative officer. All employees of the City are responsible
to the City Manager, except for employees of the Bloomington Public Library, who are
accountable to a Library Board, which is appointed by the Mayor and City Council.

The City provides the full range of municipal services contemplated by statute or
character. This inciudes police and fire, sanitation, heaith and social services, public
improvements, planning and zoning and general administrative services.

Our level of service includes Garbage and Refuse Collection and Disposal within our
general tax structure. There is no special Garbage Tax or fees. in a survey of several
other cities, it was found we were very unusual by providing such a service at no extra
charge to our citizens. We aiso provide a very active Parks and Recreation System,
and the recreation program is supported in part by fees for activities.

The City has maintained a solid level of service which we feel is a high level of service
for a City our size. Although revenues have increased, so have expenses due to
inflation. ~ During the year ended April 30, 1980, we implemented a 2% Utility Tax on
gross sales of utility companies. This generated $3,044,008 during the year ended
April 30, 1997.

A portion of the Utility Tax is designed to provide revenue to support the General Fund
expenditures. Utility Tax proceeds are also used to supplement the Parking Fund, to
provide the City’s share of the Bloomington-Normal Public Transit System and to fund
Capital Projects.

On May 1, 1984, the City implemented a temporary 0.5% increase in the Utility Tax,
which is set aside in a separate Flood Relief Program Fund. These monies, along with
additional funds generated by the regular Utility Tax and private contributions, will be
used to finance a $5,000,000 flood reilef program.

The temporary 0.5% increase was to cease when the $5,000,000 level was reached.
However, during fiscal year 1992, the City Council made this increase permanent.
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THE REPORTING ENTITY AND ITS SERVICES - CONTINUED

Ten individual funds have deficit fund balances or retained earnings balances as of
April 30, 1997, in the amounts reflected below:

Deficit

: Fund Balance
ilinois Municipal Retirement $ 1,337,882
Motor Fusel Tax 841,832
Cops Ahead 26,258
1988 Bond Redemption 1,629
Market Square Bond Redemption 1,812,322
Market Square TIF Redevelopment 595,467
Capital Project - Police Facility 643,902
Central Supply 17,149
Judgment 4,117,438
Flex Cash . 10,853

The lllinois Municipal Retirement, Judgment, and Motor Fuel Tax Funds will continue in
deficit positions until additional tax revenues are received. The Central Supply Fund
will continue in a deficit position until additional transfers are budgeted from other
funds. The Flex Cash Fund will continue in a deficit position until additional amounts
are withheld from employees payroll. The Cops Ahead Fund will continue in a deficit
position until additional grant money is received. We have refunded our Market
Square bond issue to take advantage of lower interest rates. This will reduce our debt
service requirements and help to reduce the fund deficit. Bonds were issued in June,
1996, to finance the Police Facility project. The deficit in this fund will uitimately be

financed by the General Fund.

We have a total Water and Sewer Billing System. The Bloomington-Normai Water
Reclamation District {"District”) has contracted with us to bill their charges on our water
bills. This represents a savings for the customers, as the District does not have to pay
out for collection personnel, office machinery, postage and supplies.

General Governmental Functions

General governmental functions are accounted for in the General, Special
Revenue and Debt Service Funds. Revenues for general governmental functions
total $43,706,397 in 1997, an increase of 10.8% over 1996. General property
taxes produced 21.8% of general revenues compared to 20.3% last year.

Increase

Percent (Decrease)

Revenue rce Amount of Total from_1996
Taxes $ 30,291,737 69.3% $ 3,379,965
Licenses and Permits 812,797 1.9% 45,481
intergovernmentail 8,524,508 19.5% 856,918
Charges for Services 2,032,344 4.7% (7,514)
Fines and Forfeits 389,501 0.9% 62,427
Interest 738,050 1.7% (188,803)
Other Revenues 916,460 2.0% 115,794
Total $__43.706.397 100.0% $__4,263.468
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THE REPORTING ENTITY AND ITS SERVICES - CONTINUED

General Governmentail Functions - Continued

Assessed valuations of $750.0 million represent an increase of 10.8% over the
preceding year. The increase in assessed valuation is a reflection of the current
economic conditions that presently affect the City of Bloomington and the related
effect those economic conditions are having on real estate vaiues.

The current property tax levy increased more than 5% over the prior ievy. The
City met all of the publication requirements of the Trust-in-Taxation Act of the
State of llinois. Current tax collections were 99.59% of the tax levy, down .13%
from last year. Over the last ten years, the collection rate has been very stable,
being as high as 98.77% (1988? and no worse than 98.83% (1991). The ratio of
total collections (current and de inauent) to the current tax levy was 99.86%, down
.27% from last year. Allocations of property tax levy by purpose for 1997 and the
preceding four fiscal years are as follows (amounts per $100/assessed value}:

Purpose 1997 1996 1985 1994 1983
General Fund .4969 .5398 5715 6018 8533
Fire Pension Fund .1286 1279 1281 1290 .0880
Police Pension Fund .1361 .1306 1342 1342 1085
lllincis Municipal

Retirement Fund 1942 .2004 A774 .1854 1845
Judgment Fund .0833 .0934 .1035 1137 1237
1988 General Obligations

Bonds .0361 0429 0425 0491 .0525
1991 General Obligation

Bonds .0827 0921 - - -
1893 General Obligation

Bonds 0411 .0464 .0540 .0673 -
Public Benefit Fund 0184 .0207 .0229 .0253 0274
Public Library Fund .2140 .2255 .2320 .2322 2349
Audit Fund 0037 .0044 .0042 0044 .0046

14351 15328 _1.4713 _1.5424 _1.4984

In 1996-97, the City of Bloomington issued 2,683 Building Permits which indicates
that the City of Bloomington is a fast growing community.

Expenditures for general government purposes totaled $41,538,649 in 1997, an

increase of 13.9% over 1996. Unappropriated fund balances in the major
operating funds were maintained at adequate levels.
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THE REPORTING ENTITY AND ITS SERVICES - CONTINUED

General Governmental Functions - Continued

Increase

Percent (Decrease)

Function ' Amount of Total from 1996
General Government $ 8,138,934 19.6% $ 796,448
Public Safety 11,205,848 27.0% 811,266
Highways and Streets 7,415,810 17.9% 1,484,118
Sanitation 3,004,610 7.5% 64,949
Cuilture and Recreation 6,232,859 15.0% 610,443
Community Development 1,596,032 3.8% 288,533
Debt Service 3,854,556 9.2% 1.018.280

$_41538649 ___ 100.0% $__5.075.048

The significant increases or decreases in the Expenditures for the Fiscal Year are
basically due to the following:

General Government - Primarily due to salary and capital outlay increases.
Public Safety - Primarily due to salary and capital outlay increases.
Highways and Streets - Primarily due to increases in construction and
street improvement projects. .
Culture and Recreation - Primarily due to salary and capital outlay
increases.
Debt Service - Primarily due to the issuance of debt in 1995 and the
peaking of several other debt issue payment streams.

Computer Services Division

The City has a program committed to automation. Each department within the
City has access to two central computers, provided by the use of LAN connected
microcomputers or display terminals. The City has twelve LAN based servers
providing standardized software used City-wide. .

The major application programs processed on the HP 3000 computer are
Computer Aided Dispatch and Records Management for the Police Department,
Financial Management and Budgeting Systems for the Finance Department,
Water Biling and Collection System, Sierra Permit Tracking System, Parking
Violation System, Traffic Accident Reporting and Analysis System and John M.
Scott Prescription Project.

The major application program implemented this past year on the HP 9000 Unix
system was the HR/Payroll from SCT. The Finance portion will be implemented
in 1997/1998 and the Water Billing portion will be implemented in 1998/1998.

In addition to the HP 3000 and HP 9000 computers, there are presently 200
microcomputers throughout the City to assist the departments. The
microcomputers are used by the departments in word processing, spreadsheet
analysis, graphics, inventory usage and analysis, fleet management and
departmental specialized programs such as Computer Aided Drafting ("CAD")
and Desktop Publishing.
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THE REPORTING ENTITY AND ITS SERVICES - CONTINUED

Proprietary Operations

The City’s waier and sewer utility had a successful year and continued to show
gains in the number of customers. The water funds instituted a rate increase to
its customers effective May 1, 1888 and 1989. This will help us to continue to
provide quality services in our water funds and pay for the new Water Treatment
Facilities which were part of our 1985 Bond Issue.

On July 1, 1990, the City implemented a 40% rate increase to pay for capital
expansion and replacement of the water distribution system.

On May 1, 1991, the city instituted a water rate increase based on a water rate
study by Conover, Townsend and Associates.

The City is also implementing a City-wide meter replacement program. This
program started in October, 1990, and will run until all meters are replaced. This
will upgrade the meters and allow for remote reading.

The following is a summary of the income available for debt service in the Water

Fund:
1997 1996

Gross revenues $ 9633902 $ 9,429,000
Net (loss) income 3,183,256 3,089,850
income available for Debt Service

[Net income (loss) plus

depreciation, interest

exgense and operatin

transfers to Debt Service Funds] 5,089,275 5,063,234
Average annual Debt Service 1,335,117 1,317,858
Coverage (income available for

Debt Service divided by Average :

Annual Debt Service) 3.81 3.86

Fi ia ration

On December 24, 1981, the City of Bloomington became trustee to $5,402,151 of
Judge John M. Scott's Estate. The total fund balance has increased to
$8,292,126 at April 30, 1997, due to the excess of income over expenses during
the first fourteen and one-half years of Scott Health Trust projects, sound
investments and streamlining of Operations. A commission of eleven members
representing medical, hospital, religious and welfare organizations, has during
this time, served in an advisory and administrative capacity in assisting the
Bloomington City Council in the development of several health care projects.
Scott Health Trust funds are stipulated for use in providing health care services,
health education and information, medical equipment and supplies and
transportation to heaith services. MclLean County residents who are sick,
disabled and unable to pay the full amount for needed health care apply for the
\éarious Scott Trust subsidies by contacting the staff at the Scott Heaith Resource
enter.
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THE REPORTING ENTITY AND ITS SERVICES - CONTINUED

Fiduciary Operations - Continued

The majority of the monies are held in two custodial accounts at the Commerce
Bank Trust Department and The Northern Trust Company. At April 30, 1997,
these monies were invested in money market funds, U.S. Treasury bills and
notes, and stocks. The remaining monies have been invested by the City in the
lHinois Public Treasurers’ Investment Pool. During the fiscal year 1996-97, the
fund produced $306,926 in interest and dividend income. Decline in interest
rates, increases in costs of health care, plus more individuals qualifying for
assistance caused a depletion of some of the surpius income which has %een
added to the principal since 1981. However, since the change in investment
policy, approved by the trustees and court in 1992, the market value of the Trust
has steadily increased. A sliding fee scale is used to determine the amount of
co-payments paid by clients to health care providers. The major cost is
subsidized by the Trust.

The first Scott Health Trust pilot projects were the Scott Prescription Medicine
Program and Scott Meals Programs, which were established in 1982 and
continue today. Other Scott Health Trust financing projects were initiated in 1984
at the Scott Health Resources Center, which is the central administrative office for
the Prescription Medicine Program, Scott Meals, Indigent Patient Fund, and
Health Referral Clearinghouse. -

A paid staff of three full-time and one part-time employees administer all of the
Scott Health Trust Programs. The majority of the staff’'s time is spent providing
direct service in making referrals for heaith care or in arranging Scott Trust
financing for the various health care services. Many of the telephone inquiries for
health care assistance are handled by the staff through referral to other
resources zrnd do not require Scott Trust financing. During 1996-97,
approximately 3,136 referrals were made to off-site heaith care and sociai welfare
programs. A total of 7,140 prescriptions were paid for and 2,256 different
individuals received Scott Trust financing for the Indigent Patient Fund Programs,
Prescription Medicine Program, Hospital Outpatient Services, Home-delivered
Meals ‘and the Mclean County Health Department Children’'s Dental Clinics
funded by the Scott Trust. In addition, 264 persons were transported {0 medical
appointments through the volunteer-staff Maternal/Child Health Transport
Program in a tweive passenger van that was donated to John M. Scott Health
Resources Center in September, 1993. All of the child-restraint seats were
donated by local social, hospital and civic organizations. During fiscal year 1996-
97, thirty-two volunteers donated 2,102 hours of service which has allowed for an
expanded impact of the programs in McLean County.

OTHER INFORMATION
Fiexible Compensation

The City provides a Section 125 Flexible Compensation Plan for all fuil-time
employees. The Plan allows tax-free deductions for premiums for health and
dental insurance and for medical and daycare reimbursement. Employees can
select one or all of the tax-free deductions.
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OTHER INFORMATION - CONTINUED

Pension Funds

The City has had an independent actuarial study of our Police and Fire Pension
Funds as of May 1, 1996. With recent changes in the length of time the City has
to fund the pension plans and the ultraconservative assumptions that the State
Department of Insurance used in their actuarial studies, it was felt that an
independent study would benefit the taxpayers if the funding levels were abie to
?19 redtéced. The current year Tax Levy reflects the changes recommended by
the study.

Deferred Compensation

The City participates in the International City Management Association ICMA 457
Deferred Compensation Program. Employees can tax defer up to $7,500
annually in this plan. The plan permits employees to select their investment
option from a wide-range of investment vehicles.

Self-Funded Health Insurance Plan

The City of Bloomington’s health and dental plans are self-insured. Third-party
administration is handled through Blue Cross Blue Shield of Hliinois with local
service for employees handied by Clemens and Associates. Input regarding
employee insurance issues is received through an Employee Health Insurance
Committee which is made up from a cross section of the work force including
union representatives and retirees. The plan document was changed in 1994 to
reflect current trends and to take a weliness approach to health care. The City
was operating the seif-funded plan with a deficit which required action on the
City's part to correct the negative funding trends. As of April 30, 1997, the self-
funded plan has approximately a $1,200,000 reserve. The City still believes that
self-funding remains the most cost effective approach to provide health insurance
coverage for its employees. The City will continue an annual evaluation of health
insurance trends, levels of benefits, and funding issues. In January, 1997, the
plan was expanded to offer PPO, HMO and vision coverage options.

Risk Management

The City of Bloomington changed their third-party administration May 1, 1997, to
the St. Paul Fire and Marine Company. This change was made along with a
change in the levels of coverage. This change was recommended by the City’s
Risk Management Consultant as it was feit that we were under insured in certain
areas of coverage. The City and its’ Risk Management Consuitant are faced with
the same funding situation as we experienced with the self-funded heaith plan.
The deficit for the Property, Casualty, Liability and Worker’s Compensation
insurance is over $4,000,000. To reverse this trend, the Risk Manager and City
Staff with Council approval established an Insurance Authority effective October
1, 1995. The Insurance Authority will handle the Property, Casuaity, Liability and
Worker's Compensation insurance, and will put the City in a position where it can
take advantage of purchasing insurance at wholesale prices and avail the City of
a more aggressive investment strategy. The long-term goal is to produce
enough revenue from investments to operate the fund without City support. The
Authority will absorb the deficit in the Judgment Fund and reimburse the City
over a period of years.
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OTHER INFORMATION - CONTINUED

independent Audit

The general purpose financial statements of the City of Bloomington for the year
ended April 30, 1997, have been audited by an Independent Certified Public
Accounting firm selected by the City Council. The audit was performed in
accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and the financial
statements were prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. The audit of the City of Bloomington is required by State Law.

Awards

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada
(GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial
Reporting to the City of Bloomington for its comprehensive annual financial report
for the fiscal year ended April 30, 1996. In order to be awarded a Cerfificate of
Achieverment, the City published an easily readable and efficiently organized
comprehensive annual financial report, whose contents conform to program
standards. This report satisfied both generally accepted accounting principles
and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. This is the
twentieth consecutive year that the City has received this prestigious award. We
believe that our current comprehensive annual financial report continues to meet
the Certificate of Achievement Program’s requirements, and we are submitting it
to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate.

Acknowiedgments

The preparation of this report on a timely basis could not be accomplished
without the efficient and dedicated services of the entire staff of the Finance
Department. We would like to express our appreciation to all members of the
department who assisted and contributed to its preparation. We should also like
to thank your office and the members of the City Council for their interest and
support in a responsible and progressive manner.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Honorable Mayor, City Council,
and City Manager
City of Bloomington, illinois

We have audited the accompanying general purpose financial statements of the
City of Bloomington, lllincis, as of and for the year ended April 30, 1997, as listed in
the Table of Contents. These general purpose financial statements are the
responsibility of the City of Blcomington, llinois, management. Our responsibiiity is to
express an opinion on these general purpose financial statements based on our audit.
We did not audit the financial statements of the City of Bloomington Firemen's Pension
Fund or the City of Bloomington Police Pension Fund which represent 72.2% and
63.5%, respectively, of the assets and revenues of the Fiduciary Fund Type. We also
did not audit the financial statements of the Bloomington-Normal Public Transit
System, a joint venture between the City of Bloomington and the Town of Normal,
from which was derived the summarized financial information presented in Note N to
the financial statements. Those statements were audited by other auditors whose
reports have been furnished to us, and our opinion, as so far as it relates to the
amounts included for those governmental entities, is based solely on the report of the
other auditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards, Goverriment Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroiler Generzl of the
United States and the provisions of Office of Management and Budget Circular A-128,
Audits of State and Local Governments. Those standards and OMB Circular A-128
require that we pian and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance .zbout
whether the general purpose financial statements are free of material misstatement.
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the general purpose financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall general purpose financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit and the reports of other auditors provide a

reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the general purpose financial statements referred to above
present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the City of Bloomington,
llinois, as of Aprit 30, 1997, and the results of its operations and the cash flows of its
proprietary and similar trust fund types for the year then ended in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a
report dated September 22, 1997, on our consideration of the City of Bioomington's
internal control structure and a report dated September 22, 1997, on its compliance
with laws and regulations.
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QOur audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general
purpose financial statements taken as a whole. The combining and individual fund
and account group financial statements and other financial information listed as
supporting schedules in the Table of Contents is presented for purposes of additional
analysis and is not a required part of the general purpose financial statements of the
City of Bloomington, lilinois. Such information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the general purpose financial statements and, in our
opinion, is fairly presented in all material respects in relation to the general purpose
financial statements taken as a whole. The statistical section of this report has not
been audited by us and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

Hriegd Gtk s‘a%/

Bloomington, lllinois
September 22, 1997
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CITY OF BLOOMINGTON, {LLINOIS
All Proprietary Fund Types

Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Retained Earnings/Fund Balance

For the Year Ended April 30, 1997

Total
(Memorandium Oniy)
Internal
Enterprise Service 1987 1996
Operating Revenues
Charges for services $ 12212626 § 5738676 $ 17951302 $ 15,501,505
Operating Expenses
Salaries 2,453,887 368,772 2822659 2,644,220
Benefits 675,925 72,614 748,538 634,880
Contractual services 1,527,092 2,196,883 3,723,975 4 766,538
Claims incurred - 2,780,988 2,780,988 3,513,678
Commodities 1,201,888 640,572 1,842,460 1,849,452
Misceilaneous 262,089 - 262,069 222094
Depreciation and ameortization 1,988,842 30,574 2,018.416 1,985,647
Total Operating Expenses 8,109,703 6,090,403 14,200,106 15,616,509
Operating income (loss) 4,102,923 (351,727} 3,751,196 {115,004)
Neonoperating Revenuss (Expenses)
Interest income - 112,805 112,805 87,559
Rent income 44,327 - 44 327 55,854
Taxes - 698,487 698,487 698,015
Miscellaneous income 270,104 {5,996) 264,108 183,813
Interest expense (300,514} - {(300,514) (371,812)
Total Noncperating Revenues (Expenses) 13,917 805,296 819,213 663,529
Income (loss) before operating trahsfers 4,116,840 453,569 4,570,409 548,525
Operating Transfers
From other funds - - - 2,078,131
To other funds {397,951) (37,458) (435,409) {480,334}
(397.951) (37,458) (435,409) 1,597,797
Net income {loss) 3,718,888 416,111 4,135,000 2,146,322
Retained Earnings/Fund Balance
at Beginning of Year
As originally reported 26,549,037 {2,362,816) 24,188,221 22,039,899
Prior period adjustment (Note U) - 249,548 249,548 -
Restated 26,548,037 {2,113,268) 24,435,769 22,039,899
Other Changes in Retained
Earnings/Fund Balance
investment unrealized gains (losses) - (12,986) {12,888) -
Retained Earnings/Fund Balance _
at End of Year $ 230267926 §$ (1710,143) $ 28557783 $_ 24186221

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF BLOOMINGTON, ILLINOIS
All Proprietary Fund Types
Combined Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended April 30, 1997

Total
Proprietary Fund Types {Memorandum Only)
Internal
Enterprise ‘Service 1997 1996
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash received for services $ 12,102,157 % - $ 12,102,157 $ 11,486,465
Cash received for quasi—external transactions - 4,466,383 4,466,383 5,082,431
Cash received for miscellanecus 314,431 248 314,679 249,767
Cash paid for wages and benefits (3,124,613} (337.975) (3,462,588} (3,278,396)
Cash paid for operating expenses {2,858,014) (5,343,190 (8,201,204} (9,161,1186)
Net cash provided by operating activities 6,433,961 (1,214, 534) 5,219,427 5,269,151
Cash flows from investing activities
Cash received from interest - 114,593 114,593 86,744
Proceeds from matured and sold investments 1,025,000 -~ 1,025,000 3,245,266
Purchase of investments {1,625,000) - {1,625,000) (2,181,393)
Net cash provided by investing activities (600,000} 114,583 (485,407) 1,150,617
Cash flows from capital financing activities
Payments for capital acquisitions (3,814,786) (21,712 (3,836,498) (4,880,181)
Baend principai payments (1,191,952} - {1,191,952) (1,154,246)
Interest payments (319,982} - (319,982 (857.725)
Net cash used by capital financing activities (5,326,720} (21,712) (5,348,432) (6,432,152)
Cash flows from non—capital financing activities
Cash received for taxes - 698,487 698,487 698,015
Cash transferred to other funds ‘ (781,290) (316,832) (1,088,122} (1,339,350)
Cash transferred from other funds 794,071 1,137,503 1,931,574 3,128,131
Net cash provided (used} by
non-capital financing activities 12,781 1,519,158 1,531,939 248779
Net increase (decrease) in cash
and cash equivaier.s 520,022 397,505 917 527 2,475,412
; Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 504,279 2,092,042 2,596,321 120,909
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 1024301 % 2489547 $ 3513848 3 2,506,321

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash
provided {used) by operating activities:
Operating income (oss) $ 4102923 $ (351,727) % 3,751,196 $ {115,004
Adjustments to reconcile operating
income to net cash provided {used}
by operating activities:

Non—aoperating income (expenses) 314,431 {(5,996) 308,435 249,767
Depreciation and amortization 1,988,842 30,574 2,019,418 1,885,647
(increase) decrease in receivables (110,468) (9,878} (120,347) 61,654
- (Increase) decrease in inventory
and prepaid expenses {3,732) {167) (3,809) (74,330)
Increase (decrease) in payables 134,971 425,152 560,123 1,248,934
Increase (decrease) in deposits payable 1,796 - 1,796 (1,345)
Increase (decrease) in vacation payable 5,189 - 5,199 (1,908)
Increase (decrease) in deferred revenue - {1,302,492) (1,302,492} 1,815,737

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities § 6433961 $_ (1,214534) $ 5219427 § 5,268,151

The accompanying nctes are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF BLOOMINGTON, ILLINCIS
Pension Trust Funds
Statements of Plan Net Assets
April 36, 1997 and 1996

Police Fire Totals
Pension Pension 1997 1996
Assets
Cash and short—term investments 827,872 $ 2,164,946 $ 2,0992818 $ 4,095,796
Receivables
Taxes (Note D) 1,143,096 1,080,206 2,223,302 2,164,532
Accrued interest 193,586 165,370 358,956 322,043
Other 93 481 574 7,818
Total receivables 1,336,775 1,246,057 2,582,832 2,494,393
Investments {Notes A, C and H)
‘Deposits at financiat institutions 928,910 1,782,402 2,711,312 4,750,708
U.S. government securities 6,254,197 869,375 7,113,572 7,195,517
U.S. government agencies
and corporations 3,729,846 7,124,466 10,854,312 8,648,074
City of Bloomington
municipal bonds 1,616,920 - 1,616,920 1,455,339
IPPFA Group Trust 549,994 - 549,994 517,858
Annuities 5,379,403 8,197,804 13,577,207 10,144,926
Total investments 18,459,270 17,964,047 36,423,317 32,712,422
Totai Assets 20,623,917 21,375,050 41,998,967 39,302,611
Liabilities
Accounis payable 14,188 5,691 19,879 3,792

Net assets held in trust for
pension benefits

$_20,609,729 $_ 21,369,359

$ 41,979,088 $ 39,298,819

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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CIiTY OF BLOOMINGTON, ILLINOCIS

Pension Trust Funds
Statements of Changes in Plan Net Assets

Year Ended Aprit 30, 1997 and 1996

Additions
Contributions
Taxes
Active members

Investment income
Net appreciation (depreciation)
in fair value of investments
Interest

Total investment income
Less investment expense

Net investment income
Total additions

Deductions

Benefit payments

Retired members

Widows

Disability

Total benefit payments

Return of pension contributions

to terminated members
Adminisirative expensas

Total deductions

Net increase

Net asseis held in trust for pension
benefits at beginning of year
As previously stated

Restatement of plan net assets to
fair market value in accordance
with GASB Statement 25 as of
May 1, 1995 and 1996 {Note H)

As restated

Net assets held in trust for pension
benefits at end of year

Police Fire Totais
Pension Pension 1997 1996
1,142,043 $ 1,080,042 $ 2,222,085 § 2,132,192
390,095 288,670 678,765 627,709
1,532,138 1,368,712 2,900,850 2,759,901
383,975 250,437 634,412 1,380,491
737,556 845,706 1,683,262 1,567,739
1,121,531 1,096,143 2,217,674 2,948,230
(7,986) - (7,986) (399)
1,113,545 1,096,143 2,209,688 2,947,831
2,645,683 2,464,855 5,110,538 5,707,732
707,549 701,248 1,408,797 1,263,991
258,282 187,020 445,302 462,226
129,878 326,653 456,531 491,987
1,095,709 1,214,921 2,310,630 2,218,204
59,424 - 59,424 6,958
34,191 26,024 60,215 53,993
1,189,324 1,240,945 2,430,269 2,279,155
1,456,359 1,223,910 2,680,269 3,428,577
18,962,833 20,141,862 39,104,695 35,674,878
190,837 3,587 194,124 195,364
19,153,370 20,145,449 39,298,819 35,870,242

$ 20,609,729 $ 21,368,359

$ 41,979,088 $ 39,208,819

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF BLOOMINGTON, ILLINOIS
Notes to Financial Statements

April 30, 1997

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The City of Bloomington was incorporated in 1850. The City operates under a
Council-Manager form of government and provides the following services as
authorized by its charter: Public safety, public works, culture, recreation and
community development.

The financial statements of the City of Bloomington, lilinois, have been prepared
in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to
government units. The Govemmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the
accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and
financial reporting principies. = The more significant of the City's accounting
policies are described below. -

1. Reporting Entity
As required by generally accepted accounting principles, these financial

statements inciude the City as the primary government and its component
units. A component unit is an entity for which the primary government is
considered to be financially accountable. Financial accountability is defined
as the appointment of a voting majority of the component unit's govering
board and either the ability to impose will by the primary govermnment or the
possibility that the component until will provide a financial benefit to or
impose a financial burden on the primary government.

Blended component units, although legally separate entities, are, in
substance, part of the primary government's operations. _Data from these
units are combined with data of the primary government. The Central lllinois
Risk Pooling Authority (CIRPA) is govemed by a five member board
appointed by the City Council. Although it is legally separate from the City,
CIRPA is treated as a blended component unit because its sole purpose is to
provide insurance coverage to the City. CIRPA is reported as an internal
service fund. The audited financial information included is for the twelve
months ended December 31, 1996,

2. Fund Accounting

The accounts of the City are organized on the basis of funds and account
groups, each of which is considered a separate accounting entity. The
operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of self-
balancing accounts that comprise its assets, fiabilities, fund equity, revenues
and expenditures, or expenses, as appropriate. Government resources are
allocated to and accounted for in individual funds based upon the purposes
for which they are to be spent and the means by which spending activities
are controlled. The various funds are grouped, in the financial statements of
}h“s. report, into eight generic fund types and three broad fund categories as
ollows:
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CITY OF BLOOMINGTON, ILLINOIS
Notes to Financia! Statements - Continued

April 30, 1997

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED

2.

Fund Accounting - Continued

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

General Fund - The General Fund is the general operating fund of the
City. It is used to account for all financial resources except those
required to be accounted for in another fund.

Special Revenue Funds - Special Revenue Funds are used to account
for the proceeds of specific revenue sources (other than special
assessments, expendable trusts or major capital projects) that are
legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes.

Debt Service Funds - Debt Service Funds are used to account for the
accumulation of resources for, and the payment of, general long-term
debt principal, interest and related costs.

Capital Projects Funds - Capital Projects Funds are used to account
for financial resources to be used for the acquisition or construction of
major capital facilities (other than those financed by proprietary funds
and trust funds).

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

Enterprise Funds - Enterprise Funds are used to account for operations
(a) that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private
business enterprises where the intent of the governing body is that the
costs (expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods or services
to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered
primarily through user charges; or (b) where the governing body has
decided that periodic determination of revenues eamed, expenses
incurred, and/or net income is appropriate for capital maintenance,
public policy, management control, accountability or other purposes.

Internal Service Funds - Internal Service Funds are used to account for
the financing of goods or services provided by one department or
agency to other departments or agencies of the City, or to other
governmental units, on a cost-reimbursement basis.
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CITY OF BLOOMINGTON, ILLINOIS
Notes to Financial Statements - Continued

April 30, 1997

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED

2.

Fund Accounting - Continued

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

Trust and Agency Funds - Trust and Agency Funds are used to
account for assets held by the City in a trustee capacity or as an agent
for individuals, private organizations, other governmental units and/or
other funds. These include Expendable Trust, Pension Trust and
Agency Funds. Pension Trust Funds are accounted for in essentially
the same manner as proprietary funds since capital maintenance is
critical. Expendable Trust Funds are accounted for in essentially the
same manner as governmental funds. Agency Funds are custodial in
nature (assets equal liabilities) and do not involve measurement of
results of operations.

Fixed Assets and Long-Term Liabilities

The accounting and reporting treatment applied to the fixed assets and long-
term liabilities associated with a fund are determined by its measurement
focus. All Governmental Funds and Expendable Trust Funds are accounted
for on a spending or “financial fiow" measurement focus. This means that
only current assets and current liabilities are generally included on their
balance sheets. Their reported fund balance (net current assets) is
considersd a measure of "available spendable resources®. Governmental
Fund operating statements present increases (revenues and other financing
sources' and decreases (expenditures and other financing uses) in net
current assets. Accordingly, they are said to present a summary of sources
and uses of "available spendable resources” during a period.

Fixed assets used in governmental fund type operations (general fixed
assets) are accounted for in the General Fixed Assets Account Group, rather
than in govemmental funds. Public domain ("infra-structure®) general fixed
assets consisting of certain improvements other than buildings, including
roads, bridges, curbs and gutters, streets and sidewalks, drainage systems
and lighting systems, are not capitalized along with other general fixed
assets. No depreciation has been provided on general fixed assets.

All fixed assets are valued at historical cost, except for certain general fixed
assets acquired prior to May 1, 1973 which are valued at estimated historical
cost since actual historical cost is not available. Donated fixed assets are
valued at their fair market value on the date donated. :

Long-term liabilities expected to be financed from governmenta! funds are
accounted for in the General Long-Term Debt Account Group, not in the
governmental funds.
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CITY OF BLOOMINGTON, ILLINOIS
Notes to Financial Statements - Continued

April 30, 1997

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED

3.

Fixed Assets and Long-Term Liabilities - Continued

The two accounts groups are not "funds®. They are concerned only with the
measurement of financial position. They are not involved with measurement
of results of operations.

Noncurrent portions of long-term receivables due to governmental funds are
reported on their balance sheets, in spite of their spending measurement
focus. However, special reporting treatments are used to indicate that they
should not be considered "available spendable resources”, since they do not
represent net current assets. Recognition of governmental fund type
revenues represented by noncurrent receivabies is deferred until they
become current receivables. Noncurrent portions of long-term receivables
are offset by deferred revenue liability accounts.

Because of their spending measurement focus, expenditure recognition for-
governmental fund types is limited to exclude amounts represented by
noncurrent liabilities.

Since they do not affect net current assets, such long-term amounts are not

recognized as governmental fund type expenditures or fund liabilities. They

aére instead reported as liabilities in the General Long-Term Debt Account
roup.

Proprietary Funds and Pension Trust Funds are generally accounted for on a
cost of services or "capital maintenance" measurement focus. This means
that assets and liabilities (whether current or noncurrent) associated with
their activity are included on their balance sheets. Their reported fund equity
(net total assets) is segregated into contributed capital and retained earnings
components. Proprietary fund type operating statements present increases
(revenues) and decreases (expenses) in net total assets.

Depreciation of all exhaustible fixed assets which are capitalized in the
proprietary funds is charged as an expense against their operations.
Accumulated depreciation Is reported on proprietary fund balance sheets.
Depreciation has been provided over the estimated useful lives using the
straight-line method. The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Buildings 25 - 75 years
improvements other than buildings:
Water and sewer mains,
accessory structures and
certain parking lot improvements 40 -100 years
Other permanent improvements 10 - 40 years
Machinery and equipment 2 - 25 years
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CITY OF BLOOMINGTON, ILLINOIS
Notes to Financial Statements - Continued

April 30, 1997

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED

4.

Basis of Accounting

Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures or expenses
are recognized in the accounts and reported in the financial statements.
Basis of accounting relates to the timing of the measurements made,
regardiess of the measurement focus applied.

All Governmental, Agency and Expendable Trust Funds are accounted for
using the modified accrual basis of accounting. ~Their revenues are
recognized when susceptible to accrual, that is, both measurable and
available as net current assets. Available means collectible within the
current period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the
current period. Note D describes the specific application of this concept to
property taxes.

in applying the susceptible to accrual concept to intergovernmental revenues,
the legal and contractual requirements of the numerous individual programs
are used as guidance. There are, however, essentially two types of these
revenues. In one, monies must be expended on the specific purpose or
project before any amounts will be paid to the City; therefore, revenues are
recognized based upon the expenditures recorded. In the other, monies are
virtually unrestricted as to purpose of expenditure and nearly irrevocabls, i.e.,
revocable only for failure to comply with prescribed compliance requirements,
e.g., equal employment opportunity. These resources are reflected as

revenues at the time of receipt or earlier if they meet the available criterion.

Special assessments receivable are recorded in the year the assessments
are levied. However, the revenues are deferred until they become available
as net current assets (billable or coliected in advance of billing year).

Licenses and permits, charges for services, fines and forfeits and
miscellaneous revenues are recorded as revenues when received in cash
because they are generally not measurable until actually received.
Investment earnings are recorded as eamed since they are measurable and

available.

Expenditures are generally recognized under the modified accrual basis of
accounting when the related fund liability is incurred. Exceptions to this
general rule inciude: (1) claims, judgments and accumulated unpaid vacation
benefits which are recognized when they become payable from *available
spendable resources"; and (2) principal and interest on general long-term
debt which is recognized when due.
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CITY OF BLOOMINGTON, ILLINOIS
Notes to Financial Statements - Continued

April 30, 1997

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED

4.

Basis of Accounting - Continued

All Proprietary Funds are accounted for using the accrual basis of
accounting. Their revenues are recognized when they are eamed, and their
expenses are recognized when they are incurred. The City applies all
applicable FASB pronouncements issued after November 30, 1989, in
accounting and reporting for its proprietary operations. Unbilled Enterprise
Fund utility service receivables are recorded at year-end.

Pension Trust Funds are accounted for using the accrual basis of accounting
in accordance with GASB Statement 25 for defined benefit plans. This basis
of accounting is explained further in Note H. As explained in Note D,
property taxes levied for the Pension Trust Funds are recorded in the year of
the levy.

Budgetary Data

Annual budgets are legally adopted and separately reported for all funds of
the City of Bloomington except for the 1988 Bond Construction, Market
Square TIF Redevelopment and Police Facility Funds. The City Council
follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the
financial statements.

a. Prior to February 1, the City Manager submits to the City Council a
preposed operating budget for the fiscal year commencing the following
May 1. The operating budget includes proposed expenditures and the
means of financing them. All budgets are adopted on a modified
accrual basis except for the following modifications:

- Encumbrances are treated as expenditures in the year in which the
purchase commitment is made.

- Collections of Special Revenue Fund loans, Capital Projects Fund
assessments and Special Assessments are budgeted as revenue in
the year received.

- Special Revenue Fund loans are shown as expenditures when the
funds are disbursed.

- Special Revenue Fund disbursements which result in increases in
balances of properties held for rehabilitation or development and
transfers to savings accounts used for property rehabilitation
purposes are shown as expenditures. Receipts from sales of these
properties or transfers from the savings accounts are treated as

revenues.
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CITY OF BLOOMINGTON, ILLINOIS
Notes to Financial Statements - Continued

April 30, 1997

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED

5. Budgetary Data - Continued

- The proceeds of general obligation bond proceeds reserved for
Enterprise Funds projects and expenditures of such monies are
accounted for in a Capital Projects Fund.

- Certain operating transfers between governmentai funds are
budgeted as revenues and expenditures. Budgeted governmentai
fund expenditures also include capital expenditures related to
proprietary fund operations.

- In the Debt Service Funds, transfers from Enterprise Funds for
payment of revenue-supported general obligation debt are reflected
as revenue and payments of the debt are shown as expenditures.

For report presentation purposes, actual revenues and expenditures and
other financing sources and uses have been adjusted to incorporate
these modifications in all statements and schedules that reflect
comparisons of budgeted and actual operations.

b. Public hearings are conducted at locations throughout the City to obtain
taxpayer comments.

c. Prior to May 1, the annual operating budget is legally enacted through
passage of an ordinance. Passage of the annual budget is done in lieu
gf an appropriation ordinance as permitted by the lilinois Revised

tatutes.

d. The City Manager is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts between
departments within any fund; however, any revisions that alter the total
expenditures of any fund must be approved by the City Council. The
level of control {level at which expenditures may not exceed budget) is
the fund total, not the individual line items.

e. The annual budget can be amended by a two-thirds vote of the City
Council. Various budget amendments were approved in this manner by
the Council during the current year, and the changes are reflected in the
budgetary figures included in the accompanying financial statements.
individual amendments were not material in relation to the original
appropriations which were amended.

f.  All appropriations lapse at year-end.
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CITY OF BLOOMINGTON, ILLINOIS
Notes to Financial Statements - Continued

April 30, 1997

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED

6.

10.

Encumbrances

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts, and other
commitments for the expenditure of funds are recorded in order to reserve
that portion of the applicable appropriation, is employed in the governmental
funds. Encumbrances are reported as reservations of fund balances since
they do not constitute expenditures or liabilities. At the beginning of each
fiscal year, encumbrances from the prior year are reappropriated.

Cash Flows

For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, the City considers all highly
liquid unrestricted investments, with a maturity of three months or less when
purchased, to be cash equivalents.

Investments

Investments, are stated at cost or amortized cost, which approximates
market except for the assets of the deferred compensation plan and the
Pension Trust Funds which are stated at market. Accrued interest is shown
under a separate caption on the balance sheet, except that interest
recognized on interfund investment transactions is included in the investment
carrying amounts. Investment balances consist of U.S. Treasury securities,
and certificates of deposit issued by various local banks and savings and
loan associations.

Assets of the different funds are sometimes commingled for investment
purposes and interest earnings are prorated back to the various funds.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out) or market. The
costs are recorded as expenditures at the time individual inventory items are
consumed.

Rehabilitation and Development Programs

Properties acquired through the community development program are
recorded at the lower of cost or market value. Therefore, costs incurred
which are not recoverable upon resale and permanent declines in market
value are charged to expenditures. Reported balances of properties heid for
rehabilitation or development, rehabilitation loans receivable, and funds held
in special savings accounts for property rehabilitation programs are equally
offset by a fund balance reserve account since they do not constitute
“available spendable resources”.
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CITY OF BLOOMINGTON, ILLINOIS
Notes to Financial Statements - Continued

April 30, 1997

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED

11.

12.

13.

14,

Unamortized Bond Issuance Costs

Bond issuance costs allocable to Enterprise Funds liabilities are amortized on
a straight-line basis over the term of the obligation.

General Bank Account

The City maintains a general bank account for monies of various funds. The
cash activities of these funds are recorded in individual fund records.

Ciaims_and Judgments

At the end of each year, the City estimates and records liabilities for all
claims and judgments which meet the recognition criteria of Governmental
Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 10.

Prior to October 1, 1995, the City self-funded its workmen's compensation,
unemployment compensation and automobile and liability claims programs.
On October 1, 1995, the City estabiished the Central lllinois Risk Pooling
Authority (CIRPA) to provide insurance coverage for these programs. CIRPA
is legally separate from the City, but is reported as a blended component unit
as an Internal Service Fund.

Proprietary Fund Type liabilities are accrued when it is probable that a loss
has occurred and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated.
Other current claims and judgments payable from the Governmental Fund
Types are recognized as liabilities of the fund while noncurrent amounts
payable from future revenues are recorded in the General Long-Term
Obligations Account Group.

Compensated Absences

The City permits its employees to accumulate a limited amount of earned but
unused vacation benefits which will be paid to them upon separation from
service. In Governmental and Expendable Trust Type Funds, the costs of
vacation benefits are recognized when payments are made to employees.

A liability for the accrued vacation benefits of such funds at the end of each
year is recorded in the General Long-Term Obligations Account Group since
the accrued benefits will be payable from future operating revenues, rather
than from "available expendable resources.”
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CITY OF BLOOMINGTON, ILLINOIS
Notes to Financial Statements - Continued

April 30, 1997

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED

14. Compensated Absences - Continued

15.

16.

17.

Vacation benefits payable from Proprietary Type Funds are recorded as
expense in the year earned by the employess.

Sick leave and other benefits are accumulative as far as time available, but
are not reimbursable to employees upon termination. Therefore, costs of
these benefits are recognized only when paid to active employees.

Capital Additions for Enterprise Funds

The City has funded certain water systems and sewage system
improvements through direct expenditures of several Special Revenue and
Capital Projects Funds. These expenditures are reported as capital outiay
expenditures of the payor funds and as municipal contributions to capital in
the Enterprise Funds. The transfer of such assets is reflected as a transter
out of the general fixed asset group.

Comparative Data/Reclassification

Comparative total data for the prior year have been presented in the
accompanying financial statements in order to provide an understanding of
changes in the City's financial position and operations. However,
comparative (i.e., presentation of prior year totals by fund type) data have not
been presented in each of the statements since their inclusion would make
the statements unduly complex and difficuit to read. Also, certain amounts
presented in the prior year data have been reclassified in order to be
consistent with the current year's presentation.

Total Columns on Combined Statements

Total columns on the Combined Statements are captioned *Memorandum
Only" to indicate that they are presented only to facilitate financial analysis.
Data in these columns do not present financial position, results of operations,
or cash flows in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.
Neither is such data comparable to a consoclidation. [nterfund eliminations
have not been made in the aggregation of this data.
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NOTE B - BUDGETARY - GAAP REPORTING RECONCILIATION

The accompanying Combined Statements of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget (Non-GAAP Budgeting Basis) and Actual
present comparisons of the legally adopted budget for Governmental Fund Types,
as described in Note A-5, with actual data on a budgetary basis.

Since accounting principles appiied for purposes of developing data on a
budgetary basis differ significantly from those used to present financial statements
in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP), a
reconciliation of the resultant basis, timing, perspective and entity differences in
the excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing sources over
expenditures and other uses for the year ended April 30, 1897, is presented as
follows:

Special Debt Capital
General Revenue Service Projects
Fund Funds Funds Funds
Excess (deficiency) of
revenues and other
financing sources
over expenditures
and other uses
(non-GAAP
budgetary basis) $ 914,294 $(1,805818) $ (289,714) § (1,332,051)
Adjustments:
Encumbrances 265,513 (582,5286) - (2,064,680}
Collecticns of loans - (214,518) - -

Loan disbursements
and rehabilitation
expenditures - 286,309 - -
Interest subsidy and
housing affordability
program payments - (644) -
Unbudgeted funds - -
Excess (deficiency) of
revenues and other
financing sources
over expenditures
and other uses

(GAAP basis) $1,179.807 $(2,317,195) $_(289.714) $_(1,816.530)

1,580,201

-65-



CITY OF BLOOMINGTON, ILLINOIS
Notes to Financial Statements - Continued

April 30, 1997

NOTE C - CASH DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

State statutes and the City code authorize the City of Bloomington to invest any
public funds in bonds, notes, certificates of indebtedness, treasury bills or other
securities now or hereafter issued which are guaranteed by the full faith and
credit of the United States of America as to principal and interest, or may invest in
certificates of deposit or time deposits constituting direct obligations of any bank
as defined by the lllinois Banking Act (lllinois Compiled Statutes 205 ILCS 5/2).
Investments may be made only in those certificates of deposit or time deposits in
banks which are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation ("FDIC")
or in short-term discount obligations of the Federal National Mortgage Association
(*FNMA"™) or in shares or other forms of securities legally issuable by savings and
loan associations incorporated under the laws of this state or any other state or
under the laws of the United States.

Investments may be made only in those savings and loan associations, the
shares or investment certificates of which are insured by the Federal Savings and
Loan Insurance Corporation. The City may also invest any City funds in a Public
Treasurers' investment Pool created under Section 17 of "An Act to revise the law
in relation to the State Treasurer,” approved April 23, 1873, as amended.

Deposits
Deposits are categorized into the following categories of credit risk:

1) Insured or collateralized with securities held by the City or its agent in
the City's name.

2) Uninsured, with collateral held by the piedging financial institution's trust
department or agent in the City's name.

3) Uninsured, with collateral held by the pledging financial institution, but
not in its trust department or by its agent, in the City's name; or
uninsured, with collateral held by any of the above, but not in the City's
name; or uninsured and uncollateralized. :

A year end, the City's carrying amount of deposits was $5,822,251 and the bank
balance was $5,627,037. The bank balance was categorized as follows:

Category 1 $ 112,371
Category 3 5,514,666
$__ 5627037

At year end, the Fire and Police Pension Plans' carrying amount of deposits was
$3,847,454 and the bank balance was $3,653,592. The bank balance was
categorized as follows: _ '

Category 1 $ 1,150,416
Category 3 2,503,176
$__ 3,653,592
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NOTE C - CASH DEPQOSITS AND INVESTMENTS - CONTINUED

At year-end, the Central lllinois Risk Pooling Authority's carrying amount of
deposits was $2,114,281 and the bank balance was $2,114,281. The bank
balance was categorized as foliows:

Category 1 $__ 2114281
Investments

Investments are categorized into the following categories of credit risk:

1) Insured or registered, or securities held by the City or its agent in the
City's name.

2) Uninsured and unregistered, with securities held by the counter-party’s
trust department or agent in the City's name.

3) Uninsured and unregistered, with securities held by the counter-party,
or by its trust department or agent, but not in the City's name.

At year-end, the City's investment balances were as follows:

Category Carrying Market
1 2 3 Amount Value
Unraestricted:
U.5. Government Securities $ 250,037 $ - $ - $ 350,037 § 371,539
Commercial Paper 419,040 - - 419,040 418,971
Restricted:
U.S. Govemnment Securities 2,226,386 - - 2,226,386 2,216,002
Stocks and bonds 4,461,008 - - 4,461,006 5,127,312
Pension Funds:
Police:
U.8. Govemmaent Securities 9,584 043 - - 9,984,043 9,984,043
Municipal bonds 1,616,920 - - 1,616,920 1,616,820
Fira:
U.8. Government Securities 7,983,841 - - 7.983.841 - 7,983 841
§__27.041273 $ - s - 27,041,273 27,718,628
Investments not subject to categorization:
ilinois Public Treasurers' Investment Pool:
City funds 9,718,091 9,718,091
Police Pension fund - -
Fire Pension fund 1,856,676 1,856,676
Restricted:
Federal mutual funds 1,148,566 1,148,568
Annuities:
Police Pension fund 5,379,403 5,379,403
Fire Pension fund . . _ 8,197,804 8,197,804
IPPFA Group Trust: '
Police Pension fund 549,994 549,994
CIRPA:
Federal mutual funds 487,013 487013

$ 54378820 § 55086175
C—
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NOTE C - CASH DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS - CONTINUED

Investments - Continued

A reconciliation of cash and investments as shown on the Combinsd Balance
Sheet follows:

Cash $ 9,943,007
Savings 1,228
Investments 48,069,060
Restricted cash and investments 8,154,552

$_66,167,847

Cash on hand $ 5,041
Carrying amount of deposits 11,783,986
Carrying amount of investments 94,378,820

$_66.167,847

NOTE D - PROPERTY TAXES

The City Council passes a property tax levy ordinance, usually in the second
calendar quarter of each year, for the fiscal year beginning on May 1 of such
calendar year. The tax becomes a lien as of the following January 1, on the
assessed vaive listed as of the day prior (December 31) for all real property
located in the City. Assessed values are established by the County Assessment
Board at 33 1/3% of assumed market value. A revaluation of all property is
required to be completed no less than every four years. The last revaluation was
completed for the list on December 31, 1996, The assessed valye for the list of
December 31, 1996, upon which the 1996 ievy was based, was $841,148 209,
The estimated market value was $2,523,444,627, making the assessed value 33-
1/3% of the estimated actual value. In the year following the levy, the County
bills the property taxes in two installments, generally in May and August. The
taxes become delinquent approximately 40 days after the dates billed. The
County collects the taxes and remits them to the City.

The City is a home-ryle unit of government as defined by the State of lllinois
Constitution. Therefors, it is not subject to any Statutory taxing or general
obligation debt limits. The City's 1995 tax levy was extended at a rate of $1.5328
per $100 in assessed valuation for a total extension of $11,259,695. Coliections
of 99.59% of this total were received durin? the current year. The 1996 levy was
extended at a rate of $1.4351 for a total of $11,822, 119, Collections of this levy
will be received during the year ended April 30, 1998.

-68-



CITY OF BLOOMINGTON, ILLINOIS
Notes to Financial Statements - Continued

April 30, 1997

NOTE D - PROPERTY TAXES - CONTINUED

Property tax revenues of govermental funds are recorded on the “deferred
method”. Because of the long period of time between the levy date and the
receipt of tax distributions from the County Treasurer, the property taxes are not
"available” to finance current year expenditures. Since governmental funds are
on the modified accrual basis, their portion of the current year tax levy is recorded
as property taxes receivable and deferred tax revenue. However, Pension Trust
Funds are on the accrual basis so their property taxes are recognized as revenue
in the year of the levy.

NOTE E - FIXED ASSETS

A summary of changes in general fixed assets follows:

Balance Transfers/ Transters/ Balance
5/1/96 Additions Deletions 4/30/97
Land $ 2,508,927 $ - $ - $ 2,508,927
Buildings 10,247,602 6,955,650 - 17,203,252
Construction
in progress 2,345,207 - 2,345,207 -
Improvements
other than
buildirigss 1,479,021 - - 1,479,021
Machinery and
equipment 18,638,836 _ 2,114,399 996,547 19,756,688

$35219593 $_9,070.049 $_23.341.754 $40,94/.888

A summary of proprietary fund type property, plant and equipment at April 30,
1997, follows:

Internal
Enterprise Service Total
Land $ 3,368,993 $ - $ 3,368,993
Buildings 15,071,578 187,997 15,259,576
improvements other
than buildings 56,900,182 - 56,800,182
Machinery and equipment 3,487,757 145,247 3.633,004
78,828,511 333,244 79,161,755
Less: Accumulated
depreciation (28,094,397) (107.458) (28,201.855)

$50734.114 §__ 225,786 $.50,959.900

-69-



CITY OF BLOOMINGTON,

ILLINOIS

Notes to Financial Statements - Continued

April 30, 1997

NOTE F - LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

The following is a summary of changes in long-

ended April 30, 1997:

term debt of the City for the year

General Long-Tem Obligations

General Cther Obligations Entarmprise Funds
Chbtigation Bonds  Scheduied  Unschaduled Obtigation Bonds
{Tax Supported} Maturties Maturities Total {Revenue Suppored)
Balance at April 30, 1996 $ 34022219 § 101,060 $ 3422994 $_37,546273 § 8,129,500
Changes:
+ Additional agreements

with developers 1,075,000 1,075,000
Minimum payments to

developers elapsed - - (1,372,607} {1,372,807) -
Net change in unfunded

pension contributions - 49,183 49,183 -
Not changa in accurnulated

unpaid vacation

benefits . - 131,731 131,731 -
Bond proceeds 6,680,000 - - 6,680,000 -
Accrstion on zero

coupon bonds 370,708 - - 370,705 -
Additional othier debt . - - - -
Other dabt retired or

recognized as

current expenditures {2.178,048) {55,897) (2,233,945) {1,191,952}
Totai Changes 4,872,657 {55,897} {116,693} 4,700,067 {1,191,952)
Balance at April 30, 1887 § 38,894,876 $___ 45163 $__3,306,301 $_42,246.340 $ 4,937,548
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NOTE F - LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS - CONTINUED

Bonds payable at April 30, 1997, are comprised of the following individual issues:

Tax Supported Revenue Supported Total —
General Chligation Bonds:
$4,385,000 Street Construction
Market Square TIF and Central
Bloomington TIF Bonds due
December 1, 1998 to December 1,
2003, interast at 6.40 - 8.40% $ 2,480,000 § - $ 2,480,000
$2,000,000 Parking Lot Acquisition
' Bonds due January 1, 2008,
interast at 5.00% 2,000,000 - 2,000,000
$2,800,000 1989 Corporate Purpose
Bonds due December 1, 1998,
interest at 6.75 - 7.60% 875,000 - 875,000
$4,782,872 1991 Zero Coupon Corporate :
Purposa Bonds due Decaember 1,
2008, interest at 5.35 - 6.70%
face value $9,235,000, includes
accretion of $1,090,292 5,917,424 - 5.917,424
$10,000,000 1392 Corporate Purpose
Bonds due January 1, 2001,
intarest at 5.40 - 6.70% 1,607,452 4,937,548 6,545,000
$3,500,000 1993 Curporate Purpose
- Bonds due December 1, 2006,
- interast at 4.10 - 6.10% 3,020,000 - 3,020,000
o $4,965,000 1994 Refunding Bonds
due December 1, 2013,
P interast at 4.70 - 7.00% 4,665,000 - 4,665,000
$11,650,000 1995 Corporate Purpose
Bonds due December 1, 2010,
interest at 5.20 - 5.75% 11,650,000 - 11,850,000
$6,680,000 1996 Corporate Purpose
Bonds due December 1, 2010,

intarest at 4.70-6.20% 6,680,000 - 5,680,000
$ 38804878 § 4837548 § 43,832,424
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NOTE F - LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS - CONTINUED
Other iong-term obligations of the City at April 30, 1997, are as foliows:
Scheduled Maturities

Real estate instaliment purchase contracts:
Land for park development:

Due May 10, 1997, interest at 15% $ 43,478

Due May 1, 2000, interest at 10% 57,582
Less: Current maturities in Capital

Projects Fund (55,897}

$ 45 163

Unscheduled Maturities

Agreements with developers $_1.961518
Accumulated unpaid vacation benefits $__ 869321
Unfunded portion of required pension contributions:
Police Pension Fund $ 263,058
Fire Pension Fund 212,404

$___475.462

Vacation bensfits are paid from the same funds as the regular salaries of the
employees, primarily the General Fund.

The City has entered into several special agreements with deveiopers invoiving
rebates of sales tax and real estate tax revenues in excess of agreed upon floo
amounts. The details of various agreements are as follows: :

- The City will rebate to the developers of land at the intersection of Veterans
Parkway and College Avenue, the lesser of $26,250 or 50% of the sales tax
revenue generated by business on the property quarterly for ten years. The
minimum outlay of the City will be $1,050,000 over the ten year period. The
first business in the development opened in August, 1989. The outstanding

liability at April 30, 1997, is $236,250.
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NOTE F - LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS - CONTINUED

The City will rebate to the developers of land at the intersection of Veterans
Parkway and Route 150, the lesser of $35,000 or the incremental sales and
real estate tax revenue generated by businesses on the property annually. The
maximurn liability of the City is $262,500. The first payment of $35,000 was
made in fiscal year 1993. The outstanding liability at April 30, 1997 is $52,500.

The City will rebate to the redevelopers of a bank project in downtown
Bloomington, the cost of improvements based on the annual real estate
revenue resulting from the redevelopment. The maximum liability to the City is
$400,000. The outstanding liability at April 30, 1997, is $255,967.

The City will rebate to developers the cost of improvements for various
downtown projects. The maximum liability to the City for these projects is
$2,405,636. The outstanding liability at April 30, 1997, is $1,416,801

Outlays for the other agreements will be determined by the amount of development
that results; therefore, actual cash outlays cannot be determined at this time.

The annual requirements to amortize all bonds payable and other long-term
obligations (scheduled maturities) outstanding as of April 30, 1997, inciuding
interest payments of $18,157,744, are as follows:

Bonds Payable
Year Ended Tax Revenue Other Long-Term Obligations
April 30 Supported Supported {Scheduled Maturities) Total

1998 $ 4685908 § 1,506,337 § - $ 6,192,245
1999 5,584,458 1,514,522 18,177 7,117,157
2000 4,017,760 1,512,647 18177 5,548,584
2001 3,876,357 1,045,806 18,125 4,940,088
2002 3,564,557 - - 3,564,857
After 2002 34,672,700 - - 34,672,700
$ 56,401,740 § 5,579,112 $ 54479 § £2,035,331

The Debt Service Funds have a deficit fund balance of $275,092 at April 30, 1997.

There are also a number of limitations and restrictions coqt_ained in _thg various
bond indentures. The City is in compliance with all significant limitations and
restrictions.
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NOTE G - TAX INCREMENT FINANCING DISTRICTS

During 1986, the City adopted ordinances establishing tax increment financing
plans for two districts within City limits: Market Square and Central Bloomington.
These plans call for redevelopment of the areas per Section 8(a) of the Tax
increment Allocation Redevelopment Act in the State Statutes. Tax increment
financing aliows the City of Bloomington to collect incremental property and sales
taxes for redevelopment projects within the areas, and uses those revenues to pay
for specific redevelopment project costs. It also allows collection of incremental
property taxes from all taxing bodies having jurisdiction within the areas and
incremental sales taxes imposed by the City and the State of illinois that are
produced by businesses in the area.

Redevelopment agreements have been negotiated for both districts. Bonds were
issued in April 1987 to fund the costs of Market Square to be borne by the City.
The bonds issued totaled $5,440,000. Additional bonds were issued September 1,
1988 in the following amounts: Market Square - $1,800,000, and Central
Bloomington - $350,000. Incremental revenues from the taxes were received in the
year ended April 30, 1997, as foliows:

Market Square $ 467,472
Central Bioomington 478,049

NOTE H - PENSION AND RETIREMENT FUND COMMITMENTS

1. lHinois Municipal Ratirement Fund

a. Plan Description

The City contributes to the lllinois Municipal Retirement Fund
("IMRF"), an agent-multiple employer public empioyee retirement
system that acts as a common investment and administrative agency
for 2,679 local governments and school districts in lllinois. The City's
total payroll for the year ended December 31, 1996, was $21,312,749.
Of this amount, $12,436,723 in payroll eamings were reported to and
covered by the IMRF system.

All employees hired in positions that meet or exceed the prescribed
annual hourly standard must be enrolled in IMRF as participating
members.  Pension benefits vest after eight years of service.
Participating members who retire at or after age 60 with eight years of
credited service are entitled to an annual retirement benefit, payable
monthly for life, in an amount equal to 1-2/3% of their final rate of
earnings, for each year of credited service up to fifteen years, and 2%
for each year thereafter. IMRF aiso provides death and disability
benefits. These benefit provisions and all other requirements are
established by State statute.
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NOTE H - PENSION AND RETIREMENT FUND COMMITMENTS - CONTINUED

1.

Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund - Continued

a.

Plan Description - Continued

Panicipatin%‘members are required to contribute 4.5% of their annual
salary to IMRF. The City is required to contribute the remaining
amounts necessary to fund the System, using the actuarial funding
method specified by statute.

Related Party Transactions

There were no securities of the City or related parties included in the
System's assets.

Funding Status and Progress

The amount shown below as the “pension benefit obligation* is a
standardized disciosure measure of the present value of pension
benefits estimated to be payable in the future as a result of employee
service to date. The measure is intended to help users assess the
funding status of IMRF on a going-concern basis, assess progress
made in accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits when due, and
make comparisons among employers. The measure is the actuarial
piesent value of credited projected benefits prorated on service and is
;rblf‘jgpendent of the funding method used to determine contributions to
RF.

The pension benefit obligation was computed as part of an actuarial
valuation performed as of December 31, 1896. Significant actuarial
assumptions used in the valuation include (a) a rate of return on the
investment of present and future assets of 7.5% a year compounded
annually, (b) projected salary increases of 4.00% a year compounded
annually, attributable to inflation, (c) additional projected salary
increases ranging from .4% to 7.0% per year, depending on age and
service, attributable to seniority/merit, and (d) post-retirement benefit
increases of 3% annually.
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NOTE H'- PENSION AND RETIREMENT FUND COMMITMENTS - CONTINUED

1. Hlinois Municipal Retirement Fund - Continued

c. Funding Status and Progress - Continued

Total unfunded pension benefit obligation applicable to the City's employees
was $2,888,653 at December 31, 1996, determined as foliows:

Pension benefit obligation:
Terminated employees not
yet receiving benefits $ 1,486,320
Current employees:
Accumulated employee contributions
inciuding allocated investment

earnings 7,365,981
Employer-financed vested 14,333,885
Employer-financed nonvested 971890

Total pension benefit obligation 24,158,076
Net assets available for benefits 21.269.423
Unfunded pension benefit obligation $__ 2,888,653

The pension benefit obligation applicable to retirees and beneficiaries
currently receiving benefits is not included in the above schedule due to the
fact that this obligation was transferred from the City to IMRF as a whole
when the annuity became payable.

d. Actuarially Determined Contribution Requirements and Contributions Made

The IMRF funding policy provides for actuarially determined monthly
contributions at rates that will accumulate sufficient assets to pay benefits
when due without having to be increased for future generations of
taxpayers. The contribution rate for normal cost is determined using the
entry age normal actuarial funding method. IMRF used the level percentage
of payroll method to amortize the unfunded liability over a 36-year pericd.
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NOTE H - PENSION AND RETIREMENT FUND COMMITMENTS - CONTINUED

1.

llinois Municipal Retirement Fund - Continued

d.

Actuarially Datermined Contribution requirements and Contributions Made -
Continued

The contribution by the City to IMRF for calendar 1996 of $1,974,852 was
made in accordance with actuarially determined requirements computed
through an actuarial valuation performed as of December 31, 1894. The
contribution consisted of (a) $1,457,584 normal cost (11.72% of 1996
covered payroll); (b) $394,244 amortization of the unfunded actuarial
accrued liability (3.17% of 1996 covered payroll); (c) $46,016 death and
disability cost (.37% of 1996 covered payroil), and (d) $77,108 cost of
supplemental retirement benefit (62 of 1996 covered payroll). The
employer contributed $1,415299 (11.38% of 1996 covered payroll);
employees contributed $559,653 (4.5% of 1995 covered payroll).

Trend information

Trend information gives an indication of the progress made in accumulating
sufficient assets to pay benefits when due. Ten year trend information may
be found in Section f. For the three years ended 1994, 1995 and 1996,
respectively, available assets were sufficient to fund 64.52, 76.45, and
88.04 percent of the pension benefit obligation. Unfunded pension benefit
obligation represents 65.01, 45.92 and 23.23 percent of the annual payroil
for the participating members covered by IMRF for 1994, 1995 and 1996,
respectively. Showing unfunded pension benefit obligation as a percentage
of annual covered payroll approximately adjusts for the effects of inflation
for analysis purposes. In addition, for the three years ended 1994, 1985
and 1996, the employer's contributions to IMRF, all made in accordance
with actuarially determined requirements, were 1229, 11.56, and 11.38
percent, respectively, of annual covered payroll.

Digest of Changes

The actuarial assumptions used to determine the pension benefit obligation
for 1996 were changed due to the 1993-1995 Experience Study. The
principle changes were:

- Fewer members are expected to take refunds.

- More SLEP members are expected to retire.

- The inflation salary assumption was lowered to 4.0% from 4.25%. -
- Expected salary increases due to longevity were increased.
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NOTE H - PENSION AND RETIREMENT FUND COMMITMENTS - CONTINUED
2. Police and Fire Pension Plans
a. Plan Description - Continued

Police employees with at least 8 years but less than 20 years of credited
service, and firefighters with at least 10 years but less than 20 years of
credited service, may retire at or after age 60 and receive a reduced
retirement benefit. The monthly benefit of a covered employee who retired
with 20 or more years of service after January 1, 1977 shall be increased
upon the first day of the month following the first anniversary date of
retirement if 55 years of age or over at retirement date, or age 55 if it
occurs after the first anniversary of retirement, by 3% of the originally
granted pension for each full year that has elapsed since the pension began
and by an additional 3% of the originally grated pension amount each
January thereafter. Beginning with increases granted on or after July 1,
1993, the second and all subsequent automatic increases shall be
calculated as an additional 3% of the preceding year's pension amount
each January thereafter.

State mandated police and fire employee contributions are 9% and 8 1/4%
of base salary, respectively. If an employee leaves covered empioyment
with less than 20 years of service, accumulated employee contributions may
be refurided without accumulated interest. The City is required to contribute
the remaining amounts necessary to finance the Plan as actuarially
determined by an enrolled actuary. By the year 2020, the City's
contributions must accumulate to the point where the past service cost for
the Plans are fully funded. Administrative costs of the Plan are financed
through investment earnings. If an employee leaves covered employment
with less than 20 years of service, accumulated employee contributions may
be refunded without accumulated interest.

b. Accounting Policies and Investment Relationships

The financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting
in accordance with GASB Statement 25 for defined benefit plans. Plan
member contributions are recognized in the period in which the
contributions are due. Employer contributions are recognized when due
and the employer has made a formal commitment to provide the
contributions. Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and payable
in accordance with the terms of the Plan.

Investments are reported at fair value. Short-term investments are reported
at cost which approximates fair value. Securities traded on a national
exchange are valued at the last reported sales price.
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NOTE H - PENSICN AND RETIREMENT FUND COMMITMENTS - CONTINUED

2. Police and Fire Pension Plans - Continued

b. Accounting Policies and Investment Relationships - Continued

The following investments in a single organization represent 5% or more of
Plan net assets:

1997 1996
Police Pension
Preservation Plus 7 Year Annuity
issued by Nationwide Life
insurance Company $ 1,303,327 §$ 1,233,321
City of Bloomington Municipal Bonds 1,616,920 1,455,339

Big Edge Variable Annuity issued by
Phoenix Home Life Insurance Company 2,287,745 2,153,117

Fire Pension
Lincoin National Life Insurance Company 2,262,565 2,150,944
Protective Life Insurance Company 3,696,729 -

In November, 1994, the Government Accounting Standards Board {GASB)
issued Statement No. 25, "Financial Reporting for Defined Benefit Pension
Plans*. This Statement required that Plan assets be reported at fair value,
rather than at cost. In addition, this Statement established a new financial
reporting framework that resulted in significant changes to the financial
statements as well as the required supplementary information. The Plans
implemented this Statement for the year ended April 30, 1997, anc. have
restated all Plan assets to market value as of April 30, 1996, resulting in an
increase in net assets available for benefits of $142,684 and $52,680 for
the Police and Fire Pensions, respectively. These increases result in
restated net assets held in trust for pension benefits of $19,153,370 and
$20,145,449 as of April 30, 1996, for the Police and Fire Pensions,
respectively. The financial statements for the year ended April 30, 1996,
have been restated to reflect the reporting requirements of GASB 25.

. Actuarially Determined Employer Contribution Requirement and Employer

Contribution Made

To responsibly manage public pension arrangements, it is necessary to
assure both benefit security (progress made in accumulating sufficient
assets to pay benefits when due)} and taxpayer inter-period equity (employer
contributions from one period to the next in amounts that assure that each
successive year's taxpayers collectively pay their fair share of the pension-
related costs of government programs).
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NOTE H - PENSION AND RETIREMENT FUND COMMITMENTS - CONTINUED

2. Police and Fire Pension Plans - Continued

¢. Actuarially Determined Employer Contribution Requirement and Employer
Contribution Made - Continued

Assuring benefit security and taxpayer inter-period equity generally requires
(1) the formal establishment of a funding ob}ective that defines pension-
related taxpayer inter-period equity in terms of employer contributions that,
over time, remain level as a percentage of payroll, decrease as a
percentage of payroll, or increase as a percentage of payroll; and (2)
adherence to a funding policy providing for employer contributions in
accordance with actuarially determined employer contribution requirements.
To effectively assess benefit security and taxpayer inter-period equity, it is
necessary to examine historical trends, as explained below.

The funding policies of both the Police and Fire Pension Plans provide for
actuarially determined periodic contribution rates that, for individual
employees, accumulate assets gradually over time so that sufficient assets
will be available to pay benefits when due. The rates for both employee
groups as a whole tended to remain level as a percentage of annual
covered payroll. Contribution rates for normal cost are determined using
the entry age (level percent of pay)} cost method actuarial funding method.
The Systems used a level dollar method to amortize the unfunded liability
over a 40-year period.

The significant actuarial assumptions used to compute the actuarially
determined contribution requirements (as part of the May 1, 1996, actuarial
valuation) are as follows:

(a) The 1971 Group Annuity Mortality Tabie was used for the life
expectancy of participants.

(b) Average retirement age of 53 years.

(c) Rate of return on the investment of present and future assets of 7.5%
compounded annually.

(d) Projected salary incfeases of 5% compounded annually.
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NOTE H - PENSIGN AND RETIREMENT FUND COMMITMENTS - CONTINUED

5 Police and Fire Pension Plans - Continued

¢. Actuarially Determined Employer Contribution Requirement and Employer
Contribution Made - Continued

(e) The entry age (level percent of pay) cost method was used.

Police Fire
Doliars % of Pay Dollars % of Pay
Actuarially determined employer
contribution requirement:
Normal cost $ 815,598 19.9% & 776,531 24.0%
Amortization of unfunded
actuarial accrued liability 816,392 20.0% 669,665 20.7%
Total 1,631,990 39.9% 1,446,198 44.7%
Estimated employse contributions {368 252) (9.0%) {267,152) (8.3%)
Employer contributions $__1.263.738 30.8% $ 1179044 36.4%
Contributions made:
Employer . $ 1,000,680 245% §$ 966,640 29.9%
Employes 364 325 8.9% 263,384 8.1%

$__1.365.065 334% §__ 1230024 38.0%

d. Funding Status and Progress

The amounts shown below as "pension benefit obligations” are standardized
disclosure measures of the present value of pension benefits, adjusted for
the effects of projected salary increases and step-rate benefits, estimated to
be payabie in the future as a result of employee service to date. The
measure is intended to help users assess the funding status of the system
on a going-concern basis, assess progress made in accumulating sufficient
assets to pay benefits when due, and make comparisons among employers.
The measure is the actuarial present value of credited projected benefits
and is independent of the funding method used to determine contributions

to the funds.

The pension benefit obligations were computed in actuarial valuations
performed as of May 1, 1996.
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NOTE H - PENSION AND RETIREMENT FUND COMMITMENTS - CONTINUED

2. Police and Fire Pension Plans - Continued

The significant actuarial assumptions used in calculating the “pension
benefit obligation” at May 1, 1996, were as follows:

(a) The 1971 Group Annuity Mortality Table was used for life expectancy of
participants. .

(b) A rate of return on the investment of present and future assets of 7.5%
compounded annually.

(c) Projected salary increases of 5% compounded annually (attributable
3.0% to inflation and 2.0% to merit and seniority).

(d) The projected unit credit (service prorate) cost method was used.

(e) Projected post-retirement benefit increases of 3% compounded annually.

Police Fire

Pension benefit obligation: .
Retirees and beneficiaries

currently receiving benefits

and terminated employees

not yet receiving benefits $ 14,140,130 $ 14,021,988
Active participants:

Accumulated employee

contributions 2,746,704 2,340,029
Employer-financed benefits 8,706.872 10,596,862

Total pension benefit obligation 23,593,706 26,958,880
Net assets available for benefits 19,153,370 20,145 449
Unfunded pension benefit obligation $__7440336 $__6.813431

The concept of vesting is not clearly defined in lllinois State statutes.
Benefit accrual rates are delineated, but they do not assist in definitively
determining vesting status. As such, no detailed allocation can be

determined.
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NOTE H - PENSION AND RETIREMENT FUND COMMITMENTS - CONTINUED

2. Police and Fire Pension Plans - Continued

e. Trend information

To effectively assess benefit security, it is helpful to examine historical trend
information expressing (1) net assets available for benefits as a percentage
of the pension benefit obligation; and (2) the unfunded pension benefit
obligation as a percentage of annual covered payroll. Trend information on
these two standardized disclosure percentages provides a context and
approximately adjusts for the effects of inflation for purposes of assessing
benefit security.
Employer Contribution
As a Percentage of Covered Payroll

Police Fire
Year Ended Required Made Required Made
4/30/88 19.39 23.50 22.23 28.20
4/30/89 24.10 30.10 40.60 40.90
4/30/20 24.20 23.80 27.40 29.20
4/30/91 22.80 19.10 24.70 21.10
4/30/92 22.60 20.40 25.60 24.30
4/30/93 29.24 24.20 23.45 21.80
4/30/94 25.80 20.80 28.00 21.90
4/30/95 32.10 21.20 35.70 22.20
4/30/96 29.00 23.20 34.80 28.40
4/30/97 30.90 24.50 36.40 29.90

Standardized Disciosure Percentages
for Assessing Benefit Security

Police Fire

{1) (2) (3) {4)
May 1, 1987 N/A N/A N/A N/A
May 1, 1988 N/A N/A N/A N/A
May 1, 1989 73.10 134.10 79.80 138.20
May 1, 1980 73.30 141.00 80.10 141.70
May 1, 1991 74.30 137.70 80.80 127.20
May 1, 1992 74.10 147.90 78.90 145.80
May 1, 1993 74.10 160.50 78.50 153.60
May 1, 1994 70.40 197.00 73.30 212.30
May 1, 1985 72.50 166.64 74.30 206.30
May 1, 1996 72.00 181.80 74.70 210.40

The pension benefit obligation was computed for the first time at May 1,
1989. During the implementation period, required information is presented
for as many years as is available. Ten-year trend information will be

accumulated.
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NOTE H - PENSION AND RETIREMENT FUND COMMITMENTS - CONTINUED

2. Police and Fire Pension Plans - Continued

e. Trend Information - Continued

Police Pension Fund
Schedule of Revenue by Source

% of

Annuai Gain on
Mamber Employer Covered Investment Matured Total
April 3¢ Contributions _Contribution Payroll income Investments  Miscellansous _ Revenue
1988 3 212,191 § 507,821 21.2% $ 592,822 § - $ - $ 1,312834
1989 229,374 619,069 23.5% 847,705 - - 1,496,148
1980 239,926 435618 15.4% 784,865 - - 1,460,409
1991 261,688 587,565 20.4% 814,849 - - 1,664,092
1892 283,881 744,004 24.2% 891,875 - 963 2,020,723
1993 292,898 683,107 21.6% 766,041 - 22 1,742,068
1594 294,527 923,479 28.1% 842,752 - . 2,060,758
1995 349,553 1,006,486 . 25.5% 843,074 176,239 250 2,375,602
1996* 364,325 1,078,317 26.3% 1,481,218 - - 2,931,860
1997 390,085 1,142,043 26.3% 1,113,545 . - 2,645,683
Fire Pension Fund
Schedule of Revenue by Source
% of
Annual Gain (Loss)
Member Employer Covarad investment on Matured Total

April 30 Contributions _Contribution  _Payrolt Income Investments  Miscellaneous __ Revenus
1988 $ 166,855 $ 667,453 32.7% $ 759,869 § 20,635 § 100 § 1,814,912
1989 176,016 597,681 28.2% 894,302 - - 1,667,999
1990 178,816 467,536 21.0% 1,020,461 - - 1,666,813
1891 195,202 £79,025 2.7% 1,080,182 - - 1,834,409
1982 229,385 €79,530 24.7% 1,004,744 - - 1,913,669
1993 234,123 632,340 22.3% 923,391 - - 1,790,394
1994 242,613 891,636 30.8% 878,209 - - 2,012,458
1995 251,477 §71,382 31.3% 1,131,176 - - 2,354,035
1996* 263,384 1,055,875 32.6% 1,458,613 - - 2,775,872
1997 288,670 1,080,042 30.9% 1,096,143 - - 2,464,855

*GASB Statement 25 was applied to these years.
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NOTE H - PENSION AND RETIREMENT FUND COMMITMENTS - CONTINUED

2  Police and Fire Pension Plans - Continued

e, Trend Information - Continued

Police Pension Fund
Schedule of Expenses by Type

Retum Net Transfer
of Pension to Stats
Aggregate  Contributions of Miincis
Benafit Administrative to Terminated Retirement Total
April 30 Payment Expenses Members Systems Expenses
1988 $ 421,098 § 21,714 % 41507 § - $ 484,319
1889 475,178 20,647 2,032 8,225 506,082
1990 521,765 19,000 20,761 3,946 565472
1991 590,431 19,211 26,722 - 636,364
1992 631,686 17,728 7,640 . 657,054
1993 717,288 21,650 2,078 - 741,016
1994 837,678 30,268 19,720 oo 887,666
1995 940,736 29,752 - - 970,488
1998 1,084,792 31,249 6,958 - 1,102,898
1957 1,085,708 34,131 59,424 - 1,189,324
Fire Pension Fund
Scheduie of Expenses by Type
Retum Net Transfer
of Pension to State
Aggregate Contributions of filinols
Benefit Administrative to Tarminated Retirament Total
Aprit 30 Payment Expenses Members Systems Expenses
1988 $ 603710 § 8585 § - $ - $ 612,305
1989 616,623 10,006 - - 626,629
1990 658,493 11,360 - - 669,863
1991 789,018 21,880 - - 810,898
1992 815,522 12,872 4,240 - 832,634
1993 867,415 12,171 - - 875,586
1994 978,390 14,920 - - 993,310
1995 1,067,905 16,845 - - 1,084,750
1996 1,153,412 22,744 - - 1,178,156
1997 1,214,921 26,024 - - 1,240,945
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NOTE H - PENSION AND RETIREMENT FUND COMMITMENTS - CONTINUED

2. Police and Fire Pension Plans - Continued

e. Trend Information - Continued

Unfunded
Pension Benefit
Unfunded Obligation as
Net Assets Pension Pension Annual a Percantage
Valuation Available Benefit Percantage Benefit Covered of Covered
Year for Benefits Obligation Funded Obligation Payroll Payroll
Polica Pension Fund:
5/01/89 $ 10,070,419 $13,767.788 73.1% $ 38697366 $ 27573689 134.1%
5/01/90 10,965,356 14,950,226 73.3% 3,984,870 2,826,321 141.0%
5/01/91 11,993,084 16,146,315 74.3% 4,153,231 3,017,133 137.7%
5/01/92 13,602,567 18,368,562 74.1% 4,765,095 3,222,921 147.9%
5/01/93 14,603,619 19,712,162 74.1% 5,108,533 3,183,465 180.5%
5/01/94 15,778,711 22,398,746 70.4% 6,622,035 3,361,536 197.0%
5/01/85 17,324,510 23,896,454 72.5% 6,571,944 3,943,867 166.6%
5/01/96 19,153,370 26,593,706 72.0% 7,440,338 4,091,686 181.8%
Fire Pension Fund:
5/01/89 $ 12,192,308 $15270,135 79.8% $ 3077829 $ 2,226,967 138.2%
5£01/90 13,189,266 16,465,563 80.1% 3,276,297 2,311,629 141.7%
5/01/91 14212777 17,600,133 80.8% 3,387,356 2,663,163 127.2%
5/01/92 15,293,812 19,372,817 78.9% 4,079,008 2,797,428 145.8%
5/01/93 16,204,620 20,631,025 78.5% 4,426,405 2,882,148 153.6%
5/01/94 17,223,768 23,510,647 73.3% 6,286,879 2,961,082 212.3%
5/61/95 18,545,733 24,945,358 74.3% 6,399,625 3,101,725 206.3%
5/01/96 20,145,449 26,958,880 74.7% 6,813,431 3,238,204 210.4%
Trend information for other years was unavailabla,
Totai Covered Total
ALL PLANS Police Fire IMRF Payroll Payrolt
Coversd Payroll $_4001686 §__3,238204 $_12436723 §_ 19766613 $21,820442
Police Fire IMRF Total
Pension benefit obligation $ 26,583 706 §_26,958880 $ 24158076 $_77,7108662
Net assets available
for benefits $.19,153,370 $_20,14544% $_ 21 269 423 $_60.568242
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NOTE H - PENSION AND RETIREMENT FUND COMMITMENTS - CONTINUED

2. Police and Fire Pension Plans - Continued

The actuarial information contained in this report is as of May 1, 1996. The
pension funds have an actuarial report issued every two years to determine the
actuarial liability and the pension benefit obligation. The Pension Fund has the
actuary complete an update for the purpose of providing an actuarial liability to
be utilized for tax levy requirements and to provide projected pension benefit
obligation information required to be disclosed in the Notes to Financial
Statements for the years that a complete actuarial report is not issued.

The actuarial firm utilizes beginning-of-the-benefit-year information which
reflects projected personnel costs for the period of May 1, 1996 and 1995,
through April 30, 1997 and 1996, resulting in an actuarial liability and pension
benefit obligation as of the beginning of business for the fiscal year starting
May 1, 1996 and 1995. Since active participants of the Pension Funds {(current
employees of the City of Bloomington) receive annual salary increases from the
City as of May 1, the actuarial liability and pension benefit obligation reflect the
projected personnel cost for the peried of May 1, 1996 and 1995 through
April 30, 1997 and 1996. Because the beginning-of-the-year-benefit approach
is utilized by the actuarial firm, the assets of the Pension Fund as of close of
business on April 30, 1996 and 1995, are used to determine the unfunded
actéle}rgigl liahility and the unfunded pension benefit obligation as of May 1, 1996
an 5.

This financial report reflects the actuarial liability in accordance with the May 1,
1996, actuarial report issued by Hewitt Associates, and this liability has been
increased/decreased by operating revenue over (under) operating expenses
and by other changes in reserves for the years ended April 30, 1997 and 1996.

NOTE | - DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN

The City offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created in accordance
with Interna! Revenue Code Section 457. The International City Managers
Association Retirement Corporation administers the plan through a contractual
agreement with the City. The plan is available to all City employees and permits
them to defer a portion of their salary until future years.
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NOTE | - DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN - CONTINUED

The deferred compensation is not available to employees until termination,
retirement, death or unforeseeable emergency. All amounts of compensation
deferred under the plan, all property and rights purchased with those amounts, and
all income attributable to those amounts, property or rights are (until paid or made
available to the employee or other beneficiary) solely the property and rights of the
City (without being restricted to the provisions of benefits under the plan), subject
only to the claims of the City's general creditor. Participant's rights under the plan
are equal to those of general creditors of the City in an amount equal to the fair
market value of the deferred account for each participant.

It is the opinion of the City's Corporation Counsel that the City has no liability for
losses under the plan, but does have the duty of due care that would be required
of an ordinary prudent investor. The City has no intention to use the assets to
satisfy the claims of general creditors in the future.

Note J - LEASES

The City of Bloomington leases a total of 266 residential lots to various individuals
under agreements expiring in 2032 and 2091. Other long-term agreements involve
a lake marina which is leased through April 15, 2017 and a parking area property
which is leased indefinitely. In addition, certain- parking lots, parking garage
spaces and various other properties are rented on a monthly or other short-term
basis. All of these agreements are accounted for as operating leases.

A total of $597,493 in lease and rental revenues was received by the City during
the fiscal year ended Aprii 30, 1997. Of this total, the Parking Fund received
$535,604 which relates primarily to monthly rentals. The foliowing is a schedule by
years of minimum future rentals due to the City under noncancellable |ease
agreements in effect as of April 30, 1997

Fiscal year ending April 30,

1998 $ 24,155
1999 24,875
2000 25,625
2001 26,400
2002 27,200
Later Years __ 816,000
$__ 944925

The City of Bloomington is the lessee under various agreements which are
accounted for as operating leases. These leases relate primarily to equipment
which is leased or rented on a short-term basis. The City's minimum future lease
and rental obligations under agreements in effect at April 30, 1987, are not
material.
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NOTE K - ENTERPRISE ZONE

In December 1984, the City of Bioomington entered into an intergovernmental
agreement with the Town of Normal and County of McLean for the designation of
a specified area located partly within the City, partly within the Town and partly
within the unincorporated County boundaries as an Enterprise Zone. The
Enterprise Zone was approved by the State of lllinois, and it was established for a
period extending no later than December 31, 1998. The parties agreed to make
available certain tax incentives and target certain programs within the Enterprise
Zone in order to facilitate the successful development of the area.

The City and the Town subsequently entered into a Metro-Zone Master Agresment
governing the development of a specified portion of the Enterprise Zone. This
agreement and related intergovernmental agreements between the two
municipalities provide for the annexation and acquisition of land, construction of
infra-structural improvements, delivery of general municipal services, payment for
such improvements and services, and apportionment of revenues generated from
activities within the area. With certain exceptions, the City and Town agreed to
share equally the costs and revenues related to the Metro-Zone.

The City contributed $1,300,000 in 1986 to the Town of Normal for the acquisition
of land located in the Metro-Zone. The City also entered into a contract of
$589,000 for design of water system improvements reiated to development of the

‘Enterprise Zone, a contract of $13,313,939 for a new treatment plant and contracts

of $1,884,818 for constructing watermains. The primary sources of funding these
and other futura Enterprise Zone development costs are the City's 1985 Corporate
Purpoze Bond issue and a $6,100,000 Build linois grant which has now been fully
expended.

NOTE L - EQUIPMENT PURCHASE AND REPLACEMENT FUNDS

The Equipment Purchase and Replacement Fund and Bioomin‘gton Public Library
Equipment Replacement Fund were established as Special Revenue Funds to
accumulate monies for the replacement of vehicles and other equipment at
scheduled dates. Transfers are made each year to these funds from the General
Fund and Bloomington Public Library Maintenance and Operation Fund based
upon one year's depreciation using the estimated useful life of the vehicles and
equipment without consideration for trade-in values. These transfers are recorded
as operating transfers of the respective funds. An equipment purchase and
replacement fund has also been established by the John M. Scott Health Care
Trust, and it is handled in a similar manner. Assets purchased are reflected in the
General Fixed Asset Account Group. :
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NOTE L - EQUIPMENT PURCHASE AND REPLACEMENT FUNDS - CONTINUED

The City has also established equipment purchase and replacement accounts
within the Enterprise Funds. These accounts were set up to provide for the future
purchase and replacement of vehicles and support equipment. Yearly transfers
are made to each of these accounts and are based on a calculation of yearly
vehicle depreciation. Assets purchased by these accounts are capitalized within
the respective Enterprise Funds.

NOTE M - SEGMENTS OF ENTERPRISE ACTIVITIES
There are three services provided by the City which are financed by user charges--

Water, Sewer and Parking. The key financial data for the year ended April 30,
1997, for those services are as follows:

Water Sewsr Parking Total

Operating Revenues $__ 9633902 $__ 1925009 § §53715 §__ 12212626
Operating Expenses: _

Depreciation $ 1,385491  § 427867 § 175484 § 1,988,842

Cther 4,670,552 819,349 630,960 6,120,861

$ 6i056l043 $ 1 I247!21 6 § 806444 $ 8,109,703

Operating income (i0s$) $ 3577858 § 677,793 § (152728) $ 4,102,923
Net operating transfers in {out} $ (227621) $ (170.330) $ $ {397,951)
Nat income (joss) $ 3,193,256 $ 607448 § {81,815 $ 3,718,889
Total assets §__45643730 §__ 8462321 §_ 3202565 §__ 57328625
Net working capital (daficit) $ 3950094 § 752,446 $ (97,379) $_ 4,615,061
Long-term liabiiities, gross §___ 4848250 § 289289 % - $__ 4937548
Total fund equity $ 40476681 $ 8,123|021 $ 3,056,685 $__ 51656387
Acquisition of property,

plant and equipment $__ 2867202 $__ 664714 $__ 280870 §__ 3814786
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NOTE N - BLOOMINGTON-NORMAL PUBLIC TRANSIT SYSTEM

The Transit System is a joint venture between the City of Bloomington and the
Town of Normal for the purpose of engaging in a wide variety of activities
necessary for operation of a transit system within the corporate limits of the two
%;_ovemmental entities. The goveming Board is divided equally between City and
own representatives. The System is funded primarily throu?h Federal and State
?ovemmental assistance. Other revenue sources include fares and contractual
ees. Any deficits incurred by the System are to be made up by the City and Town
in accordance with a prescribed formula. The System's financial activities, other
than operating subsidies and advances from the City, are not included in the City's
reporting entity.

Summarized financial information of the Bloomington-Normal Public Transit
System, for the year ended June 30, 1997, is presented below.

Balance Sheet at June 30, 1997

Current Assets:

Cash and investments $ 2,313,809
Accounts receivable 385,257
Inventory _ 8,565
Prepaid expenses 40,791
Total Current Assets $ 2,748,422
Property and Equipment - net 2,481,473
Total Assets $__5.229.895

Current Liabilities:
Advances from Town of Normal

and City of Bioomington $ 120,280
Accounts payable, accrued _
expenses and other 2,361,974
Total Current Liabilities $ 2,482,254
Deferred revenues 26,068
Fund Equity:
investment in fixed assets 2,481,473
Restricted - self-insurance program 80,684
Unrestricted 159,415
Total Fund Equity 2,721,572
Total Liabilities and Fund Equity $__5,229,895
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NOTE N - BLOOMINGTON-NORMAL PUBLIC TRANSIT SYSTEM - CONTINUED
Operations for Year Ended June 30, 1997

Revenues:
Operating - primarily fares $ 356,946
Federal funding 392,222
State of lllinois grants and reimbursements 1,080,009
City of Bloomington and Town of Normal subsidies 473,783
Nonoperating 31,268
Total Revenues 2,334,228
Expenditures 2,330,231
Excess of Revenues over Expenditures 3,997
Fund Balance - Beginning of Year 236,102
Fund Balance - End of Year $___ 240,099

The City of Bloomington paid $305,526 in operating subsidies and advances o the
System during the year ended April 30, 1997. These payments are reflected in the
accompanying financial statements as general government expenditures of the
Special Revenue Funds (Utility Tax Fund).

Complete financial statements for the System may be obtained at the entity's
administrative offices located at 104 East Oakland Avenue, Bloomington, lilinois.
NOTE O - DEFICIT FUND BALANCES

Ten individual funds have deficit fund balances or retained earnings as of April 30,
1997, in the amounts reflected below:

Deficit
Fund Balance
llinois Municipal Retirement $ 1,337,882
Motor Fuel Tax 841,832
Cops Ahead 26,258
1988 Bond Redemption 1,629
Market Square Bond Redemption 1,812,322
Market Square TIF Redevelopment 595,467
Capital Project - Police Facility 643,902
Central Supply 17,149
Judgment 4,117,438
Flex Cash 10,853
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NOTE O - DEFICIT FUND BALANCES - CONTINUED

The lilinois Municipal Retirement, Judgment, and Motor Fuel Tax Funds will
continue in deficit positions until additional tax revenues are received. The Central
Supply Fund will continue in_a deficit position_ until additional transfers are
budgeted from other funds. The Cops Ahead Fund will continue in a deficit
position until additional grant money is received. The Flex Cash Fund will continue
in a deficit position until additional amounts are withheld from employee payroll.
The Market Square Bond issue has been refunded to take advantage of lower
interest rates. Bonds were issued in June, 1996, to finance the Police Facility
Project. The deficit in this fund will ultimately be financed by the General Fund.

NOTE P - EXPENDITURES IN EXCESS OF BUDGET

Various individua! funds had expenditures and other financing uses for the year
ended April 30, 1997, in excess of budgeted amounts as follows:

Excess Expenditures

Fund Balance Percentage

[llincis Municipal Retirement $ 240,673 15.3%
Sister City Program 1,939 4.7%
Audit 4,596 15.8%
Library Maintenance and Operation 30,030 1.4%
Task Force "8" Grant 20,200 26.5%
Drug Enforcement 10,337 41.3%
Rehabilitation Escrow 135,125 54.1%
Commaercial Rehabilitation 284,000 473.3%
Residential Rehabilitation 130,254 43.8%
General Bond and interest 123,297 3.5%
1988 Bond Redemption 9,291 2.8%
Main Street Parking Bond Redemption 200 0.2%
Market Square Bond Redemption 2,532 -0.4%
Central Bloomington Bond Redemption 1,700 4.1%
Capital Improvements 1,112,080 56.6%
Flex Cash 29,243 25.4%
Smith Trust - 324,083 -

These over-expenditures result primarily from expenditures incurred during the final
month of the fiscal year. These expenditures were not originally envisioned at the
time the budget was adopted, but they have all been subsequently approved by
the City Council. The City had sufficient funds available to finance all over-
expenditures. The City's Corporation Counsel has advised that all expenditures
made during the year ended April 30, 1997, were legally perm issible.
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CITY OF BLOOMINGTON, ILLINOIS
Notes to Financial Statements - Continued

April 30, 1997

NOTE Q - CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

There are several pending civil rights lawsuits in which the City is invoived.
However, the Corporation Counsel advises that all of these claims appear to be
adequately covered by insurance and, therefore, would not materially affect the
financial statements of the City.

NOTE R - INDUSTRIAL REVENUE DEBT ISSUES

The City of Bloomington has five currently outstanding industrial revenue debt
issues as follows:

Qriginal Principal
Total Balance at
Description Principal April 30, 1997

Westminster Village $ 7.600,000 $ 4,433,993
Kroger - economic development revenue

bonds, Series A 2,800,000 1,900,000
Snyder Retail and Warehouse Center

Project - industrial revenue bond 2,000,000 812,269
A.Y. McDonald Supply Co., Inc. Project -

Industriz! project revenue bonds 600,000 232,013
Chestnut Health Systems, Inc. Project -

Industrial revenue bonds 1,000,000 669,977

The debt obligations are collateralized by the properties constructed with the
proceeds, and they were assigned by the City to various financial institutions. The
City of Bloomington has not incurred any direct or contingent liabilities as a result
of these transactions.



CITY OF BLOOMINGTON, ILLINOIS
Notes to Financial Statements - Continued

April 30, 1997

NOTE S - INTERFUND RECEIVABLES/PAYABLES

The detail of Interfund Receivables/Payables are as follows:

Receivable Payable

General $ 2875924 § 152,406
fllinois Municipal Retirement 6,600 1,268,000
Judgment 3,700,000
Utility Tax 751,811 -
Motor Fuel Tax 1,066 1,128,165
Enterprise Zone 350,000 -
Library Maintenance and Operation 82 725,175
Library Equipment Replacement 205,000 -
Cops Ahead - 32,652
Rehabilitation Escrow 44,300 26,000
Commercial Rehabilitation Escrow 40,000 -
Residential Rehabilitation Escrow 26,263 118,892
Community Development 54,956 36,045
General Bond and interest 62,325 -
1988 Bond Redemption - 1,800
1995 Southwest Bond Redemption 73,392 -
Market Square Bond Redemption - 1,816,365
Capital improvements 720,549 36,033
1988 Street Bond Construction 129,000 -
Market Square TIF Redevelopment - 526,096
1991 Southeast Improvement Bond - 23,171
Equipment Furchase and Replacement 3,366,095 730
1995 Southwest Development - 73,392
Central Bloomington TIF Redevelopment 146,243 4,808
Capital Project - Police Facility - 691,617
Water 484,879 -
Sewer 84,631 4,043
Parking - 100,000
Central Garage Service 20,274 242,446
Central Supply - 19,149
Employee Group Health Care 1,250,000 -
Flex Cash - 10,853
Library Working Cash 115,000 -
Smith Trust - 22
J.M. Scott Health Care - 540

$_10.808.400 $_10,808.400
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CITY OF BLOOMINGTON, ILLINOIS
Notes to Financial Statements - Continued

April 30, 1997

NOTE T - RISK MANAGEMENT

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and
destruction of assets, errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural
disasters.

Pursuant to Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 10,
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Risk Financin% and Related Insurance
Issues, the Employee Group Health Care and Judgment Funds have been reported
as internal service funds.

The Employee Group Health Care Fund accounts for the self-funded health plan
with the third party administration being handled through Blue Cross Blue Shield of
llinois.

Prior to October 1, 1995, the Judgment Fund accounted for and financed its other
uninsured risks of loss. The St. Paul Fire and Marine Company is the third party
administrator for these claims. As of April 30, 1997, claims paid out of the
Judgment Fund did not exceed the coverage provided.

On October 1, 1995, the City established the Central lllinois Risk Pooling Authority
(CIRPA) (a blended internal service fund) pursuant to the provisions of the lllinois
Compiled Statutes. CIRPA is a separate legal entity. Claims incurred prior to
October 1, 1995, will be paid out of the Judgment Fund with claims after this date
being paid by CiRPA.

The City (pricr to October 1, 1995) and CIRPA (subsequent to October 1, 1995)
have purchased commercial insurance for coverage in excess of the self-insured
reserve limits and for all other risks of loss. During the current fiscal year,
coverage was increased in most areas.

The following City funds paid premiums to CIRPA during April 30, 1997: General,
Central Garage and Judgment Fund. Premium payments to CIRPA are accounted
for as current year expenditures/expenses in the financiai statements of the City.

The City establishes claim liabilities based on estimates of the ultimate cost of
claims that have been reported but not settled, and claims that have been incurred
but not reported (IBNR). The claims liability is based on the requirements of GASB
No. 10, which requires that a liability for claims be reported if the information prior
to the issuance of the financial statements indicates that a liability has been
incurred at the date of the financial statements and the loss can be reasonably
estimated. The following represents changes in the liabilities for the year:
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CITY OF BLOOMINGTON, ILLINOIS
Notes to Financial Statements - Continued

April 30, 1997

NOTE T - RISK MANAGEMENT - CONTINUED

Employee Central lllinois
Group Health Judgment Risk Pocling
Care Fund Authority

Liability claims at May 1, 1996  $ 371,981 § 854627 §$ 375000

Current year claims and
changes in estimates 1,687,439 101,106 736,946

Claim payments/recoveries (1,799.010) (511,481) (263,946)
Liability claims at April 30, 1997  § 260,410 $ 444252 $ 848.000

(a) The liability for the Judgment Fund has been reported in the General Long-
Term Obligations Account Group in prior years.

NOTE U - PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT

During 1996, Central lllinois Risk Pooling Authority determined that the reserve for
claims payabie was incorrectly reported at December 31, 1995. The reserve was
overstated by $249,548, which resulted in expenditures being overstated by the
same amount. Beginning fund balance has been restated to reflect this prior
period adjustment.
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SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION -
COMBINING INDIVIDUAL FUND AND
ACCOUNT GROUP STATEMENTS AND SCHEDULES
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GENERAL FUND

A fund used to account for aif transactions of a governmental unit which are not

accounted for in another fund.
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CITY OF BLOOMINGTON, ILLINOiS
General Fund
Balance Sheet
April 30, 1997 and 1996

ASSETS
1997
Cash 3 182,369
Investments 34,596
Receivables
Taxes - current levy 4,179,245
Accounts 92,650
Town of Normal 34,594
Due from other funds 2,875,924
Total Assets $ 7,399,378
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities
Vouchers payable $ 900,682
Intergovermnmental payable 15,400
Due to other funds 152,406
Deferred revenue
Taxes 4,179,245
Other 362
Total Liabilities 5,248,095
Fund Balance
Reserved for encumbrances 477,422
Unreserved — undesignated 1,673,861
Total Fund Balance 2,151,283

Total Liabilities
and Fund Balance $ 7,399,378
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1996

221,801
34,703

4,049,379
62,569
42,596

1,266,133

5,677,181

466,544
9,875
179,560

4,049,379
247

4,705,705

211,809
759,567

971,476

5,677,181




CITY OF BLOOMINGTON, ILLINOIS
General Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance

Year Ended April 30, 1997 and 1996

1997 1996
Revenues
Taxes $ 21,903,337 $ 19,768,303
Licenses and permits 812,797 767,316
Intergovernmental 3,669,438 3,291,176
Charges for services 1,980,026 1,986,740
Fines and forfeits 389,501 327,074
Interest 594,164 651,499
Miscellaneous 661,304 434,956
Total Revenues 30,010,567 27,227,064
Expenditures
General government 5,392,044 4,456,933
Public safety 11,205,848 10,394,582
Highways and street 3,633,099 3,594,797
Sanitation 3,094,610 3,029,661
Culture and recreation 3,991,239 3,492,954
Total Expenditures 27,216,840 24,968,927
Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over expenditures 2,793,727 2,258,137
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Operating transfers in 2,107,977 964,000
Operating transfers out (3,721,897) (3,643,521)
Total Other Financing
Sources (Uses) (1,613,820 (2,679,521)
Exess (deficiency) of revenues
and other financing sources
over expenditures and
other financing uses 1,179,807 (421,384)
Fund Balance at Beginning of Year 971,476 1,392,860
Fund Balance at End of Year $ 2,161,283 $ 971,476
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Funds established to account for revenues derived from specific taxes or other
earmarked revenue sources. A special revenue fund may be required for financing

either current operating expenditures, capital outlays or other expenditures.
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ILLINOIS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT FUND

A fund supported by tax revenues for the purpose of setting aside funds for support of
retirement for employees under the IHlinois Municipal Retirement Program.

MOTOR FUEL TAX FUND

A fund supported by motor fuel tax funds from the State of lllinois and private property
contributions for the purpose of construction and improvement of streets.

UTILITY TAX FUND

A fund supported by revenues collected for utility tax. The fund provides monies for
all funds as required by the budgst.

HOTEL/MOTEL TAX FUND

A fund established to properly account for collections of a 1% room occupancy tax.
The monies are transferred to the Tourism Bureau of the McLean County Economic
Development Council for use in attracting tourism to the Bloomington-Normal area.

SPECIAL OLYMPICS AND RECREATION FUND

A fund to account for the activities of the Special Olympics and Recreation program.

BOARD OF ELECTIONS FUND
A fund supported by tax revenues to provide for the Election Commission expenses.
The expenses were originally recorded in the General Fund.

SISTER CITY PROGRAM FUND

A fund to account for activities of maintaining a relationship with the City of
Asahigawa, Japan. The activities include foreign exchange students and continual
communications.

ENTERPRISE ZONE FUND
A fund established to properly account for the City's shares of revenues and
expenditures pursuant to various intergovernmental agreements with the Town of
Normal relating to the development and provision of municipal services for a State-
designated Enterprise Zone area.
AUDIT FUND
éfund supported by tax revenues to provide for an annual audit of the records of the
ity.
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BLOOMINGTON PUBLIC LIBRARY MAINTENANCE AND OPERATION FUND

A fund supported primarily by tax revenues and supplemented by rentals, fees and
other miscellanscus revenue to provide library services to the citizens of the City.

BLOOMINGTON PUBLIC LIBRARY PROJECT PLUS GRANT FUND
A fund established to account for a grant of Federal funds administered by the State

of lllinois. The grant was used to establish library services in unserved areas of
Bloomington, Dale, Downs and Old Town Townships.

BLOOMINGTON PUBLIC LIBRARY EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT FUND

A fund established to accumulate monies for the timely replacement of library
equipment which are recorded as general fixed assets of the governmental unit.

COPS AHEAD

A fund established to account for grant revenues to fund police salaries.

TASK FORCE "6" GRANT FUND

A fund to account for a grant from the Federal government and matching funds from
drug-related property seizures used to expand multi-jurisdictional narcotics units within
the State of Illinois.

DRUG ENFORCEMENT FUND

A fund established to account for police department revenues from drug raids.

REHABILITATION ESCROW FUND
A fund to loan community development grant monies to homeowners in escrow while

contractors are rehabilitating the homeowner's property. Upon completion of the
project, the homeowners co-sign release of the monies to the contractor.

COMMERCIAL REHABILITATION ESCROW FUND

A revolving fund designed to provide low interest loans to commercial businesses in
the commercial business district to improve their business establishments.

RESIDENTIAL REHABILITATION ESCROW FUND

A revolving fund designed to provide low interest loans to residential homeowners
within the Community Development program.
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COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT FUND

A federally-funded block grant program designed to assist low and moderate income
families and eliminate sium and blight conditions.
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CITY OF BLOOMINGTON, ILLINOIS
Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund
Balance Sheet
April 30, 1997 and 1996

1996

5,780

1,570,550
8,010

1,584,340

73,696
1,525,000
1,570,550

ASSETS
1997
Cash $ 976
Receivables
Taxes — current levy 1,633,426
Due from other funds 6,600
Total Assets $ 1,641,002
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities
Vouchers payable $ 77,458
Due to other funds 1,268,000
Deferred revenue — taxes 1,633,426
Total Liabilities 2,978,884

Fund Balance
Unreserved — undesignated (1,337,882)

3,169,246

(1,584,906)

Total Liabilities
and Fund Balance $ 1,641,002

1,584,340
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CITY OF BLOOMINGTON, ILLINOIS
Motor Fuei Tax Fund
Balance Sheet
April 30, 1997 and 1996

1996

3,393
1,384,069

83,141

1,470,603

1,207,092
263,511

1,470,603

ASSETS
1997
Cash $ 55,158
Investments 112,690
Receivables
State of lllinois 117,419
Due from other funds 1,066
Total Assets $ 286,333
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities
Due to other funds $ 1,128,165
Fund Balance
Reserved for encumbrances 1,002,030
Unreserved — undesignated (1,843,862)
Total Fund Balance (841,832)
Total Liabilities
and Fund Balance $ 286,333

1,470,603
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Cash

Investments

Receivables
Accounts

Due from other funds

Total Assets

CITY OF BLOOMINGTON, ILLINOIS
Utility Tax Fund
Balance Sheet
Aprit 30, 1997 and 1996

1996

ASSETS
1997
$ 4937
283,671
20,998
751,811

181,070
442,643

20,998
751,811

$ 1,061,417

1,396,522

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

7,110
1,388,412

1,396,522

Liabilities
Vouchers payable $ 12,284
Fund Balance
Reserved for encumbrances 3,974
Unreserved — undesignated 1,045,159
Total Fund Balance 1,049,133
Total Liabilities
and Fund Balance $ 1,061,417

1,396,522
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CITY OF BLOOMINGTON, ILLINOIS
Hotel / Motel Tax Fund
Balance Sheet
April 30, 1997 and 1996

1996

ASSETS
1997
Cash $ 14,950
Total Assets $ 14,850

8,456

9,456

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities
Vouchers payable 3 -

Fund Balance
Unreserved — undesignated 14,950

9,456

Total Liabilities
and Fund Balance $ 14,950

9,456
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CITY OF BLOOMINGTON, ILLINOIS
Special Olympics and Recreation Fund
Balance Sheset
April 30, 1997 and 1996

ASSETS
1997
Cash $ 82,515
Total Assets 3 82,515

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities
Vouchers payable $ 4,803

Fund Balance
Unreserved — undesignated 77,712

Total Liabilities
and Fund Balance $ 82,515
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1996

38,506

38,506

3,831

34,675

38,506
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CITY OF BLOOMINGTON, ILLINOIS
Board of Elections Fund
Balance Sheet
April 30, 1997 and 1996

1996

ASSETS
1997
Cash $ 27,682
Total Assets $ 27,682

51

51

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

7,063

7,063

406
(7,418)

Liabilities
Vouchers payable $ 644
Due to other funds -
Total Liabilities 644
Fund Balance
Reserved for encumbrances 426
Unreserved — undesignated 26,612
Total Fund Balance 27,038

(7,012)

Total Liabilities
and Fund Balance $ 27,682

51
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CITY OF BLOOMINGTON, ILLINOIS
Sister City Program Fund
Balance Sheet
April 30, 1997 and 1996

1996

28,495

ASSETS
1997
Cash 3 20,474
Total Assets $ 20,474

28,485

i JABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities
Vouchers payable $ 2,170

Fund Balance
Unreserved — undesignated 18,304

28,488

Total Liabilities
and Fund Balance $ 20,474

28,495
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CITY OF BLOOMINGTON, ILLINOIS
Enterprise Zone Fund
Balance Sheet
April 30, 1997 and 1996

1996

ASSETS
1997
Cash $ 28,147
investments 210,000
Due from other funds 350,000
Total Assets 3 588,147

8,657
360,000
200,000

568,657

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

Fund Balance
Unreserved — undesignated $ 588,147

568,657

Totai Liabilities
and Fund Balance $ 588,147
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CITY OF BLOOMINGTON, ILLINOIS
Audit Fund
Baiance Sheset
April 30, 1997 and 1996

ASSETS
1997 1996
Cash $ 9,352 $ 7,396
Receivables
Taxes — current levy 31,291 30,001
Total Assets $ 40,643 $ 37,397
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities
Vouchers payabie $ 4,500 $ -
Deferred reveriue — taxes 31,291 30,001
35,791 30,001
Fund Baiance
Reserved for encumbrances 29,155 27 842
Unreserved — undesignated (24,303} {20,446)
Total Fund Balance 4,852 7,396
Total Liabilities
$ 40,643 $ 37,397

and Fund Balance
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CITY OF BLOOMINGTON, ILLINOIS

Bloomington Public Library — Maintenance and Operation Fund

Balance Sheet
April 30, 1997 and 1996

1996

49,785

1,601,304
48
49,853

1,790,990

663
53,203
30,096

1,691,304

ASSETS
1997
Cash $ 360,840
Investments 529,427
Receivables
Taxes — current levy 1,800,141
Accounts 85
Due from other funds 92
Total Assets $ 2,690,585
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities
Cash overdraft $ -
Vouchers payable 139,269
Due to other funds 725,175
Deferred revenue
Taxes 1,800,141
Total Liabilities 2,664,585

Fund Balance
Unreserved — undesignated 26,000

1,775,266

15,724

Total Liabilities
and Fund Balance $ 2,690,585

1,790,980
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CITY OF BLOOMINGTON, ILLINOIS
Project Plus Grant Fund
Balance Sheet
April 30, 1997 and 1996

1996

ASSETS
1997
Cash $ 11,590
Due from other funds -
Total Assets $ 11,590

11,590

11,880

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

Fund Balance
Unreserved — undesignated 3 11,590

11,590

Total Liabilities
and Fund Balance $ 11,580

11,590
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CITY OF BLOOMINGTON, ILLINOIS
Bloomington Public Library — Equipment Replacement Fund
Balance Sheet
April 30, 1997 and 1996

ASSETS

1997 1996

Cash $ 45,278 $ -
[nvestments - 242 000
Due from other funds 205,000 - 5,795
Total Assets $ 250,278 $ 247,795

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities

Vouchers payable $ - $ 26,015

Fund Balance

Unreserved — undesignated 250,278 221,780

Total Liabilities
and Fund Balance $ 250,278 $ 247 795
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CITY OF BLOOMINGTON, ILLINOIS

Cops Ahead Fund
Balance Sheet

April 30, 1997 and 1996

Cash

Total Assets

1896

ASSETS
1897
$ 7,370
$ 7,370

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

Liabilities
Vouchers payable
Due to other funds

Fund Balance
Unreserved — undesignated

Total Liabilities
and Fund Balance

22,365

22,365

(22,365)

$ 976
32,652
33,628
(26,258)
$ 7,370
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CITY OF BLOOMINGTON, ILLINOIS
Task Force "6" Grant Fund
Balance Sheet
Aprii 30, 1997 and 1996

1996

ASSETS
1997
Cash $ 36,471
Receivables 9,980
Total Assets $ 46,451

71,001

71.001

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities
Vouchers payable $ 147

Fund Balance
Unreserved - undesignated 46,304

Totzi Liabilities
and Fund Balance $ 46,451

71,001

71,001
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CITY OF BLOOMINGTON, ILLINOIS
Drug Enforcement Fund
Balance Sheet
Aprif 30, 1997 and 1996

1996

18,256

ASSETS
1997
Cash $ 17,403
Total Assets $ 17,403

18,256

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities
Vouchers payable $ -

Fund Balance
Unreserved — undesignated 17,403

600

17,656

Total Liabilities
and Fund Balance $ 17,403

18,256
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CITY OF BLOOMINGTON, ILLINOIS
Rehabilitation Escrow Fund
Balance Sheet
April 30, 1997 and 1996

1996

8,619
44 300

ASSETS
1997
Cash $ 33,714
Due from other funds 44 300
Total Assets $ 78,014

52,919

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

Liabilities
Vouchers payabie ' $ -
Due to other funds 26,000

8,500

Totai Liabilities 26,000

Fund Balance
Reserved for rehabilitation programs 52,014

8,500

44,419

Total Liabilities
and Fund Balance $ 78,014

52,919
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CITY OF BLOOMINGTON, ILLINOIS
Commercial Rehabilitation Escrow Fund
Balance Sheet
April 30, 1997 and 1996

ASSETS
1997
Cash $ 38,945
Receivables

Loans, net of allowance for
uncollectibles of $0 and

$40,000 in 1997 and 1996 8,599

Due from other funds 40,000

Total Assets $ 87,544

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

Fund Balance
Reserved for rehabilitation
programs 3 87,544

Total Liabilities
and Fund Balance $ 87.544
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1996

34,832

300,386
40,000

375,218

375,218

375,218
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CITY OF BLOOMINGTON, ILLINOIS

Residential Rehabilitation Escrow Fund

Balance Sheet

Aprit 30, 1997 and 1996

Cash
Savings accounts
Receivables
Miscellaneous
Loans, net of allowance for
uncollectibles of $115,000
$75,000 in 1997 and 1996
Due from other funds
Properties held for rehabilitation

Total Assets

ASSETS

1997

71,407
1,228

1,867,059
26,263
170,650

1996

92,845
1,872

39
1,588,309

841
120,550

2,136,607

1,804,456

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

Liabilities
Vouchers payable
Due to other funds

Total Liabilities

Fund Balance

Reserved for rehabilitation programs

Total Liabilities
and Fund Balance
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1,775
118,892

1,602
54,236

120,667

2,015,940

55,838

1,748,618

2,136,607

1,804,456
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CITY OF BLOOMINGTON, ILLINOIS
General Bond and Interest Fund
Balance Sheet
April 30, 1997 and 1996

1996

46,041
93,927

1,038,783
311,171

1,488,922

ASSETS
1997
Cash 3 455,472
Investments 93,927
Receivables
Taxes — current levy 1,041,846
Due from other funds _ 62,325
Total Assets $ 1,653,570
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities
Accrued interest $ -
Deferred revenue — taxes 1,041,846
Total Liabilities 1,041,846

Fund Balance
Reserved for debt service 611,724

23,171
1,038,783

Total Liabilities
and Fund Balance $ 1,653,570

1,061,954

427,968
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1,489,822




g6 22v | $ Ivp oSt $ LZior $ vl $ - s Periie $ 18\ JO PUT e doUEjeg pun
£C6'9by - 896'Z2v 896' 22V -  go6'lav 1ea, jo Buuuibag je souejeg pung
(cos'atl) pr'ost 60€'6E 962'e81 - 96/'e81 sasn Buloueuy Jeyio
pue sainypuadxs Jano
saanos Buioueuy jaylo pue
sanuaaal Jo (Aouaioyap) ssaox]
69128 GIE'L 692128 tr1'ez8 {vz6'68) sLI'EL6 ul s1gysuely Bupelado
{sosn) saoInog Buicueuiy 18UYIO
{(beL'OPR) zi0'epl (oov'ess) (gpc'6eD) t/6'68 (eoc'ses) SainIPUSdXa J9A0 SANUBASI
o {fousioyep) ssand
Ivi'ee@'e (leZeet) 196'606'E gez'eeg's SE6 LI | €2€'121°2 sainyipuadxs |ejoy
o8 - zeZ'eR)) gso'see ZsE'er6 £686'648 696'829 sobeyo eos)) pue 1Sa181U)| .
000's80'2 - 906'v89'e 906've9'e 286161 L vGE'26Y' euRma! lediaug —
201A185 1990 ™~
sainypuad '
ECIRE 69E'CLZ 10S'122'2 0.8'€66'C 606'109't 196'L6E' 1 SaNUBABY (€10}
6L 1691 0se L¥6L - 1v6'1 1sa19lu
61669 | 9l+'662 e6H'E89' L 606'2686' | 606'109'L oo’ 1eg [epuswiLsacBial|
181 'v0E $ {bbi'eR) $ ecl/ie0') $ PvL0'600'H $ - $ tLO'600'L $ saxeL
sSanuaAsyH
siseqy {@)qer0MelUM) yebpng siseq siseq [enjoy
Arerabpng a|qeIoNne Aeysbipng Aejabpng
uo [enjoy aouBLIEA uo |enjoy 0} [enjoy
9661 HaAUOD O
waugsnipy

9661 ‘0¢ |udy papu3 Jeaj ay) Jo} (siseg Aetebpng) siunowy remoy aaneledwod YUM
2661 "0g |udy papuy Jes)

jemoy pue (siseg Aie1abpng gyvo—uoN) 196png
aosuejeg pund ul sebueyn pue samyipuadx3 ‘ssnusasy JO s|npayog

pun 15alaju| pue puog jeIeuar)
SIONITH "NOLONINOO1B 20 ALID




CITY OF BLOOMINGTON, ILLINOIS
1988 Bond Redemption Fund
Balance Sheet
April 30, 1997 and 1996

1996

ASSETS
1997
Cash $ 171
Receivables
Taxes — current levy 303,234
Restricted cash and investments -
Total Assets $ 303,405

544

321,760
121

322,425

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

Liabilities _
Due to other funds $ 1,800
Deferred revenue — taxes 303,234

Totai Liabilities 305,034

Fund Balance
Unreserved (1,628)

13,000
321,760

334,760

(12,335)

Total Liabilities
and Fund Balance $ 303,405

322,425
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CITY OF BLOOMINGTON, ILLINOIS
Public Benefit Fund
Balance Sheet
April 30, 1997 and 1996

1996

ASSETS
1997
Cash 5 271,796
Receivables
Taxes — current levy 155,108
Due from other funds -
Total Assets $ 426,904

8,144

155,255
210,000

373,399

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

Liabilities
Deferred revenue — taxes $ 155,108

Fund Balance
Reserved for debt service 271,796

155,255

218,144

Total Liabilities
and Fund Balance $ 426,904

373,399
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CITY OF BLOOMINGTON, ILLINOIS
Main Street Parking Bond Redemption Fund
Balance Sheet
April 30, 1997 and 1996

ASSETS
1997 1996
Cash $ 186,886 @ $ 2,086
Investments 350,038 325,131
Due from other funds - 125,000
Total Assets $ 536,924 $ 452,217

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

Fund Balance
Reserved for debt service 536,924 452,217

Total Liabilities
and Fund Balance $ 536,924 $ 452 217
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CITY OF BLOOMINGTON, ILLINOIS
1995 Southwest Bond Redemption Fund
Balance Sheet
April 30, 1997 and 1996

ASSETS

1997

Cash $ 7,645
Receivables

Interest -
Due from other funds 73,392

Restricted cash and investments -
Total Assets $ 81,037

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

Fund Balance
Reserved for debt service 3 81,037

Total Liabilities
and Fund Balance $ 81,037
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1996

2,491

18,616
73,392
607,888

702,387

702,387

702,387
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CITY OF BLOOMINGTON, ILLINOIS
Market Square Bond Redemption Fund
Balance Sheet
April 30, 1997 and 1996

ASSETS
1997
Cash $ 1,388
Receivables
Redevelopment 820,000
Restricted cash and investments 2,655
Total Assets $ 824,043
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities
Due to other funds $ 1,816,365
Deferred revenue - redevelopment 820,000
Tota! i_iabilities 2,636,365

Fund Balance
Unreserved (1,812,322)

Total Liabilities
and Fund Balance 3 824,043
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1986

4,218

865,000
38,404

907,622

1,876,122
842,500

2,718,622

(1,811,000)

907.622
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CITY OF BLOOMINGTON, ILLINOIS
Central Bloomington Bond Redemption Fund
Balance Shest
April 30, 1997 and 1996

ASSETS
1997
Cash $ 37,163 $
Restricted cash and investments 215
Total Asssts $ 37.378 $

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

Fund Balance
Reserved for debt service 37,378

Total Liabilities
and Fund Balance $ 37,378 $
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1996

37,238

37,241

37,241

37,241
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CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

Funds to account for the receipt and disbursements of monies used for the acquisition

of capital facilities other than those financed by Special Assessment and Enterprise

Funds.
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CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS FUND

A fund used to account for the receipt and disbursement of monies used for the
acquisition of capital facilities.

1979 STREET CONSTRUCTION BOND FUND

This fund accounts for the use of the funds received from the 1979 Bond Issue.

1988 STREET BOND CONSTRUCTION FUND

This fund accounts for the use of the proceeds of the City's 1988 Bond Issue. The
intended use is the reconstruction of two major streets -- Ireland Grove and College
Avenue. This fund has been closed to the Capital Improvements Fund.

MARKET SQUARE TIF REDEVELOPMENT FUND

This fund accounts for the construction expenses in the Tax Increment Financing
District. All projects have been completed.

CENTRAL BLOOMINGTON TIF REDEVELOPMENT FUND

This fund accounts for the construction expenses in the Tax Increment Financing
District. Several projects are currently taking place in this fund.

1991 SOUTHEAST IMPROVEMENT BOND FUND

This fund accounts for the 1991 Bond proceeds which are intended for infrastructure
improvements necessitated by the expansion of the southeast part of the City.

BUILD ILLINOIS FUND

The City received a Grant from the State of lllinois Build llinois Fund. This money is
accounted for in this fund.

EQUIPMENT PURCHASE & REPLACEMENT FUND

This fund is used to accumulate monies from the other funds for the purchase of
equipment.

1995 SOUTHWEST DEVELOPMENT FUND

The City is constructing infrastructure in the Southwest section of town due to several
expansion projects. This is funded by two bond issues.
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CAPITAL PROJECT - POLICE FACILITY FUND

This fund accounts for the construction expenses related to the City's new Police
Facility.
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CITY OF BLOOMINGTON, ILLINOIS
Capital Improvements Fund

Balance Sheet

Aprit 30, 1997 and 1996

Cash
Receivables
Assessments
Current
. Delinquent
Deferred
Accounts
Due from other funds

Total Assets

ASSETS

$

1897

33,372

22,904
56,757
118,151
137,022
720,549

1,088,755

1996

65,632

21,607
27,842
141,054

1,122,049

1,378,184

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

Liabilities
Vouchers payable
Accrued interest
Due to other funds
Loans payable
Deferred revenue — assessments

Total Liabilities

Fund Balance
Reserved for encumbrances
Unreserved — undesignated

Total Fund Balance

Total Liabilities
and Fund Balance
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$

21,331
12,280
36,033
55,897
141,055

266,596

909,114
(86,955)

54,165
19,080
36,033
49,097
162,662

321,037

999,005
58,142

822,159

1,088,755

1,057,147

1,378,184
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CITY OF BLOOMINGTON, ILLINOIS
1979 Street Construction Bond Fund
Balance Sheet
April 30, 1997 and 1996

1996

ASSETS
1997
Cash $ 33,902
Total Assets $ 33,902

33,902

33,902

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

Fund Balance
Unreserved — undesignated $ 33,902

33,902

Total Liabilities
and Fund Balance $ 33,802

33,802
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CITY OF BLOOMINGTON, {LLINOIS
1988 Street Bond Construction Fund
Balance Sheet
April 30, 1997 and 1996

ASSETS
1997 1996
Cash $ 142 $ 129,142
Restricted cash and investments - 2,527
Due from other funds 128,000 -
Total Assets $ 129,142 3 131,669

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

Fund Balance

Reserved for encumbrances $ 130,000 $ -
Unreserved — undesignated (858) 131,669
Totai Liabilities
and Fund Balance $ 129,142 $ 131,669
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CITY OF BLOOMINGTON, ILLINOIS
1988 Street Bond Construction Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Baiance

Year Ended April 30, 1997 and 1996

1997
Revenues
' interest $ 66
Expenditures
Capital projects —

Excess (deficiency) of 66

revenues over expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
(2,593)

Operating transfers out

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
and cther financing sources
over expenditures and

other financing uses (2,527)
Fund Balance at Beginning of Year 131,669
Fund Balance at End of Year $ 129,142
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1996

1,740

1,740
129,929

131,669



CITY OF BLOOMINGTON, ILLINOIS
Market Square T.I.F. Redevelopment Fund
Balance Sheet
April 30, 1997 and 1996

ASSETS
1997 1996
Cash $ 629 $ 367
" Restricted cash and investments - 120,344
Total Assets $ 629 3 120,711

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

Liabilities
Due to other funds $ 596,096 $ 597,595
Fund Balance
Unreserved — undesignated (595,467) (476,884)
Total Liabilities
and Fund Balance 3 629 $ 120,711
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CITY OF BLOOMINGTON, ILLINOIS
Market Square T.I.F. Redevelopment Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
- and Changes in Fund Balance

Year Ended April 30, 1997 and 1996

1997 1996
Revenues
Taxes $ 45,862 3 45,742
Interest 2,607 6,573
Total Revenues 48,469 52,315
— Expenditures - -
Excess (deficiency) of :
revenues over expenditures 48,469 52,315
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Operating transfers out (167,052) -
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
and other financing sources
over expenditures and
; other financing uses (118,583) 52,315
Fund Balance at Beginning of Year (476,884) (529,199)
Fund Balance at End of Year $ (595,467) $ (476,884)
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CITY OF BLOOMINGTON, ILLINOIS

Central Bloomington T.1.F. Redevelopment Fund

Balance Sheet
April 30, 1997 and 1996

1996

ASSETS
1997
Cash $ 32,154
Restricted cash and investments -
Due from other funds 146,243
Total Assets $ 178,397

644
85

729

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

. 729

Liabilities
Due to other funds $ 4 808
Fund Balance
Unreserved — undesignated 173,589
Total Liabilities
and Fund Balance $ 178,387

729
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CITY OF BLOOMINGTON, ILLINOIS
1991 Southeast Improvement Bond Fund
Balance Sheet
April 30, 1997 and 1996

ASSETS
1997
Cash : $ 59,177
Investments 1,660,402
Receivables
Accrued interest 3,044
Total Assets $ 1,722,623
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities
Due to other funds $ 23,171
Fund Balance
Reserved for encumbrances 7,613
Unreserved — undesignated 1,691,839
Total Fund Balance 1,699,452

Total Liabilities
and Fund Balance $ 1,722,623

-202-

1996

27,198
3,029,285

3,083

3,059,576

366,762

1,298,829
1,393,965

2,692,814

3,059,576
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CITY OF BLOOMINGTON, {LLINOIS
Build llinois Grant Fund
Balance Sheet
April 30, 1997 and 1996

1996

1,855

ASSETS
1997
Cash $ 1,855
Total Assets $ 1,855

1,855

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

Fund Balance

Unreserved — undesignated $ 1,855
Total Liabilities
and Fund Balance $ 1,855

1,855

1.855
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CiTY OF BLOOMINGTON, ILLINOIS
Equipment Purchase and Replacement Fund
Balance Sheet
April 30, 1997 and 1996

ASSETS
1897
Cash $ 19,880 $
Investments 730,000
Due from other funds 3,366,095
Total Assets $ 4,115,975 $

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

Liabilities
Vouchers payable $ 308,197 $
Due to other funds 730
Total Liabilities 308,927
Fund Balance
Reserved for encumbrances 680,786
Unreserved — undesignated 3,126,262
Total Fund Balance 3,807,048
Total Liabilities
and Fund Balance $ 4,115,975 $
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1996

103,001
205,000
2,645,246

2,953,247

17,026

17,026

355,330
2,580,891

2,936,221

2,853,247
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CITY OF BLOOMINGTON, ILLINOIS
1995 Southwest Deveiopment Fund

Balance Sheet

April 30, 1997 and 1996

Cash

Investments

Receivables
Accounts

Accrued interest

Due from other funds

Total Assets

ASSETS

1997

1996

109,344
3,297,441

29,425

29,935
5,918,170

22,053
693,591

3,436,210

6,663,749

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

Liabilities
Vouchers payable
Due to other funds

Total Liabilities

Fund Balance
Reserved for encumbrances
Unreserved — undesignated

Total Fund Balance

Total Liabilities
and Fund Balance

$
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11,089
73,392

26,560
73,392

84,481

89,952

1,300,375
2,051,354

2,309,404
4,254,393

3,351,729

6,563,797

3,436,210

6,663,749
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CITY OF BLOOMINGTON, ILLINOIS
Capital Projecf — Police Facility Fund
Balance Sheet
April 30, 1997 and 1996

1996

4,787

ASSETS
1997
Cash $ -
investments 47,715
Total Assets $ 47,715

4,787

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

2,350,000

4,385,991

Liabilities
Due to other funds $ 691,617
Fund Balance
Reserved for encumbrances 202,800
Unreserved — undesignated (846,702)
Total Fund Balance (643,202)

(6,731,204)

(2,345,213)

Total Liabilities
and Fund Balance $ 47,715

4,787
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CITY OF BLOOMINGTON, ILLINOIS
Capital Project — Police Facility Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance

Year Ended April 30, 1997 and 1996

1997
Revenues
Interest $ 89,755
Miscellaneous 20
89,775
Total Revenues
Expenditures
General government
Contractual services 458,021
Miscellaneous -
Capital projects 4 610,443
Total Expenditures 5,068,464
Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over expenditures (4,978,689)
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Proceeds from general
obligation bonds 6,680,000
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
and other financing sources
over expenditures and
other financing uses 1,701,311
Fund Balance at Beginning of Year (2,345,213)
Fund Balance at End of Year $ (643,902)

-211-

1996

6
2,345,207

2,345,213

(2,345,213)

(2,345,213)

$

(2,345,213)
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ENTERPRISE FUNDS
Funds established to finance and account for the acquisition, operation and

maintenance of governmental facilities and services which are entirely or predominantly

self-supporting by user charges.
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WATER FUND

A fund established to account for the operation of the City's water treatment facilities
and services. The fund is supported by user charges.

SEWER FUND

A fund established to account for the operation of the City's waste disposal activities.
The fund is supported by user charges.

PARKING FUND

A fund established to account for the activities of operating the City's downtown parking
system and City-owned parking lots. The fund is supported by user charges.
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Lake Bloomington Park
Salaries
Benefits
Contractual services
Commodities

Pumping
Contractual services
Commodities

Purification
Salaries
Benefits
Contractual services
Commodities

Transmission and Distribution

Salaries

Benefits

Contractual services
Commedities
Depreciation

CITY OF BLOOMINGTON, ILLINOIS

Water Fund

Schedule of Operating Expenses by Department -
Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended April 30, 1997

With Comparative Totais for the Year Ended April 30, 1996

$

Customer Accounting and Collecting

Commedities

Administrative and General

Salaries

Benefits

Contractual services
Commuodities
Miscellaneous
Amortization

Water Depreciation Account

Contractual services

Variance

Favorable Actual

Actual Budget {Unfavorable) 1996
194,144 § 182,938 $ (11.205) % 208,122
2,805 1,500 {1,405} 1,878
38,002 46,600 8,598 37,492
65,977 39,200 (26,777) 63,087
301,028 270,238 {30,789) 305,579
- - - 62,286
18 - (18) 137
18 - (18) 62,423
637,461 608,575 (28,888} 618,531
3614 1,600 (2,014) 2,798
388,182 388,300 118 360,143
424 458 459,500 35,041 510,084
1,453,716 1,457,975 4,259 1,491 557
769,191 810,191 141,000 796,440
5323 5,800 S77 9,969
660,047 844,200 (15,847) 532,384
495 953 488,300 (7,653 543,920
Q - 0 1,324 847
1,930,514 2,048 591 118,077 3,207,560

290 - (290) -
165,531 126,359 (@9,172) 129,420
469,847 552,895 83,048 432,150
144,314 261,350 117,036 269,680
44 158 50,500 6,342 40,081
6,044 3,000 {3,044) 4,782
1,385,491 - (1,385,491) 75412
2,215,385 994,104 (1,221,281) 951,535
155,082 51,250 {103,842) 83,964
6,056,043 $ 4822159 $ {1,233,884) $ 6,102,618
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Maintenance and operation
Salaries
Benefits
Contractual services
Commodities
Depreciation

CITY OF BLOOMINGTON, ILLINOIS
Sewer Fund
Schedule of Operating Expenses by Department —
Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended April 30, 1997
With Comparative Totais for the Year Ended April 30, 1996

Variance

Favorable Actuat

Actual Budget {(Unfavorable) 1996
$ 480,879 % 530,638 $ 49,759 % 440,148
129,255 149,619 20,364 115,849
77.240 107,800 30,560 73,331
131,875 122,000 (9,975} 116,640
427 867 — {427 867} 386,694
$ 1,247,216 8 910,057 $ (337,158} $ 1,136,760
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Maintenance and operation
Salaries
Benefits
Contractual services
Commodities
Miscellaneous
Depreciation

CITY OF BLOOMINGTON, ILLINOIS

Parking Fund
Schedule of Operating Expenses by Department —
Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended April 30, 1997

With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended April 30, 1996

Variance

Favorable Actuat

Actual Budget {Untavorable) 19986
$ 206,681 135732 % (70,249) 195,880
64,981 54,662 (10,319) 65522
64,215 62,465 {1,750) 62,942
39,058 34,020 {5,038) 41723
256,025 - {256,025) 217,312
175,484 - (175,484) 186,807
$ 806,444 286872 % (519,565) 764,285
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INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

Funds established to finance and account for services and commodities furnished by a

designated department or agency to other departments and agencies within a single
governmental unit. Amounts expended by the fund are restored thereto either from

operating eamings or by transfers from other funds, so that the original fund capital is

left intact.
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CENTRAL GARAGE SERVICES FUND

A fund established to provide maintenance services for vehicles owned by the City
and other governmental agencies. Charges for services are set at levels designed to
cover current operating expenses. Fixed assets are generally acquired through
General Fund expenditures and are considered to be general fixed assets of the City,
the use of which is provided without charge to the Equipment Fund - Mairtenance.
Such fixed assets are therefore included in the General Fixed Asset Account Group
instead of in the Equipment Fund - Maintenance. Certain fixed assets have been
recorded in the internal service fund.

CENTRAL SUPPLY FUND

A fund established to provide office and certain other operating supplies to the
various City departments. There are no fixed assets associated with this operation.

EMPLOYEE GROUP HEALTH CARE FUND

This fund collects the premium for the self-funded health insurance from the City,
Employees and Township. The fund then pays the claims, premiums and
administrative charges and retains reserves. -

JUDGMENT FUND

A fund supported by tax revenues to cover judgments against the City and to
provide for liability, unemployment and workmen's compensation insurance.

CENTRAL ILLINOIS RISK POOLING AUTHORITY

CIRPA is a legally separate entity reported as a blended component unit. CIRPA
provides insurance coverage for the City.
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TRUST AND AGENCY FUNDS

Funds consisting of resources received and held by the governmental unit as agent or

trustee to be expended or invested in accordance with the requirements of the trust or

agency.

-231-



WORKING CASH FUND

A fund consisting of resources received and held by the City as agent or trustee to be
expended or invested in accordance with the requirements of the trust or agency.
FLEX CASH FUND
A fund consisting of resources received and held by the City as agent or trustee to be
expended or invested in accordance with the requirements of the trust or agency.
PARK DEDICATION FUND
The fund collects deposits made in lieu of park land for future park development. This

fund is kept fully invested to earn interest on these monies. When development
occurs, money is budgeted for the use in this fund.

CONSTRUCTION ESCROW FUND

This fund was established to account for monies received from developers for future
capital improvements.

DETENTION BASIN FUND

This fund is similar to the Park Dedication Fund, except that it is especially for Flood
Detention, as required by annexation agreements.

ADAIR FARM PROPERTY FUND

The City purchased land several years ago for the Prairie Vista Golf Course. Until
construction began, it was used as farmland. This fund accounted for the farm

income and expenses.

PUBLIC LIBRARY WORKING CASH FUND

A fund supported by property tax revenues, which are not usually received until July or
after. Funds are set aside annually to provide money on hand to operate until there
are funds received from taxes.

MEYERS TRUST FUND - LIBRARY

The Library received trust funds from the Meyers Estate. This fund accounts for that
trust.
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CHURCHILL TRUST FUND - LIBRARY

The Library received trust funds from the Churchill Estate. This fund accounts for that
trust.

PHILLIPS TRUST FUND - LIBRARY

The Library received trust funds from the Phillips Estate. This fund accounts for that
trust.

SMITH TRUST FUND - LIBRARY

The Library received trust funds from the Smith Estate. This fund accounts for that
Trust. -

J.M. SCOTT HEALTH CARE TRUST FUND

A fund supported primarily by interest on investments, to provide access to health
services, supplies, medical equipment, special nutritional support and health care
programs in McLean County for indigent area residents.

J.M. SCOTT EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT FUND

A fund to provide monies for the replacement of equipment in the J.M. Scott Heaith
Care Fund.

FIRE PENSION FUND
A fund supported by tax revenues to provide a sum sufficient to meet the normal cost

requirements of the Pension Fund, and the amount necessary to amortize an
unfunded accrued liability.

POLICE PENSION FUND

A fund supported by tax revenues to provide a sum sufficient to meet the normal cost
requirements of the Pension Fund, and the amount necessary to amortize an
unfunded accrued liability.

DEFERRED COMPENSATION FUND

A third party administered Internal Revenue Code Section 457 plan.

-233-



— — PanuURUoOD — —

$ oo0cel § 292l $ Z1698F ¢ vZ6Ee s JLL0Ne % - $ ca0'i6l ¢ @dueleq pung pue
- saniqRn (210

m;ow z69's2 000'52} z9z'1 £16'96 yev'ze 8YG 28 {ege'ol) SB0'Z61 aouefeg pung Mo}
9z g69'tz  o0D'Sgl 292'1 216918 yZb'ze 829°0/E fese'$ty  cBOZBl peiruBisepun — pealesaiun
066'61 - - - - - - -

- sndioD Isny —~ penlesay
_ - - - - - e suI9)sAS JUaW B9l
, Seedojdwe 10} perlasey
- - - - 000'082 - 02L'9 - - SSOURICLINDUS JO) paniasey
eosuejeg pung

- - - - - 005"} 622 £58'01 - seper (mo L
T B _ . - oGt = — — gisodap tewosny
_ _ _ - - - — £58°01 - spuny} jeyjo oy enQ
— - = - - — - - - seafodwe o} eng
- 3 = $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 62¢ $ - 3 - $ ejgeded sioyonop
sanlicrer

JONVIVE ANNd ONY S3ALLNIEVI

$ s8046F % NOSSY (9104
- - - SUALISAUI PUR YSBI PelMsaly
- 000'SHL - - - - - - Spuny 1810 Woll eng
- - - - - - - - - 1s@Jaiul paseyng
9L 421! - - - - - —_ - }58J9JUl panidooy
- - 168’68 - - - - SHINODOY
- - - - - - - - Ansquenns - soxe)
sajqunesey
- - - — - - — webe usd uonesusadwoa
peusiep Aq pjsy spuny

gir'oe % Z69'62 $ 000'set $ 29e't $ Zle'9ey ¢ v26'ee $ L2k ¢

-234-

+¥99'6l g8¢'ce . - - - - - - - SjuaLsaaL]
9.9 $ 2 $ 0o00'0L $ 292t $ geoisy ¢ vZe'ee $ Lrne 8 - ¢ geos6l ¢ yseo
$13ssY
pund punjg pund pung puny pung pun4 pung pung
ysni | 18N ysen Auedaly uiseg MoJosy - uoEapeg) ysao yses
mynyy — sehep Bujiom uLe 1epy uoiiualeq HONONISUDY) Yleg x4 Bupjiop

TKigig onqng uoiblioog

spund i8ni} ajgepuadxg

966 | ‘08 dy 10} sM0) eanmirdwon YyHp
2661 "0 judy
walg esuejeg Bujuiquon
spuny Asuaby puw sni)
SIONITT ‘NOLIDNINOOTY 4O ALID



¢ ajuejeg pund puw
sepligen ol

eouRieg pund [0}
paysuBisepun — paasesenn
shd 00 }shg — pensasey
swelshs Juswa el
sesfojdwe lo} peresey
SAIURIGINIUS 10} PBAISSOY
asuepeg puny

senfiqer] Mok
syisodep Bwosng
S$pun} Yo 0] 8nQ
seaio|dwe o eng
¢ agqefed sByosnop
senljiqery

JONYIYE ANNd ANV S3LNKEYIN

$ HOs3Y Mo

SUBURSBAU PUS LSS pejdinsely
Spun} BYo woy eng
158.101U] paTeYINd

159181 peniaoy

KUNOIDY

Ang| Juein2 — sexe}
se|qualedey

ebe uayd vopusuedwos
peuejep Ag pley spun
SUBULSAAL|
s ysen

$13Ssv

Z88'/BE'6S $ 9/9°G91'86 ¢ 12609650 ¢ LI6€c902Z$ 0C0GIEic$ @vlOl ¢ BIECiEd § EIE ¢ 9919
9/8'920'9b oe'tesis - 62,6000z 65669812 8YIOL gzlzez’'s 1S 992'9
889'005'C zogzege | LT T - 8101 096G 88e'2 1GE 99.'9
ir1'ger's 1p1'22h's - - - - I151'20b'S - -
969'b01 68 880’616 (Y - 621'609'02  6SE'698'1E - - - -
76" 6€1'892 - - - - 6l¥'1 - -
900' 656G 902’6199 1260959 gsl'vl 1696 - 25202 ze -
Dom_ﬂ o T . T _ — — —
Let's Sib'LL - - - - obs 2z -
199'G1E'S 1£6'095'0 126'095'9 - - - - - -
vig'ZE $ oze'se $ - $ sgt'vi $ 169G $ - $ 2iL'sl $ - $ -
Z88'/BE'ES § O9/9GOIBS $ 1460969 4 LI6EZ00Z$ O0S0SIEIZ$ BPIOF  $ BIETIER $ ELE $ 99r'9
£/8'908" zao'isi's = - - - 269168 - =
b9 LES 000'GH1 - - - - - - -
01 - - - - - - - -
p80'09E £0t'08E - 985'e5| 0LE'591 - S61'12 - e
97g'1e Sov'0F - £6 18k - - - -
2ES'vI1'E Z0S'€2E'E - 960'SbL'L 90Z'080'L - - - -
199'GLE'S 126'095'0 126'09G'9 - - - - - -
£S5'166'SE £18'609'9E - 0/T'6GH'8L  [PO'F9E'ZL  00D'OL & o r Al - 081'9
gGS009°L ¢ opO'bSOY  $ - $ z/@/28 ¢ OvEvalZ §  erl $ 121 $ su/e ¢ 295
9661 ) ueyg puny T pung puny pund puny pung
uoywsuadiuoy uoisuay uolsueyg jueweoejdey  suogesedQ psnll SN
spIo) pausjaq 8olj04 ey g eswyoing g sdiyjiud
spunj AosteBy 7 spunjIsni] Uoisuag juswdinby A igr sljgng ucjBunoolg
_Jsnig ey yyesy oog
h spungj 3snij eiqepusdxy

9661 ‘08 Ny 10} g1010) eanwRdwWwoD Yim
2661 ‘0€ Ny
panunuo) - 18eys elueeyg Buyuiquon
spung AoueBy pum ysni|
SIONITH "NOLONINOOTH 40 ALID

-235-




- - peugud - ~

9iv'oz $ 69tz ¢ oooset ¢ 292l § Zieosr ¢ bEb'eE $ ®vSsiie ¢ [cceol) § G806l % Jeap Jo pug je eouejegd pund
£ES'61 giciz oooszl ezl 2i9°80F  ¥2b2E 126612 (68LY) 580261 reay jo BuuuiBag 1e sousieg pun 4
c8e 61i'g - - ore'as - 215101 {vce's) - sesn Busuwuy Jewyo

puR saunppuadxe Jeao
se2nos Buioueuy Jeyio pue
sahiueaal jo {Aoueoyep) sseoxy

= (sesn) seunog
Bujouguiy teyln oL
) e = = — = = - = no ssuen Bugersdo
- ul siesuwn Bupmedo
(sesn) seanog Buoueul 4 JeyIO

£88 8lte - - orz'ee - LI5al {veo's) - 89IMIPUSX® JOAD SENUBAR)
1o (Asueyep) ssewxgy

- 19 - - = - Tro's crerri - seipuedy3 Moy

= ) i o s R - Zv0's - - suewescidun jueueuied puw pua
- - - - - - — — SNOGUR|IeDBIN
- 19 _ - - - - - - SORIPOLUWIOD
- SBJAISE TMIVNUOD)

UONUBISe! PUY 21NN
- — - - - - - - sweiBoid enes yweH
_ _ - - - - - - - suewenosdwi jueurwied pue pueq
- SNOSUBYSISIN
— - - - - SUPOWWOD
-~ - - - - - EPZ'rrl - peLnO SWIND
- - - - _ - - - — SEDSS [FORIUOD)
- - - - - - - - fyeuegy
- - - - - salmees

: QIUjeM PUY LpjeeH

senppuedxy

-236-

pt oml'z - - ovz'en - 6197011 681 gEl - senueney (910

B e HEPEFEL L R— e L B SNOBUTSOBIY
€88 081'z - - - - Co- - - ysalejut

. - — - ovz'ge - - - - suoRhqUIUo Jeumo Apedoid

- - - - - egi'gel - suonnqIiuoo eefoduy
saoines 10y selieyn
- $ - $ - s - $ - $ - $ vigos ¢ - s - $ feusuIeAcBieiul

sanuanay

puny pung pung puny pung’ pungy puny
¥sr g yseo Avedoiy uisey MOIDS3 uoneolpeq ysen ysen
nwy21nyD Buiyiops wied hepy uonuaeg UORINASUOD Hiag xe|d4 Buiiom
Areigr] oygng uoiBuiwoo)lg ~

puny

9861 '0c 1udy J0} U0 eanurwdwesn YIMm
2665 '0€ udy popu3 e,
ooJuweg puni uy seBuwyn puv
seunjipuadx 3] 'senueaey jJo uawepmge Buiuniquon
spun 4 1snij ojqepuadxy
SIONITH ‘"NOLONINOOTH 40 ALID



iBih568 ¢ zeezice ¢ oviol ¢ BZi'tecs $ 68 ¢ 999 ¢ 180\ JO PU 18 8dUe[eg pund

10E'602'8 lgl'vee’s erlol yeo'vic's S6.'91E 88’9 ey, jo BuuuBag 1e eousjeg puny

vIB'VLL 10L'gve - 201'8LL rrt'a1e) 82 sesn Buoueuy Jeyio
pue sanjpuadxe BAo
seo.nos Budueuy Jeyio pue

senuanel Jo {Aouedyep} ss80x3

. T - -7 R - {sesn) seninog
Supuruly YO Me)

By - - - - = e s\jsues Bugerdp
(53724 - - - - - ul siejsuel Bugesdo
(sesn) seonog Buoueuly YO
va'yLL 10/'8v9 -7 Zovseu rit'o1e) 8/2 se.nypuadxe Jaro senuase)
jo (Aoueioyep) sseoxdy
02’028 lzgeve - Z6L 1LY £80'v2e - sanypuedxg @O}
tor'ec  BLIIY ~ - 9¢E+'TE = sjusLeAcId jusueled puE pur|
- fov'eng - - 20t'882 - SNOOL| 1031y
828 [§:4%] - - 4,514 - SenIpowwoD
1+ 4 090’ - - 090 - SOMAISS JRNISWAUOD
UONRe K381 pUR BNYIND
el0'L 88’9 - g8e’'9 - - sweiBoxi exo Yjeey
orL'e - - - - - sjuswencidun yeusiwed pue puw
FRN) roz't - POz - - SNOALD||9I3IN
Z16'051 arb'051 - ary'osi - - SBRIPOLULLIOT g
905’6k |1 Eve'vrl - - - - PeLINOY) SWKND o
996’2} 9.8'l9l - 9/09'191 - - SHOIAJSS [BNDBQUOD nv_
val'ee £62'2E - £622E - - sieueq
09€'9) 1 £29'011 - £co'ott - - seyejeg
QrR{aM PUB LYeH
senypuedxq
tgS'sEe’L 226'265'L - 6862 1 6£9'L 8.2 senusAsy (Mol
poe'io9s £28'966 - 896'2k6 05 - shoauayessiy
9GL'12E geg'lie - 926'90€ 686, 82 sl
S58'8 orc'es - - - - suohNIRUOD Jeumo Apedolg
122'661 681'8E1 - - - - suaghqIauod eefojduly
seones 1) sebeyn
S6E' LY $ vig'9s $ - $ - $ - $ -~ s [muewiuRA0BIeI|
senueAey
9661 661 pun4 pung puny pung
e woaweseidey  suonweldo sy 18N8
§jEo) g aseyong wwg sdinyd
wewdinby o Kraiqry oligng
15N1] 98X YYeSH RO uolBupuoolg

9661 '0¢ 11:dy 10} s[@o| eaneredwon YIMm
2661 08 1y pepuy mo)
penuguos — esuwey pung ut seBuwy pus
se mppuedx3] ‘senusast jJOo awelng Buluiquon
spund jsni| ejqupuedxy
SIONITY ‘NOLIDNINCOTE 40O ALID




CITY OF BLOOMINGTON, ILLINOIS
Fire Pension Fund

Statements of Plan Net Assets
April 30, 1997 and 1896

1997
Assets
Cash and short—term investments $ 2,164 946
Receivables
Taxes 1,080,206
Accrued interest 165,370
Other 481
Total receivables 1,246,057
Investments
Deposits at financial institutions 1,782,402
U.S. government securities 859,375
U.S. government agencies
and corporations 7,124,466
Annuities 8,197,804
Total investments 17,964,047
Total Assets 21,375,050
Liabilities
Accounts payable 5,691

Net assets held in trust for pension benefits $ 21,369,359

-238-

$

1996

1,461,682

1,071,881
163,826

1,235,707

4,052,466
2,944,735

5,383,474
5,068,427

17,449,102

20,146,491

1,042

20,145 449




Additions

CITY OF BLOOMINGTON, ILLINOIS

Statements of Changes in Plan Net Assets

Fire Pension Fund

Year Ended Aprii 30, 1997 and 1996

Contributions

Taxes

Active members

Investment income
Net appreciation (depreciation)

in fair value of investments
Interest

Total investment income

Deductions

Total additions

Benefit payments
-Retired members
Widows
Disability
Total benefit payments

Administrative expenses

Net increase

Total deductions

1997

1,080,042
288,670

1,368,712

250,437
845,706

1,086,143

2,464,855

701,248
187,020
326,653

1,214,921

26,024

1,240,945

1,223,910

Net assets held in trust for pension

bensfits at beginning of year

As previously stated

Restatement of plan net assets to
fair market value in accordance
with GASB Statement 25 as of

May 1, 1995 and 1996

As restated

20,141,862

3,587

20,145,448

Net assets held in trust for pension
benefits at end of year

21,369,359
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$

$

1996

1,065,875
263,384

1,319,259

543,752
812,861

1,456,613

2,775,872

636,476
193,907
323,029

1,153,412

22,744

1,176,156

1,589,716

18,493,053

52,680

18,545,733

20,145,449




CITY OF BLOOMINGTON, ILLINOIS

Police Pension Fund

Statements of Plan Net Assets
Aprit 30, 1997 and 1996

Assets
Cash and shori—term investments

Receivables
Taxes
Accrued interest
QOther

Total receivables

Investments
Deposits at financial institutions
U.S. government securities
U.S. government agencies
and corporations
City of Bloomington municipal bonds
IPPFA Group Trust
Annuities

Total investments
Total Assets

Liabilities
Accounts payable

Net assets held in trust for pension benefits

-240-

$

1997

827,872

1,143,096
193,586
93

1,336,775

928,910
6,254,197

3,729,846
1,616,920

549,994
5,379,403

18,459,270

20,623,917

14,188

20,608,729

$

1996

2,634,114

1,092,651
158,217
7,818

1,258,686

698,242
4 250,782

3,264,600
1,455,339

517,858
5,076,499

15,263,320

19,156,120

2,750

19,153,370




CITY OF BLOOMINGTON, ILLINOIS

Police Pension Fund

Statements of Changes in Plan Net Assets
Year Ended April 30, 1997 and 1996

Additions
Contributions

Taxes $

Active members

Investment income
Net appreciation (depreciation)
in fair value of investments
Interest

Total investment income
Less investment expense

Net investment income
Total additions

Deductions

Benefit payments

Retired members

Widows

Disability

Total benefit payments

Return of pension contributions

to terminated members
Administrative expenses

! ‘Total deductions

Net increase

Net assets held in trust for pension
benefits at beginning of year
As previously stated
Restatement of plan net assets to
fair market value in accordance
with GASB Statement 25 as of
May 1, 1995 and 1996

As restated

Net assets held in trust for pension

-241-

1997

1,142,043
390,085

1,632,138

383,975
737,556

1,121,531
(7,986)

1,113,545

2,645,683

707,549
258,282
120,878

1,095,709

59,424
34,11

1,189,324

1,456,359

18,962,833

190,537

19,183,370

benefits at end of year $

20,609,729

$

$

1996

1,076,317
364,325

1,440,642

836,738
654,878

1,491,617
(399)

1,481,218

2,931,860

627,515
268,319
168,958

1,064,792

6,958
31,249

1,102,899

1,828,861

17,181,825

142,684

17,324,509

19,153,370




CITY OF BLOCMINGTON, ILLINOIS
Flex Cash Fund
Balance Sheet
April 30, 1997 and 1996

ASSETS

1997

Cash $ -

Total Assets $ -

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

Liabilities
Due to other funds $ 10,853

Fund Balance '
Unreserved — undesignated (10,853)

Totai Liabilities
and Fund Balance $ -

1996

4,800

(4,799)
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CITY OF BLOOMINGTON, ILLINOIS
Fiex Cash Fund

Schedula of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance ~ Budget and Actual

Year Ended April 30, 1997
With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended Aprii 30, 1996

1997 1996
Varnance
Favorable
Actual Budget (Unfavorable) Actual
Revenues
Charges for services
Employee contributions 3 138,189 3% 115000 $ 23,189 3 155,721
Expenditures
Health and welfare
Claims incurred 144,243 115,000 (29,243) 148,506
Excess {deficiency) of )
revenues over expenditures (6,054) - (6,054) 6,215
Fund Balance at Beginning of Year (4,798} (4,799) - (11,014)
Fund Balance at End of Year $ {10,853) % (4,799 % {6,054} % {4,799
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CITY OF BLOOMINGTON, ILLINCIS
Park Dedication Fund
Balance Sheet
April 30, 1997 and 1996

1996

252,463

23,508

275,971

ASSETS
1997

Cash $ 377,777
Receivabies

Accounts -

Total Assets $ 377,777
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

Liabilities

Vouchers payable $ 229

Fund Balance

275,971

275,971

Reserved for encumbrances 8,720

Unreserved — undesignated 370,828

Total Fund Balance 377,548
Total Liabilities

and Fund Balance $ 377,777

275,971
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CITY OF BLOOMINGTON, ILLINOIS
Park Dedication Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

Year Ended April 30, 1997
With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended April 30, 1996

1997 1996
o Variance
Favorable
Actual Budget {Unfavorable) Actual
Revenues
Intergovernmental 3 56,814 % - $ 56,814 3 41,395
Interest - 6,000 {6,000) -
Contributions 53,805 27,000 26,805 27,549
Total Revenues 110,619 33,000 77,619 68,944
i Expenditures
Culture and recreation
Land and improvements 8,042 37,000 27,958 29,463
Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over expenditures 101,577 (4,000) 105,577 36,481
!
N Fund Balance at Beginning of Year . 275,971 275,971 ~ 236,490
Fund Balance at End of Year $ 377,548 & 271,971 % 106,577 & __ 275,971
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CITY OF BLOCOMINGTON, ILLINOIS
Construction Escrow Fund
Balance Sheet
April 30, 1997 and 1996

1995

ASSETS
1997
Cash $ 33,924
Total Assets $ 33,924

32,424

32,424

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities
Deposits $ 1,500

Fund Balance
Unreserved — undesignated 32,424

32,424

Total Liabilities
and Fund Balance $ 33,924

32,424
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CITY OF BLOOMINGTON, ILLINOIS
Construction Escrow Fund

Scheduie of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actuat

Year Ended April 30, 1997
With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended April 30, 1996

1887 1996
Variance
Favorable
Actual Budget {Unfavorabie) Actual
Revenues $ - 3 - $ - $ -
Expenditures - - - -
Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over expenditures - - - -
Fund Balance at Beginning of Year 32,424 32,424 - 32,424
Fund Balance at End of Year $ 32424 % 32424 % - $ 32,424
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CITY OF BLOOMINGTON, ILLINOIS
Detention Basin Fund
Balance Sheet
April 30, 1997 and 1996

ASSETS
1897 1996
Cash $ 457,026 $ 8677
Receivables
Accounts 39,891 -
Due frpm other funds - 400,000
Total Assets $ 496,917 $ 408,677

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

Fund Balance

Reserved for encumbrances $ 280,000 $ -
Unreserved — undesignated 216,917 408,677
Total Liabilities
and Fund Balance 3 496,917 $ 408,677
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CITY OF BLOOMINGTON, ILLINQIS
Detention Basin Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance — Budget and Actual

Year Ended Aprii 30, 1997
With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended April 30, 1996

1897 1996
Variance
4 Favarable
' Actual Budget {Unfavorable) Actual
Revenues
Charges for services
Property awners $ 88,240 % 25000 $ 63,240 3 48,855
Interest - 5,600 (5,000) -
Total Revenues 88,240 30,000 58,240 48,855
— Expenditures
: Land and permanent improvements - 250,000 250,000 2,740
Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over expenditures 88,240 (220,000) 308,240 46,115
Fund Balance at Beginning of Year 408,677 408,677 - 362,562
Fund Balance at End of Year $ 496,917 $ 188,677 $ 308,240 $ _ 408 677
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CITY OF BLOCMINGTON, ILLINCIE
Adair Farm Property Fund
Balance Sheet
April 30, 1997 and 1996

1996

ASSETS
1897
Cash $ 1,262
Total Assets $ 1,262

1,262

1,262

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

Fund Balance

Unreserved — undesignated $ 1,262
Total Liabilities
and Fund Balance $ 1,262

1,262

1,262
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CITY OF BLOOMINGTON, ILLINOIS
Adair Farm Property Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance — Budget and Actual

Year Ended April 30, 1997
‘With Comparative Actuai Amounts for the Year Ended April 30, 1996

13497 1896
Variance
Favorable
Actual Budget {(Unfavorable) Actual
Revenues $ - 3 - 3 - $ -
Expenditures
tand and permanent improvements ~ - - -
Excess {deficiency) of
revenues over expenditures - - - -
Fund Balance at Beginning of Year 1,262 1,262 - 1,262
Fund Balance at End of Year $ 1262 3 1,262 % - 3 1,262
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CITY OF BLOOMINGTON, ILLINOIS
Public Library Working Cash Fund
Balance Sheet
April 30, 1997 and 1996

1996

ASSETS
1997
Cash 3 10,000
investments -
Due from other funds 115,000
Total Assets $ 125,000

125,000

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

Fund Balance ‘
Unreserved — undesignated $ 125,000

125,000

Total Liabilities
and Fund Balance $ 125,000

125,000

125,000
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CITY OF BLOOMINGTON, ILLINQIS
Public Library Working Cash Fund

Scheduie of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance — Budget and Actual

Year Ended April 30, 1997
With Comparative Actuai Amounts for the Year Ended April 30, 1996

1987 1996
Variance
Favorable
Actuai Budget {Unfavorable) Actual
Revenues $ - 3 - 3 - $ -
Expendiiures - - - -
Excess {(deficiency) of
revenues over expenditures - - - -
Fund Balance at Beginning of Year 125,000 125,000 - 125,000
Fund Balance at End of Year 3 125000 $ 125000 $ - 3 125,000
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CITY OF BLOOMINGTON, ILLINOIS
Meyers Trust Fund
Balance Sheet
April 30, 1997 and 1996

1996

ASSETS
1997
Cash $ 252
Investments 23,288
Receivables
Accrued interest 152
Due from other funds -
Total Assets $ 23,692

21,402

148
342

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities
Accounts payable $ -

Fund Balance
Unreserved — undesignated 23,692

21,892

319

21,573

Total Liabilities
and Fund Balance $ 23,692

21,892
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CITY OF BLOOMINGTON, ILLINOIS
Meyers Trust Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance ~ Budget and Actual

Year Ended April 30, 1997
With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended April 30, 1996

1997 1996
Variance
Favorable
Actual Budget (Unfavorable) Actual
Revenues
interest 3 2180 $ 600 % 1,580 $ 1,708
Expenditures
Culture and recreation
Contractual services . - - - 804
Commeodities 61 600 539 828
61 600 538 1,632
Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over expenditures 2,118 - 1,041 76
Fund Balance at Beginning of Year , 21,573 21,573 - 21,497
Fund Balance at End of Year 3 23,692 $ 21,573 $ 1,041 % 21,573
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CITY OF BLOOMINGTON, ILLINQIS
Churchill Trust Fund
Balance Sheet
April 30, 1997 and 1996

1996

ASSETS
1997
Cash $ 676
Investments 19,664
Receivables
Accrued interest 76
Due from other funds -
Total Assets $ 20,416

18,727

130
676

19,533

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

Fund Balance

19,880
(457)

Reserved — Trust corpus 3 18,990

Unreserved — undesignated 426
Total Liabilities

and Fund Balance $ 20,416

19,533
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CITY OF BLOOMINGTON, ILLINOIS
Churchill Trust Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance — Budget and Actual

Year Ended April 30, 1997
With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended April 30, 199€

1997 1986
Variance
Favorable
Actual Budgset {Unfavorable} Actual
Revenues
interest £ 883 $ 300 % 583 § 1,236
Expenditures
: Cuiture and recreation
— Library supplies - 600 600 -
Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over expenditures 883 - 1,183 1,236
Fund Balance at Beginning of Year 19,533 19,533 - 18,297
Fund Balance at End of Year $ 20,416 $ 18,533 $ 1,183 $ 19,533
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CITY OF BLOOMINGTON, ILLINGIS
Phillips Trust Fund
Balance Sheet
April 30, 1997 and 1996

1996

ASSETS
1997
Cash 3 562
Investments 6,180
Receivables
Accrued interest 24
Due from other funds —
Total Assets $ 6,766

5,885

41
562

6,488

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

Fund Balance

Unreserved — undesignated $ 6,766
Total Liabilities
and Fund Baiance $ 6,766

6,488
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CITY OF BLOOMINGTON, [LLINGIS
Phillips Trust Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance — Budget and Actual

Year Ended April 3Q, 1997
Wwith Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended Aprii 30, 1996

1997 1986
Variance
Favorable
Actual Budget {Unfavorable) Actual
Revenues
Interest 3 278 % 175 % 103 % 388
Expenditures
Culture and recreation
Contractual services - 175 175 -
Excess (deficiency) of .
revenues over expenditures 278 - 278 3588
Fund Balance at Beginning of Year 6,488 6,488 - 6,100
Fund Balance at End of Year $ 6,766 § 6488 % 278 % 6,488
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CITY OF BLOOMINGTON, ILLINOIS
Smith Trust Fund
Balance Sheet
April 30, 1997 and 1996

1996

307,146

4,588
5,061

ASSETS
1997
Cash : $ 373
Investments -
Receivables
Accrued interest | -
Due from other funds -
Total Assets $ 373

316,795

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

316,795

[iabilities
Due to other funds $ 22
Fund Balance
Unreserved ~ undesignated 351
Total Liabilities
and Fund Balance $ 373

316,795
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Revenues
interest
Miscellanequs
Donations
Other

Total Revenues

Expenditures
Culture and recreation
Contractuai services
Commeodities
Miscellaneous
Transfer to Library Foundation
Capital outlay

Total Expend:turzs

Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over expenditures

Fund Balance at Beginning of Year

Fund Balance at End of Year

CITY OF BLOOMINGTON, ILLINCIS
Smith Trust Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance — Budget and Actual

Year Ended April 30, 1997
With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended April 30, 1996

1997 1996
Variance
Favorable
Actual Budget (Unfavorable) Actual
$ 7589 % 17,000 % (9.411) § 13,666
- - - 303,810
50 - 50 -
7,639 17,000 (9,361) 317,576
3,060 - {3,060} 781
480 - (480) -
514 - (514) -
287,893 - (287,893} -
32,136 - (32,136) -
324,083 - (324,083) 781
(316,444) 17,000 (333,444) 316,795
316,795 316,795 - -
$ 351 $ 333,795 % {333,444} & 316,785
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CITY OF BLOOMINGTON, ILLINOIS

J.M. Scott Health Care — Operations Fund

Balance Sheet
April 30, 1997 and 1996

1996

7,612
121,188

33,134
150
7,386,373

7,548,458

33,763
671

34,434

1,352
5,402,151
2,110,521

ASSETS
1997
Cash $ 12,137
Investments 127,364
Receivables
Accrued interest 21,185
Purchased interest -
Restricted cash and investments 8,151,682
Total Assets $ 8,312,378
LIABILITIES AND FUND BAILANCE
Liabilities
Vouchers payable $ 19,712
Due to other funds 540
Total Liabilities 20,252
Fund Balance
Reserved for encumbrances 1,419
Reserved — Trust corpus 5,402,151
Unreserved — undesignated 2,888,556
Total Fund Balance 8,292,126

7,514,024

Total Liabilities
and Fund Balance $ 8,312,378

7,548,458
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CITY OF BLOOMINGTON, ILLINGIS
J.M. Scott Health Care — Operations Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance — Budget and Actual

Year Ended April 30, 1997
With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended April 30, 1996

1997 1996
Variance
Favorable
Actual Budget (Unfavorable) Actual
Revenues
interest and dividends 3 306,926 § 305,148 8 1,778 % 304,758
Miscellanecus 942,968 194,852 748,116 436,395
Total Revenues 1,249,894 500,000 749,894 741,153
Expenditures
Health and welfare
Salaries 116,623 121,810 5,187 116,360
Benefits 32,253 35,611 3,358 33,164
Contractual services 161,876 164,452 2,576 127,966
Commodities 150,448 168,127 18,679 150,742
Miscellaneous 4,204 10,000 5,796 1,111
Health care projects 6,388 9,000 2,612 7.072
Total Expenditures 471,792 510,000 38,208 436,415
Excess {deficiency) of
revenues over experditures 778,102 {10,000} 788,102 304,738
Qther Financing Sources (Lisas)
Operating transfers in — - - 449
Excess (deficiency} of revenues
and other financing sources
over expenditures and other
financing uses 778,102 (10,000} 788,102 305,187
Fund Balance at Beginning of Year 7,514,024 7,514,024 - 7,208,837
Fund Batance at End of Year $ 8,292,126 $ 7,504,024 . § 788,102 § 7,514,024
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CITY OF BLOOMINGTON, ILLINOIS
J.M. Scott Healith Care — Equipment Repiacement Fund
Balance Sheet
April 30, 1997 and 1996

ASSETS
1997 1996
Cash $ 148 $ 148
investments 10,000 10,000
Total Assets $ 10,148 3 10,148

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

Fund Balance
Unreserved — undesignated $ 10,148 $ 10,148

Totai Liabilities
and Fund Balance 3 10,148 $ 10,148
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CITY OF BLOOMINGTON, ILLINGIS
J.M. Scott Health Care ~ Equipment Replacement Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance — Budget and Actual

Year Ended April 30, 1997
With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended April 30, 1996

1897 1996
Variance
Favorable
Actual Budget {Unfavorabie) Actual
Revenues 3 - $ - $ - 3 -
Expenditures
Commadities - - - 170
Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over expenditures - - - (170)
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Operating transfers out - - - (449)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
and other financing sources
over expenditures and other
financing uses - - - {619}
" Fund Balance at Beginning of Year 10,148 10,148 = _ 10.767
Fund Balance at End of Year $ 10,148 § 10,148 3 - 3 10,148
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GENERAL FIXED ASSETS ACCOUNT GROUP

A self-balancing set of records used to account for fixed assets not used in Proprietary

Fund operations or accounted for in Trust Funds.
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CITY OF BLOOMINGTON, ILLINQIS

Schedule of General Fixed Assets — By Source

April 30, 1997

General Fixed Assets:

Land

Buildings

Construction in Progress
Improvements other than buildings
Machinery and equipment

Total general fixed assets

Investment in General Fixed Assets From:

General obligation bond proceeds
General Fund revenues

Capital Project Fund revenues

Special Revenue Fund revenues
Enterprise Fund revenues

Capital Project Fund revenues

Trust and Agency Fund revenues
Donations and gifts

Fixed assets azquired prior to May 1, 1975

Total investment in general fixed assets

-273-

1997 1096

2,508,927 $ 2,508,927
17,203,252 10,247,602
- 2,345,207

1,479,021 1,479,021
19,756,688 18,638,836
40,947,888 35,219,593
4,750,940 4,750,940
15,176,384 14,163,751
6,974,150 2,363,707
3,918,230 3,831,147
38,551 38,551
50,787 50,787
30,081 (2,055)
149,160 149,160
9,859,605 9,873,605
40,047,888 $ 35,219,593




CITY OF BLOOMINGTON, ILLINQIS

Schedule of Changes in General Fixed Assets
By Function and Activity

Year Ended April 30, 1997

4-—~30-96 Additions Deletions 4-30-97
Fixed assets acquired
prior to May 1, 1991 3 24,405,257 $ - % 479,050 $ 23,926,207
Fixed assets acquired
after April 30, 1981:
General Fund
General Government
Legislative 1,636 - - 1,636
City Manager 19,688 240 - 19,928
Risk Management - 18,508 - 18,508
City Clerk 2,199 28,811 - 32,010 —
Graphics 17,297 - - 17,297
Personnel 8,420 575 - 8,995 _
Employee Safety 600 - - 600
Human Relations 4,273 - - 4,273
Finance 36,404 4612 - 41,016
Computer Services 1,912,011 351,910 - 77,683 2,186,228
Legal 12,076 612 - 12,688
City Hail Maintenance 331,240 - - 331,240
2,345,844 406,268 77,693 2,674,419
Public Safety
Police 2,791,506 5,256,459 116,647 7,931,318
Fire 1,245,402 179,484 - - 1,424 886
Pianning and
Code Enforcement 63,025 - - 63,025
4,089,933 5,435,943 116,647 9,419,229
Highways and Streets
P.S. Administration 118,539 26,968 - 145,807
Street Maintenance 328,477 9,975 2,960 335,492
Snow Removal 183,022 - - 183,022
Engineering Administration 77,432 25,536 - 102,968
Traffic Control 129,672 - - 129,672 - .
837,142 62,479 2,960 896,661
Sanitation
Street Sweeping 186,737 111,234 104,186 192,785
Refuse Coliection 990,349 112,722 - 1,103,071
Weed Control 101,809 - - 101,809
1,277,895 223,956 104,186 1,397,665
- ~Continued— -
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General Fund — Continued
Culture and Recreation

Parks
Recreation
Holiday Pool
QO'Neil Pool

Miller Park Beach
Miller Park Zoo
Beautification

Forestry

Highland Golf
Prairie Vista Golf
Fox Creek Golf
Total General Fund

1995 Southwest Development Fund

Library Maintenance
and Qperation Fund

SOQAR Fund
Board of Elections Fund
Drug Enforcement Fund
Community Develcpment Fund
Administrative and Generail
Code Enforcement
Rehabilitation
Total Community
Development Fund
Task Force 6 Fund
Smith Trust Fund

J.M. Scott Healthcare Fund

Total

CITY OF BLOOMINGTON, ILLINQOIS

Schedule of Changes in General Fixed Assets
By Function and Activity — Continued

Year Ended April 30, 1997

-275-

4-30-96 Additions Deietions 4-30~97
540,490 $ 70,347 % - % 610,837
81,262 12,153 - 93,415
10,549 - - 10,549
17,602 4,156 - 21,758
14,320 2,398 - 16,718
51,995 1,825 1,000 52,820
56,380 - - 56,380
280,604 2,790 - 283,394
318,211 46,668 - 364,879
485,839 96,592 212,900 369,531
- 218,909 - 218,909
1,857,252 455,838 213,800 2,099,190
10,418,066 6,584 484 515,386 16,487,164
18,500 - - 18,500
168,770 84,776 1,000 252,546
2,435 - - 2.435
26,437 3,627 - 30,064
6,844 5,001 - 11,845
65,938 11,040 1,111 75,867
26,198 - - 26,198
11,514 - - 11,514
103,650 11,040 1,111 113,579
82,344 3,778 - 86,122
- 32,136 - 32,136
(12,710) - - {12,710
35,219,593 § 6,724,842 % 996,547 $ 40,947,888
- ~Continued— -



Fixed assets acquired
prior to May 1, 1991

Fixed assets acquired
after April 30, 1981:

General Fund
General Government

Legisiative
City Manager
Risk Management
City Clerk
Graphics
Personnetl
Employee Safety
Human Relations
Finance
Computer Services
Legal
City Hall Maintenance

Public Safety
Police
Fire
Planning and
Code Enforcement

Highways and Streets
P.S. Administration
Street Maintenance
Snow Removal
Engineering Administration
Traffic Control

Sanitation
Street Sweeping
Refuse Coliection
Weed Control

CITY OF BLOOMINGTON, ILLINOIS

Schedule of Changes in General Fixed Assets

By Function and Activity — Continued

April 30, 1997
improvements  Machinery
COther Than and
Land Buildings Buildings Equipment Total
$ 2,508,9273% 10,247.602 % 1,255,653 8 9,814025% 23,826,207
- - - 1,636 1,636
- - - 19,928 19,928
- - - 18,508 18,508
- - - 32,010 32,010
- - - 17,297 17,297
- - - 8,995 8,995
- - - 800 600
- - - 4273 4273
- - - 41,016 41,016
- - - 2,186,228 2,186,228
- - - 12,688 12,688
- - 223,368 107,872 331,240
- - 223,368 2,451,051 2,674,419
- 6,955,650 - 975,668 7,931,318
- - - 1,424,886 1,424,886
- - - 63,025 63,025
- 6,955,650 -~ 2,463,579 9,419,229
- - - 145,507 145,507
- - - 335,492 335,492
- - - 183,022 183,022
- - - 102,968 102,968
- - - 129,672 129,672
- - - 896,661 896,661
- - - 192,785 192,785
- - - 1,103,671 1,103,071
- - - 101,809 101,809
- - - 1,397 665 1,397,665
-—Continued - —
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Generat Fund — Continued
Cutiture and Recreation

Parks
Recreation
Hotiday Pool
O'Neil Paaol
Miller Park Beach
Miller Park Zoo
Beautification
Forestry
Highland Golf
Prairie Vista Golf
Fox Creek Goif

Yotal General Fund

1995 Southwest Development Fund

Library Maintenance
and Operation Fund

SOAR Fund
Board of Elections Fund
Drug Enforcement Fun+
Community Development Fund
Administrative and General
Code Enforcement
Rehabilitation
Total Community
Development Fund
Task Force 6 Fund
Smith Trust Fund
J.M. Scott Healthcare Fund

Total

CITY OF BLOOMINGTON, [LLINOIS

Schedule of Changes in General Fixed Assets
By Function and Activity — Continued

April 30, 1997

improvements  Machinery
Other Than and

Land Buildings Buildings Egquipment Totai
- 3 - - 3 610,837 $ 610,837
- - - 93,415 93,415
- - - 10,549 10,549
- - - 21,758 21,758
_ - - 16,718 16,718
- - - 52,820 52,820
- - - 56,380 56,380
- - - 283,394 283,394
- - - 364,879 364,879
-~ - - 369,531 369,531
- - - 218,909 218,909
- - - 2,099,190 2,099,180
- 6,955,650 223,368 9,308,146 16,487,164
- - - 18,500 18,500
- - - 252,546 252,546
- - - 2,435 2,435
- - - 30,064 30,064
- - - 11,845 11,845
- - - 75,867 75,867
- - - 26,198 26,198
- - - 11,514 11,514
- - - 113,579 113,579
- - - 86,122 86,122
- - - 32,136 32,136
- - - {12,710) (12,710)

2,508,927 $ 17,203.2528 1,479,021 $_ 19,756,688 $__40.947.888
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GENERAL LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS ACCOUNT GROUP

The bonds supported by tax revenues are recorded in the General Long-Term

Obligations Account Group. The liability for the revenue supported bonds is recorded

in the Enterprise Funds.
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STRIEGEL KNOBLOCH CoMpaxNy

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

. EUGENE 3TRIEGEL. TFA
DENNIS ®, KNOBLOCH, TRA JANNY L KIZDASCH. TR
DARREL L. QEHLER, CPA GAMES £ MULLGAN. ZPa
JOHN . BELLETETE. CPA LAMES P ONGCLD. TP

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF GENERAL PURPOSE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Honorable Mayor, City Council
and City Manager
City of Bloomington, lllinois

We have audited the general purpose financial statements of the City of
Bloomington, lilinois, for the year ended April 30, 1997, and have issued our report
thereon dated September 22, 1997.

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards, Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States and the provisions of Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular
A-128, "Audits of State and Local Governments”. Those standards and OMB Circular
A-128 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the general purpose financial statements are free of material
misstatement.

Compliance with laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to the City of
Bioomington, lilincis, is the responsibility of the City's management. As part of
obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the general purpose financial
statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of the City's
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants.
However, the objective of our audit of the general purpose financial statements was
not to provide an opinion on overall compliance with such provisions. Accordingly, we
do not express such an opinion.

The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance that are
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards or OMB Circular A-128.

This report is intended for the information of the City Council and management.
However, this report is a matter of public record and its distribution is not limited.

i et o

Bloomington, lllinois
September 22, 1997
-283-
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STRIEGEL KNOBLOCH CovpaNy
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

.. ZUGENE STRIEGE:. CPA
DENNIS K, KNCBLOCH, TPa TANNY L KEDAISCH, LRy
DARRE! .. JEHLER. CPa LAMES B OMULUIGAN. TRa
JOHN 4. BELLETETE. TPA AMES P NGGLD. ZPaA

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
STRUCTURE BASED ON AN AUDIT OF GENERAL PURPOSE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Honorable Mayor, City Council
and City Manager
City of Bloomington, illincis

We have audited the general purpose financial statements of the City of
Bloomington, Hlinois, as of and for the year ended April 30, 1997, and have issued our
report ‘thereon dated September 22, 1997.

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards, Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States, and the provisions of Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular
A-128, *Audits of State and Local Governments®. Those standards and OMB Circular
A-128 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the general purpose financial statements are free of material

misstatement.

The management of the City of Bloomington, lliinois, is responsible for
establishing and maintaining an internal control structure. In fulfilling this
responsibility, estimates and judgments by management are required to assess the
expected benefits and related costs of internal control structure policies and
procedures. The objectives of an intemal control structure are to provide management
with reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss
from unauthorized use or disposition, and that transactions are executed in
accordance with management's authorization and recorded properly to permit the
preparation of general purpose financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principies. Because of inherent limitations in any internal control
structurs, errors or irregularities may nevertheless occur and not be detected. Aiso,
projection of any evaluation of the structure to future periods is subject to the risk that
procedures may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
effectiveness of the design and operation of policies and procedures may deteriorate.

In planning and performing our audit of the general purpose financial statements
of the City of Bloomington, lllinois, for the year ended April 30, 1997, we obtained an
understanding of the interal control structure. With respect to the intemal control
structure, we obtained an understanding of the design of relevant policies and
procedures and whether they have been placed in operation, and we assessed -control
risk in order determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our
opinion on the general purpose financial statements and not to provide assurance on
the internal control structure. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.

115 WEST JEFFERSON, P.O. BOX 3217, BLOOMINGTON, (LLINOIS #1702-3217 (309) 829-4303 FAX: (309) 827-3191



Our consideration of the internal control structure would not necessarily disclose
all matters in the internal control structure that might be material weaknesses under
standards established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. A
material weakness is a reportabie condition in which the design or operation of one or
more of the internai control structure elements does not reduce to a relatively low level
the risk that errors cr irregularities in amounts that would be material in reiation to the
general purpose financial statements being audited may occur and not be detected
within a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions. We noted no matters involving the intemal control structure and its
operation that we consider to be material weaknesses as defined above.

This report is intended for the information of the City Council and management.
However, this report is a matter of public record and its distribution is not limited.

%M%,Q Korbtoel s (’wga/ |

Bloomington, lilinois
September 22, 1897
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STATISTICAL SECTION
COMMENTS RELATIVE TO STATISTICAL SECTION

The following statistical table recommended by the National Council on Governmental
Accounting is not included for the reason stated below:

a) The table showing legal debt margin is omitted because as a "Home Rule”
unit established by the 1970 lllinois Constitution, the City of Bloomington,
llincis has no statutory debt limit. Non-Home Rule units in lllinois may issue
bonds up to 8.625% of Assessed Valuation. Some types of General

Obligation Bonds may be issued up to 5% of Assessed Valuation.
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CITY OF BLOOMINGTON
Property Values and Tax Rates

Real Property Valuation Detall

Equalized
Tax Fair Market Assessed
Year Value Valuation Residentiai Commarcial industrial Fam Raitway
1988 $1.263,315,0456 § 421105015 § 226525101 § 185776762 § 8,006,433 § 419380 § 287359
1589 1,374,067,668 458,022,556 252,136,669 196,548,500 8,682, 465 414,060 240,862
1990 1,468,246,266 489,415,422 271,487,168 207,945,388 9,414,255 325,348 243,263
1991 1,585,865,326 528,621,775 293,299,872 225,684,847 9,259,200 262,450 215,406
1992 1,698,885,538 566,295,196 316,313,020 237,337,343 9,234,378 223,747 186,708
1993 1,848,891,897 616,297,299 349,628,847 257,012,358 9,112,340 224,833 318,821
1994 2,031,066,813 677,022,271 389,751,138 276,812,811 9,630,768 606,283 221,271
1995 2,250.071,751 780,023,917 432,936,964 306,123,581 10,228,203 591,316 143,853
1996 2,523 444,627 841,148,209 480,857,413 348,799,356 10,816,856 517,585 166,999

Tax Rate by Fund
(Per $100 of Equaiized Assessed Valuation)

1996 1995 1994 1993 1992

Genarai Fund 4969 0.5399 0.5715 0.8018 0.6533
Fire Pansion Fund ' 1288 0.1279 0.1291 0.1290 0.0090
Police Pension Fund 1381 0.1306 0.1342 0.1342 0.1085
{llinois Municipal Retirement Fund 1942 0.2094 0.1774 0.1854 0.1945
Judgment Fund 0833 0.0834 0.1035 0.1137 0.1237
Bond and Interest Funds .1599 0.1814 0.0965 0.1164 0.0525
Public Benefit Fund 0184 0.0207 0.0229 0.0253 0.0274
Public Library Fund 2140 0.2255 0.2320 02322 0.2349
Audit Fund 0037 0.0040 0.0042 0.0044 0.0046
1.4351 1.5328 1.4713 1.5424 —l4984

Tax Raw Limitation

As a home-rule unit of local govemment, the City of Bloomington has no statutory tax rate fimit.

Source: County of McLean Tax Extension Office
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CITY OF BLOOMINGTON, ILLINOIS
Special Assessment Collections
{ast Ten Fiscai Years

Aati
Year Endad Current Current Assessments Coll::i:; To Total Cutstanding
Aprii 30 _Assessments Dus Collected” Amount Due Assessmants **

1988 $ 120,281 § 119685 § .99 $ 76,183
1989 43,029 45,829 .95 45,748
1990 17,704 28,044 164 40859
1981 17,704 - - 40,859
1992 17,704 - - 40,859
1993 - - 40,859
1994 23,0860 23,080 1.00 230,118
1995 19,231 18,231 1.00 210,887
1996 ‘ 20,384 20,384 1.00 190,503
1997 21,607 - - 190,503

* Special Assessment payments ara due over a period of three to ten years and, therafore, are not necessarly collectad in the
yaar due, nor is the amount delinquent equal o the differance between assessments due and assessments collected.

*  Total outstanding assessments does not include any intarest on delinquent assgssments,

Source: Finance Department, City of Bloomington.

-295-



'SlUBLIBNY)S [RIoUeUY PelPNY 80IN0S

‘9661 Ut Buies syusweis [euUBLY SAID 6Y) UL PPNV ere YoM Aluowny Buleod Jsiy sioulll [enued ey jo sbuiusee e Jou
‘eg61 W Buniels susWelEs ERUBLY SAID BU) Ul PApNKUL 818 UDIYM SUOHIBIedo SPUNJ UoIsUed 8l)4 PuB eallod e jo sbuluiee epniou) 10N seop JUnowe sy .,

PESTEYL S SESeSI S OO0 S BOTIeSn S OSCESSNS BoveIil S IE9Z20C § SLLtIvC$ SIcOteT $ 00068t $
BPEES 06GOLL 086'69% GG §igsey ~  o@oee T 0190F BESeS 510501
926'90¢ 852'v08 6¥2'G08 BE6'692 vI9'E62  SEV'BTS. 166265 0£9'L19 SB6'6VS 096'255
- - 6+6'01L clLI'e2 = £51'22 ¥S0'vE i¥¥'iE 658'0¥
- 0E2'6¥ 9112 yor'z YLO'8E geL'st 015'e52 WL'00Z 515291 eL0'sLL
. . . - - - - - 108
- - - 9El's 68 190'96 Zov'1 b L6E'SS 016'9E
zor'ze L0812 6E5°21 L08'8\ v98'Ze SSE'LL 6209 125'sL 1SZVL 88v'oL
- - - oL . L . Ly 1822 110'9
- vZL'ZE ¥59'€S BOL'SY 59¥'62 9S6'SY " piv'e 62'62 ye0'2 069'12
. SP0'0E L21'9e 186°70Y 529'18 1SB'PL 6L1'9p 622 vZr've 85€°66
69L'vy Bh.mn 621'Se 168'F1 98821 S80'81 8442 gLE'rl 2T 2542
66E'LE 18L'6L £95'E6 9c8'89 809'8Y 682'S9 ors'zZoL v99'8it 868'ZL 086t
962'99¢ v68'2YY Zvo'LLL 209'10} 609'122  Z18'0VE 65b'c6 £92'G1L Y0Py 0£5'125
YOL'VES § 66V'ISO § ZI6'IES § 6O¥'SEr § 665U08 $ LOL'LLE $ OIS'0SE § 80L& €8ZOM §  vER'l6L §
7661 9661 S661 ve61 €661 2661 1661 0661 661 Fa61

‘0E wdy pepu3 Jeep
SPISUASOAU| WOL) IO JsaIaju)
NOLDNINOOTE 40 AL

« 10UI0
sNUL e
yyeoH NO0S "WT
jeley pooid
e Amnn
Buueys enuerey
elweoetdey pue
eseyaing yuswdinbg
Juewdoeasq) veqin
Bupprey
l1oMes
1ejepm
Kieiqn)
x| [pnd Jojow
svefold [eides
fereusr)

-206-



‘sjuewselEls [@LUBYY pelpny  euInog

‘adA) pund SoMIeS JqeQ Ul Ul 63Uaaq PUN (910} 84 Sjueseidel UWINICO SRy ..,
‘8w SIl 19 S{GEIGAB JOU S) BNBA POSSOSSY /661 .

‘uaissiuawon Buuuely jeuoibey Aunog ueeon Aq suondeford Jo ‘snsueo fepeds ‘snsued Aq peyddns uogendog

12849 . 896'691 '6€ (260'5£2) BYS'LE6'Y ¥2r'Ze8'ey . L0L'LS 1661
1£'68S vobO' 16S'L00'vE zZea'ri 005'621°9 sLLLSLOF 602'8¥1' L8 10L'LS 9661
ZV'66% LOF0’ 606'065'¥E 605'arp ovi'EeT's roL'cZeey L16'E20'06L 04'ts 5661
v vEY +980° LI¥'058'v2 21p'eLr'e SHO'8LY'SL vLR'OVS'OY LL2'220'LL8 §89'9S Y661
LY LLEY 212'599'22 TR % 2 824'€95'9L ELFLO0'EP 662'L62'019 vES'sS £661
ELLbY 12¥0° ZIvLVYE SL1'182 sL0°L22'01 TiB'Teo'YE 961'562'995 990'vS 2661
80'L6E zovo LI2'952'12 0EL'969'L BS9'Z2L1L 000'520'vE S14'129'92S LES'ES 1661
55'8EY L9v0° 660'898'ZC 18e'9ey'e 025'046'LE 000592 LE Zer'siv'esr ShL'gs 0661
68°02F [X-T0 ara'eor'iz PSS'6hL'L B6L'9SLEL 000'019'SE 955'220'8SP ori'os 6861
aryic $ SoE0 SLZ'0oc'sl ¢ 2e2'862'L ¢ €66'1ESEL ¢ 00S'OBL'OE  §  SLO'SOLIZYS £re'er 8861
e 9d CIT 198 pepuog SoIUBS 180 wpuoy ¥Ge0 pepuch SOA UGliedod ~o¢ wdy
1990 pessessy 0} fe1euey) 1eN ul ejgelieny peuoddng 85019 pessessy pepul Jee )
e pepuog UnowYy 5$97 ONUBARY 5567
18N jo ofey

siee )\ (80814 UG JIY)
BiideD Jed 1G8Q pepuod 18N PuUB BnfeA PesSessy 0] KB PepUOR [B1SUsD) I8N Jo oneY
SIONITH ‘NOLONINOOTE 40 ALID

-297-



CITY OF BLOOMINGTON, ILLINQIS
Computation of Direct and Overlapping Debt

April 30, 1997
Applicable
Moody's Par to City of
Rating Value Bloomington
City of Bloomington Aai

Series 1988 $ 2,480,000
Series 1989 2,000,000
Series 19882 875,000
Series 1991 5,917,424
Series 1992 6,545,000
Series 1993 3,020,000
Series 1994 4,665,000
Series 1995 11,650,000
Series 1996 6,680,000

Total direct debt 43,832,424

Self-supporting debt 11,532,548

Net direct debt $_32,299.876

Qverlapping Debt:

McLean County Aa 17,297,000 7,861,187
Bloomington-Normal Water

Reclamation District Aa 2,500,000 1,727,290
Bloomington-Normal

Airport Authority Aa 7,770,000 5,409,639
Bloomington School District #87 Aa 16,350,000 16,350,000
Normal Community Unit

School District #5 Aa 46,006,590 14,838,527
Community College District #540 Al 4,586,025 2,209.976

Total overlapping debt 48,396,619

Total net direct and overlapping debt $_80.696,495

Net direct debt represents the portion of the City of Bloomington's presently
outstanding General Obtigation Bonds which is to be repaid by property taxes and
other General Govemmental revenue sources. Seif-supporting debt includes the
remainder of the outstanding obligations which is payable from operating revenues of
the Water, Sewer and Parking Funds or from sales tax and property tax increments.

Debt ratios (estimated):

Direct debt to 1996 Assessed Valuation ($841,148,209) 3.8%
Total direct and overlapping debt to Assessed Valuation 9.6%
Direct debt per capita (57,707) $ 559.72
Total direct and overlapping debt per capita 1,398.38

Source (other than the City of Bloomington): Estimated by First Chicago Capital
glarkets, Inc., based on information provided by the Office of the McLean County
lerk.
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CITY OF BLOOMINGTON, ILLINOIS

Ratio of Annual Debt Service Expenditures for General Bonded Debt
to Totai General Expenditures

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Ratio
Total of General
General (1) Bonded
Year Interest Bonded Total Debt Service
Ended and Fiscal Debt General to General
April 30 Principal Charges Service Expenditures  Expenditures
1988 3 178,207 $ 923,770 $1,101,797 $ 19,094,394 0577
1989 180,305 1,364,587 1,554,892 21,068,187 0738
1990 358,722 1,792,589 2,151,411 24,790,618 .0868
1991(2) 2,397,454 1,810,408 4,207,862 28,091,248 .1498
1992(3) 3,279,416 1,680,242 4,959,658 32,700,503 1517
1993 1,037,653 1,543 ,576 2,581,229 29,613,959 0872
1994(4) 3,964,317 1,429,848 5,394,165 35,103,213 1837
1995(5) 8,075,701 1,574,490 9,650,191 42,113,163 2291
1996 1,380,754 1,454,512 2,835,266 36,463,601 0778
1997 2,017,954 1,836,602 3,854,556 41,538,649 0928

(1) Total General Expenditures includes General, Special Revenue and Debt Service

Funds.

(2) Bonds called early -- $1,900,000 principal retired before scheduled maturity.

(3) Bonded called early -- $2,400,000 principal retired before scheduled maturity. Early

payment penalty charged - $24,000.

(4) Bonds called early -- $2,900,000 principal retired before scheduled maturity. Early

payment penalty charged - $29,000.

(5) Bonds called early - $6,850,511 principal retired before scheduled maturity. Early
payment penalty charged - $144,300.

Source: Audited financial statements.
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CITY OF BLOOMINGTON, ILLINOIS
Salaries and Surety Bonds of Principal Officials

Year Ended April 30, 1997

Amount of
Name and Title of Officials Annual Salary _Surety Bond
Thomas Hamilton 3 82,844 $ 5,000
City Manager
Tracey Covert 44,944 5,000
City Clerk
Brian J. Bames 68,034 200,000

Director of Finance

NOTE: All employees are covered by a $5,000 bianket fidelity bond.

Source: Finance Department, City of Bloomington.
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CITY OF BLOOMINGTON, ILLINOIS

Assessed and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Propenty

Fiscal

Year Ended

1988
1989
1890
1991
1992
1993
1994
1985
1996
1997

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Real Property

Ratio of Total

* Information to complete 1997 is unavailabie at this time.

Source: MclLean County Tax Extension Office.

-310-

Assessed Estimated Assessed to Tota

Value Actual Value Actuai Value
$ 421,105,015 $& 1,263,315,045 33%
458,022,556 1,374,067,668 33%
489,415,422 1,468,246,266 33%
528,621,775 1,585,865,325 33%
566,295,196 1,698,885,588 33%
616,297,299 1,848,891,897 33%
677,022,271 2,031,066,813 33%
750,023,817 2,250,071,751 33%
841,148,209 2,523,444,627 33%
* * 33%



CITY OF BLOOMINGTON, ILLINOIS
Demographic Statistics
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Education
Lavel in
Per Capita Years of Formal Schoot Unemployment
Poputation income Median Age Schooling Enroliment Rate

Fiscal Year (1 {3} {4} (5} (8} (7)
1987-1988 48,483 (8) $ 10,900 30.9 (8) 13.79 8,745 4.9
1988-1989 50,140 11,227 3.2 13.87 5,607 47
1989-1990 51,889 (9) 11,564 31.1 13.95 7,426 44
1990-1991 53,531 12,569 31.5 14.01 7.847 3.9
1991-1992 54,066 15,667 (%) 31.8(9) 14.06 8,132 4.6
1992-1993 55534 (2) 18,087 (2) 32.2 (2) 14.08 (2) 7,214 43
1993-1994 56,688 18,570 (2) 32.5 (2} 14.11 (2) 8,026 37
1994-1995 57,707 (1) 17,067 (2) 31.9(10) 14.13 (2} 8,734 3.1
1995-1996 57,707 (10) 17,580 (2) 31.9(10) 14.13 (2) 7.201 49
1996-1997 57,707 {10} 18,371 (11} 31.9(10) 14.13 (2} 7.118 30

Sources:

(1) Population estimates by the staff of the McLean County Regional Planning Commission uniess otharwise noted.

{2) Estimates by tha City of Bloomington Department of Planning and Code Enforcament.

{3) Estimates of per capital income by the U.S. Bureau of the Census, uniess otherwise noted.

(4) Estimates by the staff of the McLean County Regionat Planning Commission, uniess otharwise noted.

(5) Estimates by the staff of the McLean County Regional Planning Commission based on projections fo trends from U.S.
Bureau of the Census' Census of Population - 1950, 1960, 1970, 1380 and 1990 for the City of Bloomington.

{6} FRegicnal Office of Education for the McLean County-DeWitt County Education Service Region, 312 Courthousa,
Bloomington, lllinois. Also, survey of schools in Bloomington by McLean County Regional Planning Commission.

(7} Stats of lllinois Department of Employment Security.

(8) U.S. Bureau of the Census - Special Census, November 2, 1987,

(3) U.S. Bursau of the Census - Census of Popuiation - Aprii 1, 1990Q.

{10) U.S. Bureau of the Census - Special Census, Qctober 26, 1984,

{11} Estmates by the City of Bloomington Finance Department.
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CITY OF BLOOMINGTON, ILLINOIS

Miscellaneous Statistics

April 30, 1897

Date of incorporation
Form of Government
Area

Miles of Streets
Nu'mber of Street Lights

Fire Protection:
Number of Stations
Number of Firemen and Officers

Police Protection:
Number of Stations
Number of Policemen and Officers

Municipal Water Department:
Number of Consumers
Average Daily Consumption
Miles of Watermains

Sewers:
Sanitary Sewers
Storm Sewers

Building Permits Issued

Recreation and Culture:
Number of Golf Courses
Number of Parks
Number of Libraries
Number of Volumes

Employees:
Classified Services
Exempt
Union

Source: City of Bioomington (Various Departments).

1850
Council/Manager
21.37 square miles
247.84 miles
4,363

22,036
8,700,000 gallons
286.30 miles

290.35 miles
249.81 miles

2,683

2 with 268 acres
36 with 446 acres
1

172,828

107
82
389
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